
 

Newnan City Council Meeting  
June 18, 2019 – 6:30 pm 

  A G E N D A 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER – Mayor Keith Brady    
 
 
INVOCATION 
 
 
READING OF MINUTES 
 
 

I Minutes from Regular Meeting on May 28, 2019 ..................................................................... Tab A 
 
 

II Minutes from Special Called Meeting on June 12, 2019 .......................................................... Tab B 
 
 
REPORTS OF BOARDS AND COMMISSION 

 
 
I 1 Appointment – Newnan Youth Activities Commission – 3 Year Terms 
 
 
II 1 Appointment – Urban Redevelopment Agency – 3 Year Terms 
 
 
III 2 Appointments – Convention Center Authority – 3 Year Terms 
 
 
IV 5 Appointments – Cultural Arts Commission – 3 Year Terms 
 
 
V 2 Appointments – Keep Newnan Beautiful – 3 Year terms 
 
 
VI 1 Appointment – Joint Transportation Coordinating Committee (JTCC) – 2 Year 

Term / 9 elected officials (1) one, from the City of Newnan – Rhodes Shell 
 
 
VII Consideration of Parks Commission recommendation regarding CJ Smith Park 

and Future Parks ...................................................................................................................... Tab C 
 
   

REPORTS ON OPERATIONS BY CITY MANAGER 
 

 
REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM MAYOR 

 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
 

I Public Hearing – Application for Alcohol Beverage License – Gabbard Family 
LLC dba Local Provisions – Retail Off Premise (Package) Sales of Wine – 7 E. 
Broad Street – Reason:  Moved Location from 8 Jefferson Street .......................................... Tab D 

 
 



NEWNAN CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA – June 18, 2019 @ 6:30 P.M. ................................ Page 2 
 
 
II Public Hearing – Application for Alcohol Beverage License – Newnan Food 

Mart, Inc. – Retail Off Premise (Package) Sales Malt Beverages and Wine – 165 
Temple Avenue – Reason:  New Business .............................................................................. Tab E 

 
 
III Public Hearing – Application for Transfer Alcohol Beverage License – Little 

Giant Farmers Market – Licensee FROM: Michael Dixon TO: Jackson Mitchell – 
Retail Off Premise (Package) Sales of Malt Beverages & Wine – 487 Jackson 
Street – Reason:  New Owners ................................................................................................ Tab F 

 
 
IV Resolution – General Election 2019 – Qualifying dates and qualifying fees ............................ Tab G 
 
 
V Resolution – General Election 2019 – Election Superintendent .............................................. Tab H 
 
 
VI Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with Coweta County regarding TSPLOST ...................... Tab I 
 
 
VII Ratify the purchase of Lot 5, 11 Farmer Commercial Park Drive .............................................. Tab J 
 
 
VIII Request to renew Lease of the Newnan Male Seminary Building located at 30 

Temple Avenue which expires August 31, 2019 between the City of Newnan and  
ChildrenConnect – Newnan Children’s Museum for a term of three years .............................. Tab K 

 
 
IX  Consideration of Real Estate Auction Listing Agreement between the City of 

Newnan and Terry Howe & Associates, Inc. ............................................................................ Tab L 
 
 
X Consideration of Extension of Pool Operation Agreement between the City of 

Newnan and the Young Men’s Christian Association of Metropolitan Atlanta, Inc ................. Tab M 
 
 
XI Request by Charles Douglas, on behalf of Anne Marie Douglas, Betty Ingram 

Smith, and Jefferson James Davis to annex 5.14+ acres located at 36 Franklin 
Road and off Helen Street into the Newnan City Limits – To initiate the 
annexation process requires vote to refer to Planning Commission ........................................ Tab N 

 
 
XII Information Only – Rezoning request by Charles Douglas for 9.85+ acres located 

on Helen Street and Belk Road from ILT (Light Industrial District) and RS-15 
(Suburban Residential Single-Family Dwelling District-Medium Density) to RML 
(Residential Multi-Family Dwelling-Lower Density District) – Planning 
Commission .............................................................................................................................. Tab O 

 
 
XIII 6 Glenn Street – Schedule a Public Hearing for July 16, 2019 regarding structure ................. Tab P 
 
 
XIV 8 Glenn Street – Schedule a Public Hearing for July 16, 2019 regarding structure ................. Tab Q 
 
 
XV 100 Sprayberry Road – Schedule a Public Hearing for July 16, 2019 regarding 

structure .................................................................................................................................... Tab R 
 
 



NEWNAN CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA – June 18, 2019 @ 6:30 P.M. ................................ Page 3 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
 
I Public Hearing – 18 Berry Avenue – Resolution to repair or demolish .................................. Tab S 
 
 
II Public Hearing – 33 Hardaway Street – Resolution to repair or demolish ............................. Tab T 
 
 
III 11 Melson Street – Continued – Resolution to repair or demolish ........................................... Tab U 
 
 
IV 15 Elm Circle – Continued – Resolution to repair or demolish ................................................. Tab V 
 
 
V Status Reports – 10 Burch Ave, 280 West Washington St, 121 Pinson St, 180 

West Washington St, 17 Ray St, 11 Melson St, 15 Elm Circle ............................................... Tab W 
 
 
VI Public Hearing – Walter Drake is requesting to change the zoning on 1.23+ 

acres located at 5, 8 and 9 Ellis Street and 65, 66, 69 and 70 Fair Street from 
CHV (Heavy Commercial District and CUN (Urban Neighborhood Commercial 
District to RU-I (Urban Residential Dwelling District – Historical and Infill) .............................. Tab X 
 Ordinance to amend the Zoning Map 

 

 
 
VII Consideration of Contract Change Order for McIntosh Parkway/Greison Trail 

Culvert to Accommodate LINC Section C ................................................................................ Tab Y 
 
 
VIII 2nd and Final Reading - Special Election Referendum – Sunday Brunch 

Ordinance / Resolution ............................................................................................................. Tab Z 
 
 
IX 2nd and Final Reading – Newnan Utilities – Grease Ordinance Amendment ....................... Tab AA 
 
 
X 2nd and Final Reading – Ordinance to Amend the Zoning Map for Property 

Located off Highway 29 North and Old Atlanta Road 17.97+ acres, in Land Lot 88 
of the Fifth Land District in the City of Newnan, Georgia ....................................................... Tab BB 

 

 
 
VISITORS, PETITIONS, COMMUNICATIONS & COMPLAINTS 
 
 

I Request from Newnan Junior Service League to hold their 5K/10K and Fun Run 
around downtown Newnan on the same route as in previous years on March 14, 
2020 beginning at 7:30 am .................................................................................................... Tab CC 

 
 
II Request from Brenda Dunn for Woodbine Neighborhood Association to host a 

block party at the end of Woodlane Drive which is a cul-de-sac with no exits on 
August 23, 2019 beginning mid-day ...................................................................................... Tab DD 

 
 
III Foundation Christian Church requests to close portion of Armory Road from 11 

am – 3 pm for events on Sundays 6/30/2019 and 7/28/2019 ................................................ Tab EE 
 
 
 
 
 



NEWNAN CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA – June 18, 2019 @ 6:30 P.M. ................................ Page 4 
 
IV Presentation of Ruth Hill Elementary Youth Leadership Book, an outcropping 

from the Crime Reduction Task Force 
 
 
V Request from Jennifer Yaeger to use Greenville Street Parking Spaces for food 

trucks for Frayed Edges Festival scheduled on August 17, 2019 at the park ........................ Tab FF 
 
 
VII Request from Deidre Bembry to hold Keris Kares 5K on May 16, 2020 on the 

same route used in previous years beginning at 6:00 am ..................................................... Tab GG 
 
 
VII Request use of Public Right of Ways for Kiki Tree Pictures, Inc., filming of “The 

Conjuring 3” during dates in June and July 2019 .................................................................. Tab HH 
 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – LEGAL, PERSONNEL AND REAL ESTATE 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 





















CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING                                     ________ JUNE 12, 2019     

The special called meeting of the Coweta County Commissioners and all Municipalities 

including the City of Newnan, Georgia was held on June 12, 2019 at 6:00 p.m. in the 

Coweta County Commissioners Office at the Coweta County Administration Building 

with Michael Fouts, County Administrator presiding.  Cynthia Jenkins, Mayor Pro Tem 

presiding over City of Newnan. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Jenkins called the meeting to order. 

 

PRESENT 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Cynthia Jenkins; Council members present:  George Alexander, Ray 

DuBose, Paul Guillaume, Dustin Koritko and Rhodes Shell; Absent:  Mayor Keith Brady 

Also in attendance:  City Manager, Cleatus Phillips; Assistant City Manager, Hasco 

Craver; and City Attorney, Brad Sears 

 

 

PRESENTATION – COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR MICHAEL FOUTS:  

DISTRIBUTION, INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT, PROJECTS LIST 

  

No Action by City of Newnan. 

                      

 

ADJOURNMENT  

 

Motion to adjourn by George Alexander seconded by Ray DuBose to adjourn the meeting 

at 6:24 p.m.    

 

MOTION CARRIED. (6-0) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

______________________________  ______________________________ 

Della Hill, City Clerk     Keith Brady, Mayor 



City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 
 
Date: June 18, 2019   
 
Agenda Item:  City Park Planning 
 
Prepared by:   Mike Furbush, City Landscape Architect/Arborist 

 
 
 
Purpose:     Consideration of Parks Commission recommendation regarding CJ Smith Park and 
Future Parks 
 
Background:    During the 2019 Council Retreat, staff presented three park ideas for discussion.  
These ideas included a pickleball facility at Diplomat Parkway, renovations at CJ Smith Park, and 
renovations to Pickett Field.  Council gave support to all three projects, but asked staff to place 
CJ Smith Park at the top of the list and present Council with a schedule for the other parks.   
 
CJ Smith Park 

 Budget – TBD  

 Funding Source – 2019 SPLOST 

 Schedule – Design Late 2019, Construction 2020 
On May 22, 2019 a conceptual Master Plan for CJ Smith was presented at a public 
meeting held at the park.  The master plan included splash pads, adventure playground, 
pavilions, restrooms, skate and bike park facilities, expanded parking, and grassed play 
areas.  The meeting was well attended and a summary of comments is attached.  The 
Parks Commission met after the public meeting to review the comments and master plan 
and is recommending that City Council adopt the Master Plan and move forward in 
selecting a design team to prepare a final plan and establish a reasonable budget.   

 
Pickett Field Renovations 

 Budget – TBD  

 Funding Source – 2019 SPLOST 

 Schedule – Design 2020, Construction 2021 
This project will completely renovate the baseball field.  The intent is to upgrade the field 
so that it accommodates all ages of baseball and softball.  The idea is to also design the 
field so that it is adaptable for football, soccer and lacrosse.  The project would include 
new seating, concessions, dugouts, score boards and shaded viewing areas.  

 
Pickleball Facility 

 Budget – TBD  

 Funding Source – TBD 

 Schedule – TBD 
This idea was originally presented to Council for a piece of city-owned property east of 
Interstate 85.  The property is undeveloped thus requiring all elements of site development 
(grading, stormwater, water, sewer, electric, parking) before pickleball courts can be 
provided.  This substantially impacts the cost of providing such courts.  Staff supports the 
construction of pickleball courts, but would prefer to look at alternate sites where existing 
infrastructure exists.  Staff would like to prepare some research on potential sites and 
report back to Council.  This may enable the City to deliver pickleball courts at a much 
lower cost.  

 
Regarding the budget and available resources, it is likely that the renovations at CJ Smith and 
Pickett Field will require the majority of the $7M allocation in SPLOST 19.  Exact budget numbers 



will be presented when we are further into the design process.  This would mean that if Council 
were to proceed with a pickleball facility the funding source would likely be uncommitted fund 
balance.   
 
It is also important to note, that cash flow within the SPLOST 19 fund will be tight during the first 
few years due to expediting the next four segments of the LINC.  This may require an internal 
loan from the General Fund if we elect to build these parks within the next couple years.   
 
Recommendation:  It is the recommendation of the Parks Commission that City Council approve 
the conceptual Master Plan for CJ Smith Park and proceed with selecting a design team to 
prepare a final plan and specific project budget.  
 
It is the recommendation of Staff that City Council also approve the schedule for Pickett Field 
renovations and authorize staff to look at other options for potential placement of pickle ball courts.  
 
Attachments:     CJ Smith Concept Plans 
   Sample of Comment Cards 
   Summary of Concept Plan Comments 
          
Previous Discussions with Council: Council Retreat 















 

 

SANDERS, HAUGEN, & SEARS, P.C. 
Attorneys at Law 
11 Perry Street 

P. O. Box 1177 
Newnan, Georgia 30264-1177 

(770) 253-3880 
FAX (770) 254-0093 

 
 
C. BRADFORD SEARS, JR.      WALTER D. SANDERS 
E-MAIL: bsears@sandershaugen.com               (1909- 1989) 

 
TO:  The City Council of the City of Newnan 
 
CC:  Cleatus Phillips, City Manager 
  Jane Scoggins, Election Superintendent 
  Della Hill, City Clerk 

 
FROM: C. Bradford Sears, Jr., City Attorney 
  Sanders, Haugen & Sears, P.C. 
 
DATE:  May 21, 2019 
 
RE:  2019 General Election 
________________________________________________________________________ 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 At your request, this is to provide you with the information and time 
schedules for the November 5, 2019 General Election.   
 
 The Official Code of Georgia Annotated Section 21-2-131 provides that 
each candidate or his designee shall file a notice of his or her candidacy at the 
office of the City Clerk during the qualifying period of three (3) days to start on 
Monday, August 19, 2019, at 8:30 a.m. and closing on Wednesday, August 21, 
2019 at 4:30 p.m., with an hour for lunch permitted. 
 
 O.C.G.A. Code Section 21-2-224 provides that the registration books be 
closed on the 5th Monday prior to the election unless the Monday is a 
recognized holiday, then on the next Tuesday.  This year that will be Monday, 
October 7, 2019 at 4:30 p.m. 
 
 I call your attention to O.C.G.A. Section 21-2-131(a)(1) providing for the 
setting of qualification fees.  The qualification fees were set and published in the 
newspaper prior to February 1, 2019.  The fees are set by law at three percent 

(3%) of the annual salary of the office, in this case of the Councilmembers for 
Election District One, Post A and Post B and Election District Three, Post A and 
Post B said fees shall be $165.00. 
 
 I am enclosing herewith resolutions setting the opening and closing dates 
of the qualification of candidates and a copy of the Notice of Call of Election for 
the General Election. 
 
 These resolutions should be adopted no later than July 18, 2019. 



 

 

NOTICE OF CALL OF GENERAL ELECTION 
AND QUALIFYING REQUIREMENTS 

TO THE QUALIFIED VOTERS OF THE CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA 
 

 Notice is hereby given that the City of Newnan, Georgia, will hold a 
General Election Tuesday, November 5, 2019, to elect Councilmembers for 
Election District One, Post A and Post B and Election District Three, Post A and 
Post B for the City of Newnan for which the qualifying fee for Councilmembers 
will be One Hundred Sixty Five Dollars ($165.00).  Candidates desiring to 
qualify may do so from Monday, August 19, 2019 at 8:30 a.m. through 
Wednesday, September 2, 2015 at 4:30 p.m., with an hour for lunch being 
permitted, by filing a notice of his or her candidacy and paying the qualifying 
fee to Della Hill, City Clerk, at the Office of the City Clerk, City Hall, 25 
LaGrange Street, in the City of Newnan, Georgia. 
 

 Registration books are now open to register any voters and will remain 
open through Monday, October 7, 2019 at 4:30 p.m. at the office of the Coweta 
Registrar, Coweta County Administration Building, 22 East Broad Street, 
Newnan, Georgia or the Office of the City Clerk, City Hall, 25 LaGrange Street, 
City of Newnan, Georgia, or at all places where registration is permitted by law. 
 
 The polling place will be the Newnan City Hall, 25 LaGrange Street, 
Newnan, Georgia, and the polls will be open from 7:00 o’clock a.m. to 7:00 
o’clock p.m. 
 
 The date for a run-off election, if required, shall be December 3, 2019. 
 
 As set forth in the American with Disabilities Act of 1992, the City of 
Newnan does not discriminate on the basis of disability and will assist citizens 
with special needs, as provided by law.  For information please call (770) 253-
2682. 
 
 This _____ day of August, 2019. 
 
 
      Jane Scoggins 
      Election Superintendent 
      City of Newnan 



 

 

RESOLUTION 
 

 WHEREAS, the Charter of the City of Newnan provides for a General 
Election to be held on the first Tuesday following the first Monday in November, 
2019, to elect Councilmembers for Election District One, Post A and Post B and 
Election District Three, Post A and Post B for the City of Newnan, said date 
being November 5, 2019;  and 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 21-2-132 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated 
provides for the governing authority to set the opening and closing dates for the 
qualifying of candidates for said office. 
 
 THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the opening qualifying date for the 
election of Councilmembers for Election District One, Post A and Post B and 
Election District Three, Post A and Post B for the City of Newnan shall be 
opened at 8:30 a.m., Monday, August 19, 2019, and the closing of the 

qualification time shall be 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, August 21, 2019, with an 
hour for lunch being permitted.  Candidates desiring to qualify shall file a 
notice of his or her candidacy and paying the qualifying fee to Della Hill, City 
Clerk, at the Office of the City Clerk, City Hall, 25 LaGrange Street, in the City 
of Newnan, Georgia. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the fee for qualifying for election as 
Councilmembers for the City of Newnan shall be One Hundred Sixty Five 
Dollars ($165.00). 
 
 IT IS SO RESOLVED this _____ day of _______________________, 2019. 
 
 
ATTEST:     ____________________________________ 
      L. Keith Brady, Mayor 
_________________________________ 
Della Hill, City Clerk     
      ____________________________________ 
      Cynthia E. Jenkins, Mayor Pro-Tem 
REVIEWED AS TO FORM: 
 
_________________________________  ____________________________________ 
C. Bradford Sears, Jr., City Attorney George M. Alexander, Councilmember 
 
 
________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Cleatus Phillips, City Manager  Raymond F. DuBose, Councilmember 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Rhodes H. Shell, Councilmember 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Dustin Koritko, Councilmember 
 
      ___________________________________ 

Paul Guillaume, Councilmember 
 



 

 

RESOLUTION 
 

 WHEREAS, the City of Newnan, Georgia shall hold a general election for 
the election of Councilmembers for Election District One, Post A and Post B and 
Election District Three, Post A and Post B for the City of Newnan, Georgia on 
November 5, 2019;  and 
 
 WHEREAS, O.C.G.A. §21-2-70 requires the election by the governing 
authority of an election superintendent who shall conduct the municipal 
election in accordance with requirements of the Georgia Municipal Elections 
Code and an assistant election superintendent and absentee ballot clerk who 
shall have such powers and shall perform such duties as proscribed by 
O.C.G.A. §21-2-70 and O.C.G.A. §21-2-70.1. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of 
the City of Newnan and it is hereby resolved by the authority of same that Jane 

Scoggins is hereby appointed election superintendent for the November 5, 2019 
general election and further resolved that the election superintendent shall 
conduct the election in accordance with the Georgia Municipal Election Code 
and who shall have such powers and shall perform such duties as set forth 
therein. 
 
 Adopted in open session regularly assembled this _____ day of 
_______________________, 2019. 
 
 
ATTEST:     ___________________________________ 
      L. Keith Brady, Mayor 
_________________________________ 
Della Hill, City Clerk     
      ___________________________________ 
      Cynthia E. Jenkins, Mayor Pro-Tem 
REVIEWED AS TO FORM: 
 
_________________________________  ___________________________________ 
C. Bradford Sears, Jr., City Attorney George M. Alexander, Councilmember 
 
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Cleatus Phillips, City Manager  Raymond F. DuBose, Councilmember 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Rhodes H. Shell, Councilmember 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Dustin Koritko, Councilmember 
 
 
      _________________________________ 

Paul Guillaume, Councilmember 



 

 

TSPLOST INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
 
 
 THIS TSPLOST INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT, (this “Agreement”) is dated 
as of June 12, 2019, and is entered into by and among COWETA COUNTY (the “County”), a 
political subdivision of the State of Georgia, and the CITY OF NEWNAN (“Newnan”), the CITY 
OF GRANTVILLE (“Grantville”), the CITY OF SENOIA (“Senoia”), the CITY OF PALMETTO 
(“Palmetto”), the TOWN OF MORELAND (“Moreland”), the TOWN OF SHARPSBURG 
(“Sharpsburg”), the TOWN OF TURIN (“Turin”), the CITY OF HARALSON (“Haralson”), and 
the CITY OF CHATTAHOOCHEE HILLS (“Chattahoochee Hills”), and together Newnan, 
Grantville, Senoia, Palmetto, Moreland, Sharpsburg, Turin, Haralson, and Chattahoochee Hills the 
“Cities”), municipal corporations of the State of Georgia. 
 

W I T N E S S E T H: 
 
 WHEREAS, the County is authorized pursuant to O.C.G.A. Section 48-8-260 et seq., as 
amended (the “TSPLOST Act”) to levy and collect a single-county one percent transportation sales 
and use tax (the “TSPLOST”) for “transportation purpose” (as defined in the TSPLOST Act); and 
 

WHEREAS, the County determined that (a) the region has not proposed a referendum on 
a tax under Article 5 of Chapter 8 of Title 48 and (b) the County is currently levying a one 
percent special purpose sale and use tax under Part 1 of Article 3 of Chapter 8 of Title 48, which 
is referred to as the “SPLOST;” and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County delivered a written notice to the mayor or chief elected official in 
each of the Cities setting forth the date, time and place for a meeting of the governing authority of 
the County and of each of the Cities to discuss possible projects for inclusion in the Referendum 
(hereinafter defined), and such notice was delivered at least ten days prior to the meeting; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the meeting was duly held on June 12, 2019; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Article IX, Section III, Paragraph I (a) of the Georgia Constitution and the 
TSPLOST Act authorize the County and the Cities to enter into an “intergovernmental agreement” 
(as defined in the TSPLOST Act) in order to, among other things, identify the projects that will be 
funded with the TSPLOST. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises and undertakings as 
hereinafter set forth and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 
which are hereby acknowledged, the County and the Cities DO HEREBY AGREE, as follows: 
 
  



 

2 

ARTICLE 1. 
 

REPRESENTATIONS 
 

a. Each of the Cities makes the following representations with respect to itself as the 
basis for the undertakings on its part herein contained: 
 

i. The City is a municipal corporation duly created and organized under the 
Constitution and laws of the State of Georgia (the “State”).  Under the 
Constitution and laws of the State, the City is authorized to execute, deliver, 
and perform its obligations under this Agreement.  The City has duly 
authorized the execution, delivery, and performance of this Agreement.  
This Agreement is a valid, binding and enforceable obligation of the City. 
 

ii. No approval or other action by any governmental authority or agency or 
other person is required in connection with the execution, delivery and 
performance of this Agreement by the City, except as shall have been 
obtained as of the date hereof. 
 

iii. The authorization, execution, delivery, and performance by the City of this 
Agreement do not violate its charter, any ordinances of the City or the laws 
or Constitution of the State and do not constitute a breach of or a default 
under any existing court order, administrative regulation, or other legal 
decree, or any agreement, indenture, mortgage, lease, note, or other 
instrument to which it is a party or by which it is bound. 
 

iv. There is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry, or investigation, at law or in 
equity, before or by any court, public board or body, pending or, to the 
knowledge of the City, threatened against or affecting the City (or, to the 
knowledge of the City, any meritorious basis therefore) (i) contesting or 
questioning the existence of the City or the titles of the present officers of 
the City to their offices or (ii) wherein an unfavorable decision, ruling, or 
finding would (A) adversely affect the enforceability of this Agreement or 
(B) materially adversely affect the transactions contemplated by this 
Agreement. 
 

v. The City is not in violation of the laws or Constitution of the State and is 
not in default under any existing court order, administrative regulation, or 
other legal decree, or any agreement, indenture, mortgage, lease, note, or 
other instrument to which it is a party or by which it is bound. 
 

vi. The City is a “qualified municipality” within the meaning of the TSPLOST 
Act and more particularly O.C.G.A. Section 48-8-110(4). 
 

vii. The City is located entirely or partially within the geographic boundaries of 
the County. 



 

3 

 
b. The County makes the following representations as the basis for the undertakings 

on its part herein contained: 
 
i. The County is a political subdivision duly created and organized under the 

Constitution and laws of the State.  Under the Constitution and laws of the 
State, the County is authorized to execute, deliver, and perform its 
obligations under this Agreement.  The County has duly authorized the 
execution, delivery, and performance of this Agreement.  This Agreement 
is a valid, binding, and enforceable obligation of the County. 
 

ii. No approval or other action by any governmental authority or agency or 
other person is required in connection with the execution, delivery, and 
performance of this Agreement by the County, except as shall have been 
obtained as of the date hereof. 
 

iii. The authorization, execution, delivery, and performance by the County of 
this Agreement do not violate the laws or Constitution of the State and do 
not constitute a breach of or a default under any existing court order, 
administrative regulation, or other legal decree, or any agreement, 
indenture, mortgage, lease, note, or other instrument to which it is a party 
or by which it is bound. 
 

iv. There is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry, or investigation, at law or in 
equity, before or by any court, public board or body, pending or, to the 
knowledge of the County, threatened against or affecting the County (or, to 
the knowledge of the County, any meritorious basis therefore) (i) contesting 
or questioning the existence of the County or the titles of the present officers 
of the County to their offices or (ii) wherein an unfavorable decision, ruling 
or finding would (A) adversely affect the enforceability of this Agreement 
or (B) materially adversely affect the transactions contemplated by this 
Agreement. 
 

v. The County is not in violation of the laws or the Constitution of the State 
and is not in default under any existing court order, administrative 
regulation, or other legal decree, or any agreement, indenture, mortgage, 
lease, note, or other instrument to which it is a party or by which it is bound. 
 

 
  



 

4 

ARTICLE 2. 
 

REFERENDUM 
 

The County will take all actions necessary to call a referendum to be held in all voting 
precincts in the County on the 5th day of November, 2019 for the purpose of submitting to the 
voters of the County for their approval the question of whether or not (a) a special one percent  
TSPLOST shall be imposed in the special district consisting of the County for a period of time not 
to exceed five years and for the raising of not more than an estimated amount of $125,000,000 for 
Transportation Purpose (hereinafter defined) and (b) up to $55,000,000 in aggregate principal 
amount of general obligation debt of the County (the “Debt”) may be issued in order to fund in 
whole or in part the Projects (hereinafter defined), capitalized interest on the Debt and the costs of 
issuing the Debt (the “Referendum”).   

 
 

ARTICLE 3. 
 

CONDITIONS PRECEDENT 
 

 The obligations of the County and the Cities pursuant to this Agreement are conditioned 
upon the following:   

 
a. The adoption by the County of a resolution requesting the Referendum. 

 
b. The proper call of the Referendum by the election superintendent, including, but not 

limited to the publication of the call and the publication of the notice of election. 
 

c. The approval of the imposition of the TSPLOST by the voters of the County in the 
Referendum. 
 

d. The collection of the TSPLOST by the state revenue commissioner and transferring 
the same to the County. 

 
 

ARTICLE 4. 
 

EFFECTIVE DATE AND TERM OF THE TAX 
 

If the TSPLOST is approved in the Referendum, the TSPLOST shall be imposed on the 
first day of the next succeeding calendar quarter which begins more than 80 days after the 
Referendum.  The TSPLOST shall cease to be imposed on the earliest of the following dates:   
 

a. If the Debt is the subject of validation proceedings, as of the end of the first calendar 
quarter ending more than 80 days after the date on which a court of competent 
jurisdiction enters a final order denying validation of the Debt; or 

 



 

5 

b. On the final day of the maximum period of time specified for the imposition of the 
TSPLOST; or 

 
c. As of the end of the calendar quarter during which the commissioner determines that 

the tax will have raised revenues sufficient to provide the special district net proceeds 
equal to or greater than the amount specified as the maximum amount of net proceeds 
to be raised by the tax. 

 
 

ARTICLE 5. 
 

EFFECTIVE DATE AND TERM OF THIS AGREEMENT 
 

This Agreement shall commence upon the date of its execution and shall terminate upon 
the later of: 
 

a. The official declaration of the failure of the Referendum; or 
 

b. The expenditure by the County and all of the Cities of the last dollar of money 
collected from the TSPLOST after the expiration of the TSPLOST. 

 
 

ARTICLE 6. 
 

COUNTY TSPLOST FUND; SEPARATE ACCOUNTS; NO COMMINGLING 
 

a. A special fund or account shall be created by the County and designated as the 2019 
Coweta County Transportation Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax (“2019 TSPLOST Fund”).  
The County shall select a bank which shall act as a depository and custodian of the 2019 TSPLOST 
Fund upon such terms and conditions as may be acceptable to the County. 

 
b. Each City shall create a special fund to be designated as the 2019 [City name] 

Transportation Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax Fund (the “City 2019 TSPLOST Fund”).  
Each City shall select a bank which shall act as a depository and custodian of the City 2019 
TSPLOST Fund upon such terms and conditions as may be acceptable to the City. 

 
c. All TSPLOST proceeds shall be maintained by the County and each City in the 

separate accounts or funds established pursuant to this Article.  TSPLOST proceeds shall not be 
commingled with other funds of the County or the Cities and shall be used exclusively for the 
purposes detailed in this Agreement.   
 
 



 

6 

ARTICLE 7. 
 

PROCEDURE FOR DISBURSEMENT OF TSPLOST PROCEEDS 
 

a. Upon receipt by the County of TSPLOST proceeds collected by the state 
department of revenue, the County shall immediately deposit said proceeds in the 2019 TSPLOST 
Fund.  Within the 2019 TSPLOST Fund, the County shall create three sub-accounts: the “Debt 
Service Account”, the “County Account” and the “City Account.”  TSPLOST proceeds that will 
be used to pay the debt service on the Debt shall be deposited into the Debt Service Account; 
TSPLOST proceeds that will be used to fund County Projects (hereinafter defined) not funded 
with Debt shall be deposited into the County Account; and TSPLOST proceeds that will be used 
to fund City Projects (hereinafter defined) not funded with Debt shall be deposited into the City 
Account. The monies in the County Account shall be held and applied to the cost of acquiring, 
constructing and equipping the County Projects. 

 
b. The County shall establish a twelve-month period as the “Sinking Fund Year” for 

the Debt.  Within each Sinking Fund Year, the TSPLOST proceeds of each beneficiary of the Debt 
shall be deposited into the Debt Service Account until there is an amount therein sufficient to pay 
that beneficiary’s pro-rata share of the debt service coming due on the Debt for such Sinking Fund 
Year.  After a beneficiary of the Debt has funded its pro-rata share of the debt service coming due 
on the Debt for the Sinking Fund Year, the remaining TSPLOST proceeds of that beneficiary shall 
be disbursed into the County Account or the City Account as appropriate. 
 

c. All funds deposited monthly into the City Account shall be transferred from the 
County to the Cities within ten business days of County’s receipt of the same.  Each disbursement 
to the Cities shall be made by check unless a City provides written wire transfer instructions to the 
County and pays all costs associated with such wire transfer.  The proceeds received by the Cities 
shall be deposited in the separate funds established by each City in accordance with Article 6 of 
this Agreement.  Each City shall hold and apply the TSPLOST proceeds to the cost of acquiring, 
constructing, and equipping the City Projects.   

 
d. Should any City cease to exist as a legal entity before all funds are distributed under 

this Agreement, that City’s share of the funds subsequent to dissolution shall be paid to the County 
as part of the County’s share unless an act of the Georgia General Assembly makes the defunct 
City part of another successor municipality.  If such an act is passed, the defunct City’s share shall 
be paid to the successor municipality in addition to all other funds to which the successor 
municipality would otherwise be entitled. 

 
 

  



 

7 

ARTICLE 8. 
 

DIVISION OF TSPLOST PROCEEDS 
 

The TSPLOST proceeds shall be divided among the County and the Cities as follows: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Notwithstanding the provisions of this Article, the County and the Cities hereto 
acknowledge and agree that the TSPLOST received by it in each year shall be applied first to the 
payment of the Debt issued for its benefit. 

 
 

ARTICLE 9. 
 

PURPOSE; PROJECTS AND PROJECT PROVISIONS 
 

a. The TSPLOST will fund the following transportation purpose: roads, streets and 
bridges, including without limitation road, street, and bridge purposes pursuant to paragraph (1) of 
subsection (b) of O.C.G.A Section 48-8-121 and roads that may be owned, operated, or 
administered by the State, and all accompanying infrastructure and services necessary to provide 
access to these transportation facilities  (the “Transportation Purpose”).  

 
b.  The County and the Cities estimate that if the maximum authorized amount of 

TSPLOST proceeds are actually collected, they will spend the amounts on Transportation Purpose, 
in accordance with the division of TSPLOST proceeds in Article 8.   

 
c. The “Projects” to be funded with the TSPLOST shall consist of “County Projects” 

and “City Projects.”  The County Projects and the City Projects are set forth on Exhibit A.  The 
parties acknowledge and agree that the that 30% of the estimate revenues are being expended on 
Projects that are consistent with the Statewide Strategic Transportation Plan as defined in O.C.G.A. 
Section 32-2-22(a)(6). 

 
d. The parties acknowledge and agree that the desirability of or need for a Project may 

change based upon any number of factors, including, but not limited to, State or federal 
participation in a Project, the actual transportation needs of the community at the time of 
construction, the actual costs of the Projects or the actual TSPLOST collections.  Therefore, the 

Chattahoochee Hills 0.0000% 
Haralson 0.1323% 
Turin 0.2379% 
Sharpsburg 0.2489% 
Moreland 0.3078% 
Palmetto 0.3503% 
Grantville 2.2411% 
Senoia 2.9802% 
Newnan 27.2747% 
County 66.2268% 



 

8 

parties agree to negotiate in good faith amendments to the Project list in Exhibit A if an amendment 
is requested.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, neither the County nor the City shall abandon a 
Project unless such abandonment is permitted under Georgia laws, including, but not limited to, 
the TSPLOST Act.   

 
e. The Projects may be funded in any order. 
 
f. The County shall promptly proceed with the acquisition and construction of the 

County Projects as soon as TSPLOST or Debt proceeds are available.  Each City shall promptly 
proceed with the acquisition and construction of its respective City Projects as soon as TSPLOST 
or Debt proceeds are available.   

 
g. The County shall own and operate the County Projects.  The City Projects shall be 

owned and operated by the respective City.   
 
h. The County shall be responsible for paying or providing for all the costs of 

operating, maintaining and insuring the County Projects.  Each City shall be responsible for paying 
or providing for all the costs of operating, maintaining and insuring its respective City Projects. 

 
 

ARTICLE 10. 
 

THE DEBT 
 
a. The ballot shall contain the language required by the TSPLOST Act for the 

authorization of up to $55,000,000 of Debt.  The Debt may be issued by the County in whole or in 
part and in one or more series for purposes of funding in whole or in part the Projects, capitalized 
interest on the Debt and the costs of issuing the Debt.  The County shall remit to the Cities their 
pro rata share of the Debt proceeds within three business days of the County’s receipt of same to 
enable the Cities to acquire and construct the City Projects.  The Cities each acknowledge that it 
is responsible for the payment of that portion of the Debt allocable to its Projects, including its 
pro rata share of issuance expense (the “City Debt”) and the payment of that portion of the 
arbitrage rebate allocable to the City Debt.  The County acknowledges that it is responsible for the 
payment of the rest of the Debt (the “County Debt”).  

 
b. The Debt shall be paid first from the proceeds of the TSPLOST.  In the event that 

there are insufficient TSPLOST to pay the Debt, the County shall pay any shortfall attributable to 
the County Debt from its general fund, and the Cities shall pay any shortfall attributable to the City 
Debt from their general funds (the “Debt Service Payments”).  The County and the Cities covenant 
that, in order to make the Debt Service Payments when due from their general funds to the extent 
required, they will exercise their power of taxation to the extent necessary to timely pay any 
amounts required to be paid hereunder, and they will make available and use for such payments 
all taxes levied and collected for that purpose together with funds received from any other source.  
The County and the Cities further covenant and agree that in order to make funds available for 
such purpose, they will, in their general revenue, appropriation, and budgetary measures whereby 
their tax funds or revenues and the allocation thereof are controlled or provided for, include sums 



 

9 

sufficient to timely satisfy such Debt Service Payments that may be required to be made from the 
general funds, whether or not any other sums are included in such measure, until all payments so 
required to be made shall have been made in full.  The obligation of the County and the Cities to 
make any payments that may be required to be made from their general funds shall constitute a 
general obligation of the County and the Cities and a pledge of the full faith and credit of the 
County and the Cities to provide the funds required to timely fulfill any such obligation. 

 
In the event for any reason any such provision or appropriation is not made as provided in 

the preceding paragraph, then the fiscal officers of the County and the Cities are hereby authorized 
and directed to set up as an appropriation on their accounts in the appropriate fiscal year the 
amounts required to timely pay the obligations which may be due from the general funds.  The 
amount of such appropriation shall be due and payable and shall be expended for the purpose of 
paying any such obligations, and such appropriation shall have the same legal status as if the 
County and the Cities had included the amount of the appropriation in their general revenue, 
appropriation, and budgetary measures, and the fiscal officers of the County and the Cities shall 
immediately make such Debt Service Payments to the paying agent for the Debt if for any reason 
the payment of such obligations shall not otherwise have been timely made. 

 
c.  The obligations of the County and the Cities to make the Debt Service Payments and to 

perform and observe the other agreements on their part contained in this Article 9 shall be absolute 
and unconditional.  Until such time as the principal of and interest on the Debt shall have been 
paid in full or provision for the payment thereof shall have been made, the County and the Cities 
(a) will not suspend or discontinue any payments provided for herein, (b) will perform and observe 
all of their other agreements contained in this Agreement, and (c) will not terminate this 
Agreement for any cause, including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, failure to 
complete any Project, a defect in any Project or any failure of the other party to perform and 
observe any agreement, whether express or implied, or any duty, liability or obligation arising out 
of or connected with this Agreement. 

 
d.  The County shall be responsible for all aspects of the Debt issuance process.  The 

County will select the underwriter, bond counsel, local counsel, etc.  The County will keep the 
Cities informed of the progression of the Debt issuance. 

 
 
ARTICLE 11. 

 
RECORD KEEPING AND AUDIT PROCEDURES 

 
a. The County and the Cities agree to maintain thorough and accurate records 

concerning receipt and expenditure of TSPLOST.  The Cities shall have the right to review and be 
provided copies of all such records of receipt of TSPLOST proceeds upon request to the County. 

 
b. The County and the City shall keep a record of each and every one of its 

Transportation Purpose for which the proceeds of the TSPLOST are used.  A schedule shall be 
included in each annual audit which shows for each such Transportation Purpose the original 
estimated cost, the current estimated cost if it is not the original estimated cost, amounts expended 



 

10 

in prior years and amounts expended in the current year.  The auditor shall verify and test 
expenditures sufficient to provide assurances that the schedule is fairly presented in relation to the 
financial statements.  The auditor’s report on the financial statements shall include an opinion, or 
the disclaimer of an opinion, as to whether the schedule is presented fairly in all material respects 
in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.   The costs of keeping such records, of 
preparing the schedule and the audit/opinion shall be borne by each party.  

 
c. Not later than December 31 of each year, the County and each of the Cities shall 

publish annually, in a newspaper of general circulation in the boundaries of the County or the City, 
a simple nontechnical report which shows for each of its Transportation Purpose the original 
estimated cost, the current estimated cost if it is not the original estimated cost, amounts expended 
in prior years, an amounts expended in the current year.  The report shall also include a statement 
of what corrective action the County or the City intends to implement with respect to a 
Transportation Purpose which is underfunded or behind schedule and a statement of any surplus 
funds which have not been expended for a Transportation Purpose.   

 
d. In the event that the City does not comply with the requirements of this Article, the 

County shall not be held liable in any manner for such noncompliance.  In the event that the County 
does not comply with the requirements of this paragraph, the Cities shall not be held liable in any 
manner for such noncompliance. 

 
 

ARTICLE 12. 
 

NOTICES 
 

All notices, consents, waivers, directions, requests or other instruments or communications 
provided for under this Agreement shall be deemed properly given when delivered personally or 
sent by registered or certified United States mail, postage prepaid, as follows: 

 
a. Coweta County Board of Commissioners  

22 East Broad Street 
Newnan, Georgia 30263 
Attention:  County Administrator 

 
b. City of Newnan 

Post Office Box 1193 
Newnan, Georgia 30264 
Attention:  City Manager 

 
c. City of Grantville 

Post Office Box 160 
Grantville, Georgia 30220 
Attention:  City Manager 
 

d. City of Senoia 



 

11 

Post Office Box 310 
Senoia, Georgia 30276 
Attention:  City Administrator 

 
e. City of Palmetto 

Post Office Box 190 
Palmetto, Georgia 30268 
Attention:  City Manager 
 

f. Town of Moreland 
Post Office Box 158 
Moreland, Georgia 30259 
Attention:  Mayor 
 

g. Town of Sharpsburg 
Post Office Box  397 
Sharpsburg, Georgia 30277 
Attention:  Mayor 
 

h. Town of Turin 
Post Office Box 86 
Turin, Georgia 30289 
Attention:  Mayor 
 

i. City of Haralson 
Post Office Box 155 
Haralson, Georgia 30229 
Attention:  Mayor 

 
j. City of Chattahoochee Hills 

6505 Rico Road 
Chattahoochee Hills, Georgia 30268 
Attention:  Mayor 
 

 
 

ARTICLE 13. 
 

MISCELLANEOUS 
 

a. Any controversy arising under this Agreement shall first be submitted to mediation 
by a mediator mutually agreeable to the parties.  To the extent the parties are unable to resolve the 
dispute in mediation, the parties agree to submit the dispute to binding arbitration pursuant to the 
provisions of O.C.G.A. Sections 9-9-30 et seq., as amended (the “Arbitration Code”).  Such 
arbitration shall in all respects be governed by the provisions of the Arbitration Code, and the 
parties hereto shall comply with and be governed by the provisions of the Arbitration Code.  Unless 



 

12 

otherwise agreed by the parties, the arbitration shall be conducted by one arbitrator mutually 
agreeable by the parties.  If the parties cannot agree on an arbitrator, the dispute shall be submitted 
to the Superior Court of Coweta County, but only for the purpose of having the Judge of said court 
appoint an arbitrator.  Unless otherwise ordered by the arbitrator, each party shall bear its own 
attorney’s fees and shall share evenly in the costs of the arbitration and arbitrator’s fees. 

 
b. This Agreement constitutes all of the understandings and agreements existing 

between the County and the Cities with respect to distribution and use of the proceeds from the 
TSPLOST.  Furthermore, this Agreement supersedes all prior agreements, negotiations and 
communications of whatever type, whether written or oral, between the parties hereto with respect 
to distribution and use of said TSPLOST. 
 

c. Should any phrase, clause, sentence or paragraph of this Agreement be held invalid 
or unconstitutional, it shall in no way affect the remaining provisions of this Agreement, which 
said provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
d. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be an 

original and all of which shall constitute but one and the same instrument. 
 
e. This Agreement shall not be amended or modified except by agreement in writing 

executed by the governing authorities of the County and the Cities. 
 
f. This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the 

State of Georgia. 
 
g. The County and the Cities shall comply with all applicable local, state, and federal 

statues, ordinances, rules and regulations. 
 
h. It is the intention of the County and the Cities to comply in all respects with the 

TSPLOST Act, and all provisions of this Agreement shall be construed in light of the TSPLOST 
Act. 

 



 

(TSLPOST Intergovernmental Agreement) 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto, acting by and through their duly authorized 
officers, have caused this Agreement to be executed in multiple counterparts under seals as of the 
day and year first above written. 
 
 

COWETA COUNTY, GEORGIA 
 

(SEAL) 
 
By:  

Chairman 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
  
Clerk 



 

(TSLPOST Intergovernmental Agreement) 

CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA 
 

(SEAL) 
 
By:  

Mayor  
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
  
Clerk 
 



 

(TSLPOST Intergovernmental Agreement) 

CITY OF GRANTVILLE, GEORGIA 
 

(SEAL) 
 
By:  

Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
  
Clerk 
 



 

(TSLPOST Intergovernmental Agreement) 

CITY OF SENOIA, GEORGIA 
 

(SEAL) 
 
By:  

Mayor  
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
  
Clerk 
 
 



 

(TSLPOST Intergovernmental Agreement) 

CITY OF PALMETTO, GEORGIA 
 

(SEAL) 
 
By:  

Mayor  
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
  
Clerk 
 



 

(TSLPOST Intergovernmental Agreement) 

TOWN OF MORELAND, GEORGIA 
 

(SEAL) 
 
By:  

Mayor  
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
  
Clerk 
 



 

(TSLPOST Intergovernmental Agreement) 

TOWN OF SHARPSBURG, GEORGIA 
 

(SEAL) 
 
By:  

Mayor  
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
  
Clerk 
 



 

(TSLPOST Intergovernmental Agreement) 

TOWN OF TURIN, GEORGIA 
 

(SEAL) 
 
By:  

Mayor  
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
  
Clerk 
 



 

(TSLPOST Intergovernmental Agreement) 

CITY OF HARALSON, GEORGIA 
 

(SEAL) 
 
By:  

Mayor  
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
  
Clerk 
  



 

(TSLPOST Intergovernmental Agreement) 

CITY OF CHATTAHOOCHEE HILLS, 
GEORGIA 
 

(SEAL) 
 
By:  

Mayor  
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
  
Clerk 



 

(TSLPOST Intergovernmental Agreement) 

EXHIBIT A 
TRANSPORTATION PROJECTS 

 
[SAMPLE FOR ILLUSTRATION ONLY – FINAL LIST TBD] 

 
  Location Mode/Type Funding 
1 CC01 US 29 at SR 154 Intersection Improvement TSPLOST & 

Federal/State 
2 CC11 Gordon Road at Al Roberts Road Intersection Improvement TSPLOST 
3     
4     
5     
6     

 



������� �	
�����

� ���� ����	
��� ������������	���� ������	�	� ������	�	 ��������������������� ���������

� ���� ����	
��� ������������	���� ���������		���������� ���������		��������� ����������������� ���������

 ��� ����	
��� ������������	���� �����!��"���������� "������������ #�$��������� ���������

% ���% ����	
��� ������������	���� ���&&����	�	� '����( ������	�	 ���������

) ���) ����	
��� ������������	���� ���������	�	 ������	�	 '����( ���������

* ���* ����	
��� ������������	���� ���	�+,����,+��
����� ���	�+,����,+��
����� ���������

- ���- ����	
��� ������������	���� .
�������,+��
������ .
�������,+��
������ ���������

/ ���/ ����	
��� ������������	���� "���������0��,+��
����� "���������0��,+��
����� ���������

( ���� ���	����,�	� .�	���	���� 1���(� ����)% ��������2�	�	�

�� ���� ���	����,�	� .�	���	���� ����* 3�	������2���
���� ��������2���2�	�	�

�� ��� ���	����,�	� .�	���	���� ��4��������	����0������ ��4����������	������5�!������� ��4����������	�����* ���������

�� ���% ���	����,�	� 6��������� #!��7��0�"�,�
����8$	����� #!��7��0�"�
����!��,� ���	��.��,�	��������0��� ���������

� ���) ���	����,�	� .�	���	���� 1���(2����% 1���-#�	2���%��9����	:�&:3�������; ���������

�% ���* ���	����,�	� .�	���	���� #����"��������� 5���������� ���������

�) ���- ���	����,�	� .�	���	���� ����������	������ ��������	����� ���������

�* ���/ ���	����,�	� .�	���	���� �����	������ 3�	�����	
��������28����6��	������2'���������� ���������

�- ���( ���	����,�	� .�	���	���� 8��	��������������� ����'�������/) ���������

�/ ���� ���	����,�	� .�	���	���� ����* 8�������������� ���������

�( ���� ���	����,�	� .�	���	���� ����������� #����+�	������ ���������

�� ���� ���	����,�	� .�	���	���� ����������� 8�������������� ���������

�� ��� ���	����,�	� .�	���	���� ����* ����������2����'�������/) ���������

�� ���% ���	����,�	� .�	���	���� ����* ����������� ���������

� ���) ���	����,�	� .�	���	���� ����* �������"�
������� ���������

�% ���* ���	����,�	� .�	���	���� 6�����"�4��� .�	���	�����	��,�0����0����� .�	���	�����	�����* ���������

��������
�
���� 	������ ����������� �����������������

���������
������� ����
��������!����������"�������������



������� �	
�������������
�
���� 	������ ����������� �����������������

���������
������� ����
��������!����������"�������������

�) ���/ ���	����,�	� .�	���	���� �����5��		
�������� ����������"�,�
��� ���������

�* ���( ���	����,�	� ���������4��	���� �����5��		
����������4��	������.!4��
!�	�� �,���
������� ����)% ���������

�- ���� ���	����,�	� .�	���	���� ��.�	��������� ������� ���������

�/ ����# ���	����,�	� .�	���	���� ����)% '�!!��0��� .:/) ��������2�	�	�

�( ��� ���	����,�	� 6��������� .:/)��	�#!��7��0�.�	������<�����,�����������������	��:����� �����'���=����0����
8$	������9����!������8��������2>���������;

���������

 � ���% ���	����,�	� .�	���	���� ���)%��	�"�+��!�	� ���������

 � 68�� 6���� 6��������� #������	�	�8$	����� #,�,�	�>��
 8��	�3������	����	�	 ���������

 � 68�� 6���� .�	���	���� ���
�����	� ���������

  68� 6���� .�	���	���� ���
�����	� �4���#
�,

 % 68�% 6���� ���������4��	���� 6��������������"�
� �	��������>��
 ��4��������� ���������

 ) 68�) 6���� ���������4��	���� ",���+������� % ?&&������	�	 ��0�����3�� ��������2�	�	�

 * 68�* 6���� .�	���	���� .�	�����	������4��	�	�������	! ���������

 - 68�- 6���� .�	���	���� ���������	�	 3�	����0������ "����>��
 ���������

 / 68�/ 6���� ���������4��	���� ?&&������	2����0��	2?��0�����	 ���!�������	�	 ���������

 ( 68�(# 6���� ���������4��	����� �����5��		
�������� 6��������������"�4��� 6��������������"�
� �
�������25����2�	�	

%� 68�(" 6���� ���������4��	����� �����5��		
�������� ������������ 6��������������"�4��� �
�������25����2�	�	

%� 68�(� 6���� ���������4��	����� �����5��		
�������� 6��������������"�
� �,���
������� �
�������25����2�	�	

%� 68�� 6���� ���	���� 6������.6�

% 68� 6���� .�	���	���� ��,���+�,	�?&&������	 ?&&������	�	 �4���+�������� ���������

%% �'�� ����4�+,�� ���������4��	���� '���)% ���������

%) �1�� �,��� ������������	���� ���������� ����������2��,	��',�	� ����* ���������

%* �1�� �,��� ���	���� ������0�:���',�	���	 3���+��0������ �,�������� ���������

%- �1� �,��� ���	���� ������0�:��,������ �@�',�	���	 3���+��0���� ���������

%/ �1�% �,��� .�	���	���� ����*� ����* ',�	���	�	

%( ���� ������� ������������	���� ��,����	�	<�'�������	�	<�����A��	�����>��
 ���������



������� �	
�������������
�
���� 	������ ����������� �����������������

���������
������� ����
��������!����������"�������������

)� '#�� '������� �����4��	�	�����,�4��� ���������

)� �#�� ���!		� �����4��	�	�����,�4��� ���������

)� �8�� ����� .�	���	���� ����* ����* �,!+������������2�
���0��,� ���� ��������2�	�	�

) �8�� �����2��,�	� .�	���	���� ���0��������� ���0��������� '��	�������	����0��� ���������

)% �8�/ ����� .�	���	���� ���0��������� ���0��������� .
����� ���������

)) �8�� ����� .�	���	���� ���0��������� ���0��������� ������������"�,�
��� ���������

)* �8�- ����� ������������	���� �����	��	�	 ��������+���� ��,����	�	 ���������

)- �8�/ ����� ����"����� .�������	����!�	� ���������

)/ �.�� ���	����,�	� .�	���	���� '��� %�2�"�0������ ���������

)( �.�� ���	����,�	� .�	���	���� '����*�B�>�����0�2��C����	����� ���������

*� �.� ���	����,�	� .�	���	���� 5�����������B�����$����� ���������

*� �.�% ���	����,�	� .�	���	���� ���!		�:�����������B�����$����� ���������

*� �.�) ���	����,�	� .�	���	���� ������5��		
���������B�"�+��!�	������ ���������



SANDERS, HAUGEN & SEARS, P.C. 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

11 PERRY STREET 
P. O. BOX 1177 

NEWNAN, GEORGIA 30264-1177 
(770) 253-3880 

FAX (770) 254-0093 

www.sandershaugen.com 
 

 C. BRADFORD SEARS, JR.    WALTER D. SANDERS 

E-MAIL:  bsears@sandershaugen.com          (1909 – 1989) 

          WILLIS G. HAUGEN 

               (1924 – 2014) 

 
TO:  Mayor and City Council 
  City of Newnan, Georgia 

 
CC:  Cleatus Phillips, City Manager 

  City of Newnan, Georgia 
 
FROM: C. Bradford Sears, Jr., Esq. 

  City Attorney, City of Newnan 
 

DATE: June 11, 2019 
 
RE:  Lot 5  (11 Farmer Commercial Park Drive) 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 

MEMORANDUM 

 
 

 This is to advise that the purchase of Lot 5, 11 Farmer Commercial 
Park Drive from Elizabeth F. Crain closed on May 10, 2019, at a sales 
price of $213,150.00 plus costs of $1,239.00.  A Motion is needed for the 

Council minutes ratifying the purchase of Lot 5. 
 

 
 
 MOTION: I move that the purchase of Lot 5, 11 Farmer 

Commercial Park Drive from Elizabeth F. Crain for $213,150.00 plus 
costs of $1,239.00 be hereby ratified. 

http://www.sandershaugen.com/
mailto:bsears@sandershaugen.com












P a g e  1 | 2 

 

Male Seminary Building 

STATE OF GEORGIA 
COUNTY OF COWETA 
 

LEASE CONTRACT 
 

 This agreement made and entered into this _______ day of _____________, 2019, between the 
City of Newnan, a Georgia Municipal Corporation, of the first party, hereinafter called “Lessor”, and the 
CHILDRENCONNECT NEWNAN CHILDREN’S MUSEUM, INC., a Georgia Non-Profit Corporation, of the 
second part, hereinafter called “Lessee”. 
 

WITNESSETH 
 
That for and in consideration of the activities set out hereinbelow for Lessee’s use of the premises detailed 
hereinbelow, the said Lessee has this day rented and leased from said lessor and lessor has rented and 
leased to said Lessee the following premises: 
 
 A certain building known as the Newnan Male Seminary Building located at the southeast corner 
of College Street and Temple Avenue identified as 30 Temple Avenue, to be used for a children’s museum 
and discovery center to include classroom and activity space, weekly programs, temporary and long-term 
exhibits, makerspace and staff office prepared, maintained and operated by ChildrenConnect Newnan 
Children’s Museum, Inc. for a targeted audience of toddlers and stay at home parents, home school 
groups, school field trips, after school activities and community volunteers. 
 
 The term of this lease is for a period of three (3) years commencing on the 1st day of September 
2019 and ending on the 31st day of August 2022, at 12:00 midnight. 
 
 It is further agreed, however, that said lease shall be on a year to year basis and either party 
hereto may cancel said lease by giving a ninety (90) day notice prior to the expiration of any calendar year 
of the three (3) year lease.  In addition, Lessor may terminate said lease by giving a sixty (60) day notice 
no later than thirty (30) days from the date of the first regular council meeting of each calendar year, 
otherwise said lease shall automatically renew for the calendar year. 
 
 As further consideration for said lease, the Lessee agrees to staff, operate and open the building 
a minimum of one-half day four days a week and to further staff, operate and open said building on any 
special occasion as may be requested by Lessor. 
 
 The Lessee further agrees to perform such janitorial services as are needed to maintain the 
interior of the building in a clean and neat condition. 
 
 The Lessee further agrees to provide and maintain a directional sign on Jackson Street and to also 
place and maintain a sign on or adjacent to said building.  Said signs to comply with lessors sign ordinance. 
 
 The Lessor agrees to carry fire, hazard and liability insurance on said building and grounds and to 
maintain the exterior of said building, the heating, air conditioning and lighting systems and grounds.  
Lessor agrees to be responsible for all lighting, heating, water and sewerage bills for said building. 
 
 Lessee agrees not to assign this lease or to sublet said premises or any part thereof without the 
written consent of Lessor. 
 



P a g e  2 | 2 

 

 Lessee agrees that it will deliver said premises at the expiration of the lease in as good order and 
repair as when first received, natural wear and tear expected.  Lessee agrees to make no changes of any 
nature in the above described and named premises without first obtaining the written consent of the 
Lessor. 
 
 Lessor reserves the right to enter on said premises at any time for the purpose of making repairs 
and inspecting same. 
 
 Lessee shall be responsible for carrying and paying the premium for a liability insurance policy to 
cover the actions of its paid and volunteer workers naming the Lessor as named insured.  Lessee shall be 
responsible for carrying and paying the premium for a hazard insurance policy covering the contents of 
the building. 
 
 The premises described herein shall not be used for any purpose except the purposes herein 
designated without the written consent of the Lessor. 
 
 Any and all non-fixtures which are placed within the building by Lessee shall remain the property 
of Lessee at the termination or expiration of this lease contract. 
 
 IN WITNESS THEREOF, the Lessor and the Lessee have hereunto set their hands, this day and year 
first above written. 
 

CITY OF NEWNAN, GA 
 

BY_______________________ 
Keith Brady, Mayor 

 
Attest:____________________ 

Della Hill, City Clerk 
 

Reviewed as to form: 
 
__________________________ 
C. Bradford Sears, Jr., City Attorney 

 
CHILDRENCONNECT NEWNAN 

CHILDREN’S MUSEUM, INC. 
 

BY__________________________ 
President 

 
Attest_______________________ 

Secretary 
 

Reviewed as to form: 
 
_________________________ 
Attorney 

 
 



City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 
 
Date: June 18, 2019   
 
Agenda Item:  Consideration of Real Estate Auction Listing Agreement 
between the City of Newnan and Terry Howe & Associates, Inc.  
 
Prepared and Presented by:   Hasco Craver, Assistant City Manager 

 
 
Purpose: Newnan City Council may consider a Real Estate Auction Listing Agreement between 
the City of Newnan and Terry Howe & Associates, Inc. for the online auction of certain 
properties, as identified by Newnan City Council. 
 
Background:  Newnan City Council, at the March 26, 2019 City Council Retreat, discussed the 
potential sale of certain properties.  Councilmembers spent considerable time reviewing a 
comprehensive list of properties to determine their current and future use as well as any 
potential redevelopment benefit.  It is important to note that the City’s interest in the subject 
properties varies (i.e. acquired via tax sale, fee simple title, etc.). 
 
Newnan City Council, at the April 23, 2019 Council Meeting, considered initiating rezoning for 
specific properties identified at the 2019 City Council retreat to allow for construction of 
residential structures.  City Staff suggested that an administrative variance be used in lieu of 
initiating rezoning for the majority of the city owned properties to provide potential builders more 
flexibility.  Newnan City Council was supportive of City staff’s recommendation.  
 
City staff, working in concert with the City Attorney’s office as well as Newnan Utilities, has 
reviewed the List of Subject Properties attached herein.  Please note that Newnan Utilities has 
recommended that the City retain 10 Buchanan Street (Rear) due to the location of current utility 
facilities.  In addition, Newnan Utilities has acknowledged a need to reserve certain 
infrastructure easements on nine (9) properties.   
 
City staff and the City Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Real Estate Auction Listing 
Agreement. 
 
Funding: N/A. 
 
Recommendation: Newnan City Council may authorize the execution of the Real Estate Auction 
Listing Agreement as presented. 
 
Attachments:  
 

1. Real Estate Auction Listing Agreement  
2. List of Subject Properties, as reviewed by City Council, City Staff and Newnan Utilities  

        
Previous Discussions with Council: Newnan City Council, at the March 26, 2019 Retreat, 
reviewed numerous properties and discussed the sale of specific properties.   



Seller Initials __________  Auctioneer Initials __________ 
 
  Exhibit A 

Exhibit A 

 

Group 1  

 

List of properties (Parcel and Address) 

 

Title Examination: Seller acquired these properties by tax deed. The Auctioneer shall not obtain a title 
opinion letter from a Georgia licensed attorney. Seller does not warrant that the property described above 
is free and clear of liens and encumbrances. All Group 1 properties will be sold by Quitclaim Deed only. 
 
 
Group 2  

 

List of properties (Parcel and Address) 

 
Title Examination: Seller agrees to furnish a title opinion letter from a Georgia licensed attorney showing 
marketable, fee simple title of property vested in Seller or a commitment from a licensed Georgia title agent 
for an owner’s policy of title insurance for the proposed sale price of the property. If not available, the 
Auctioneer is authorized to obtain a title opinion letter from a Georgia licensed attorney at Seller’s expense. 

All Group 2 properties will be sold by Limited Warranty Deed or Quitclaim Deed. 
 
 



 

Seller Initials __________  Auctioneer Initials __________ 
 
  Real Estate Auction Listing Agreement - Page 1 of 6 

Real Estate Auction Listing Agreement  
 

 

Date:  _______________________________________ 

 

Seller:  City of Newnan 

 25 LaGrange St 

 Newnan, GA 30263 

 

Auctioneer:  Terry Howe & Associates, Inc. 
 3186 Wade Hampton Blvd, Taylors SC 29687 

 864.268.4399 Phone 

 864.268.5990 Fax 

 info@terryhowe.com 

 

Property: See attached Exhibit “A” 

County of:   Coweta    

State of:   Georgia 

 

 

 

Agreement: An agreement is made this Date between the Seller and Auctioneer as named above. Seller hereby 
grants unto Auctioneer the exclusive right and authority to sell at public auction the property described above or in 
a separate Attachment “A.” Auctioneer hereby accepts employment as the sole and exclusive agent for property in 
Attachment “A” of the Seller and agrees to use his professional skill, knowledge, and experience in preparing and 
conducting the auction. Auctioneer agrees to assist with preparation and organization of the property. Auctioneer 
will prepare and distribute the marketing and advertising materials. Auctioneer will conduct the auction and assist 
with the transaction until closing. Auctioneer is acting solely as listing agent of the property. Auctioneer is not 
providing legal, financial, or tax advice to Seller.  
 

Agency: Seller acknowledges receiving an Agency Disclosure form and an explanation of the types of agency 
relationships that are offered by the Auctioneer. Seller also acknowledges that after entering into this written contract 
that the Auctioneer will be working solely as an agent for the Seller. Auctioneer offers Seller representation only 
and other types of agency will not be considered.  
 

Proposal: Seller acknowledges receipt of an Auction Proposal or verbal explanation that explains how the auction 
will be conducted, how the auction will be advertised and promoted, the terms of the auction, and the financial 
obligations of the Seller in the transaction. Seller agrees that all questions concerning the auction have been 
answered to his/her satisfaction, and he/she has a complete understanding of how the auction process will be 
carried out in relation to the Property described in this agreement.  
 

Auction Date: The date of the auction will be set upon the execution of this agreement by all parties. Auctioneer is 
granted reasonable time to review the properties and agrees to notify the Seller in the event of an unforeseen delay. 
Seller will receive written notification of the actual auction date and time.  Auction must be scheduled within 120 
days of execution of this agreement.  
 

Title Examination: See Exhibit A for information regarding Title Examination. 
  



 

Seller Initials __________  Auctioneer Initials __________ 
 
  Real Estate Auction Listing Agreement - Page 2 of 6 

 

 

Seller Compliance: Seller agrees to execute and deliver all required documents, including general and specific 
documents pertaining to the Property to the Auctioneer in an efficient and prompt manner. Seller agrees that these 
documents will be made available to potential Purchasers. Seller also agrees to execute and deliver all documents, 
including the deed, required to close the Property. 
 
Auctioneer Compliance:  Auctioneer will conduct sale in accordance with all local, state, and federal laws. 
 

Promotion and Advertising: Seller agrees that the Auctioneer may market the property as it deems advisable, 
including, but not limited to, as outlined in the Auction Proposal or verbal explanation.  
 

Advertising Expenses: Seller agrees to pay zero dollars ($0.00) for expenses to promote and advertise the 
auction. Seller agrees the property may be jointly advertised in association with property owned by others.  
 

Commission: A Buyers' Premium, to be paid by the Purchaser, will be added to the winning bid to determine the 
Contract Sale Price. Seller agrees to pay Auctioneer an amount equal to the Buyers' Premium as commission at 
closing. The Buyer's Premium to be paid in this auction is equal to fifteen percent (15%) of the bid price.  
 

Earned Commission: In the event the property is sold or otherwise transferred between the signing of this 
agreement and within ninety (90) days after the auction is conducted, a commission equal to fifteen percent (15%) 
of the Contract Sales Price will be paid to the Auctioneer at closing.  No commission will be paid on properties 
redeemed by the taxpayer between contract date and start of advertising.  In the event a property is redeemed by 
the taxpayer after the start of advertising, a commission equal to fifteen percent (15%) of the redemption value will 
be paid to the Auctioneer. 
 
Purchaser Coordination Fee: Purchaser will pay Auctioneer twenty-five dollars ($25.00) per property to coordinate 
closing with closing attorney. 
 

Cancellation: Should the property be withdrawn or the auction canceled by the Seller, the Seller agrees to 
immediately reimburse the Auctioneer for any advanced funds or expenses for the advertising and marketing or 
property preparation.  
 

Postponement: Should the auction be postponed for any reason not caused by the Auctioneer, the Auctioneer will 
have the exclusive right to conduct the subsequent auction of the property, and the parties will promptly reschedule 
it. Seller agrees to reimburse Auctioneer for all funds advanced for the advertising and promotion of the auction and 
property preparation. 
 

Auction Venue: Seller acknowledges receiving an explanation of the auction venues. Seller agrees the auction will 
be conducted online only. 
 
Max Bids: Seller understands that the Auctioneer accepts Max Bids from Bidders in the online only auction. Seller 
also understands that Max Bids placed by Bidders are to be executed competitively against other Bidders and/or 
bids. The Auctioneer may or may not be privileged to Max Bids, but will not bid on behalf of the Seller or any other 
person to push the Bidder to their Max Bid. It is possible under this format that a Bidder will purchase an item for 
less than their entered Max Bid. Furthermore, Seller releases the Auctioneer from its duty to disclose any Max Bid 
placed by any Bidder in the online only auction, unless required by law. 
 

Auction Type: Seller acknowledges receiving an explanation of the auction types. Seller agrees the property will 
be sold at absolute auction to the highest bidder regardless of price, subject to all utility easements on such property, 
whether recorded of unrecorded.  



 

Seller Initials __________  Auctioneer Initials __________ 
 
  Real Estate Auction Listing Agreement - Page 3 of 6 

 

Price Guarantee: Seller agrees that neither the Auctioneer nor any of its representatives has made any 
representation or guarantee as to the sales price.  
 
Auction Terms: The property will be sold in “as is, where is” condition without warranty as to the suitability for use 

either expressed or implied by the Seller or Auctioneer, subject to all utility easements crossing said property, 
whether recorded of unrecorded. Purchaser to escrow with Auctioneer the required deposit with the full balance of 
the sales price due on or before thirty (30) days after the auction date. Purchaser will pay all closing costs including, 
but not limited to, costs normally associated with a seller in a real estate transaction. These costs may include 
attorney's fees, deed preparation, deed stamps, surveying, termite inspections, and roll back taxes. Property sale 
shall be subject to all outstanding property taxes, rents, HOA dues and other assessments and shall be the 
responsibility of the Purchaser.  
 

Contract Sales Price: The Contract Sales Price will be determined by adding the Purchaser's bid price and a 
Buyers' Premium equal to a percentage of the bid price together. The Buyers' Premium can vary for different 
auctions, and is disclosed at the beginning of these Terms and Conditions. Below is an example of how this 
calculation works using a fifteen percent (15%) Buyers' Premium. 
 

 Example:  

 Bid Price  $100,000.00 

 Buyers' Premium  $15,000.00 

 Contract Sales Price  $115,000.00 

 

Agreement to Auction Terms: Seller has read the proposed terms and conditions for the auction, agrees to abide 
by the terms and conditions, approves the use of such terms and conditions, and agrees the Auctioneer may publish 
and disclose the terms and conditions to prospective Purchasers.  
 

Payments: Auctioneer may accept payment from the Purchasers in the form of cash, certified funds, bank check, 
or wire transfer. Auctioneer will have no responsibility for collection of any payment that is not good or completed 
for any reason. Auctioneer will deposit all payments received in its escrow account until closing. 
 

Escrow Agent: Seller designates Auctioneer to hold any earnest money deposit made in accordance with the 
purchase and sale of the property. Earnest money deposit may be held in an interest bearing account. Escrow 
agent will retain any and all interest earned on the earnest money deposit. 
 
In the event of Purchaser default, the earnest money deposit shall be divided equally between Seller and 
Auctioneer, after reimbursement of all expenses advanced to market and conduct the auction. The property will 
then be resold in a manner approved by the Auctioneer.  
 

In the event that the winning Bidder fails to execute the Contract of Sale and pay the required earnest money 
deposit, a penalty of up to two thousand five hundred ($2500.00) will be charged to the credit card provided at 
registration by the winning Bidder. Auctioneer makes no guarantee or warranty of collection of this penalty as the 
penalty may exceed the winning Bidder's available credit limit. Payment of this penalty shall not affect other 
remedies available to the Seller for such failure. 
 

The penalty will be held in the Auctioneer’s escrow account. If the winning Bidder does not dispute and contest the 

charges, the penalty shall be divided equally between Seller and Auctioneer, after reimbursement of all expenses 
advanced to market and conduct the auction. These funds will be disbursed at the Auctioneer's discretion. The 
property will then be resold in a manner mutually agreed upon by the Auctioneer and Seller. 
 



 

Seller Initials __________  Auctioneer Initials __________ 
 
  Real Estate Auction Listing Agreement - Page 4 of 6 

In any legal action involving the Auctioneer regarding the earnest money, including any inter-pleader action initiated 
by the Auctioneer, all legal expenses reasonably incurred by the Auctioneer including all discovery and appeals 
expenses shall be advanced from the Earnest Money and then borne by the party against which final judgment is 
rendered or as otherwise ordered by the court.  
 
To the extent allowed by law, Seller agrees to hold the Auctioneer harmless against any and all claims or damages 
arising from payment or application of the earnest money and the Auctioneer shall not be liable to Seller for damages 
or otherwise for any action taken in connection with the earnest money provided however, that this release of liability 
shall not apply to willful acts of malfeasance by the Auctioneer.  
 

Closing Statement: Seller authorizes the settlement agent to furnish to Auctioneer and Selling Broker, if any, 
copies of the final settlement statement for the transaction. 
 

Accounting: After closing, the Auctioneer will prepare and provide an Auction Summary Report for the Seller. The 
report will include copies of documents pertaining to the transaction and promotion and advertising materials. 
 

Indemnification: To the extent allowed by law, the parties agree that a party at fault will hold the other harmless 
from, and indemnify the other against, any claim, action, suit, cost, damage, deficiency, expense, loss, or liability of 
every kind, including attorneys' fees and costs of defense, that the other incurs as a result of any act, error, 
negligence, omission, or wrongdoing attributable to the party at fault, which arises out of the auction, the breach of 
any term of this contract, or the offering or sale of the Property, except as otherwise provided herein.  
 

Risk of Loss and Insurance: Auctioneer, its administrators, agents, assigns, attorneys, beneficiaries, contractors, 
devisees, employees, executors, heirs, legatees, representatives, and successors in interest will not be responsible 
or liable for any loss or damage to the Property regardless of cause including, but not limited to, negligence, fire, 
theft, vandalism, act of God, act of terrorism, or other casualty, damage, or destruction.  
 
Choice of Law and Venue: This contract will be construed and governed solely in accordance with the laws of the 
state of Georgia. The exclusive venue for any controversy or claim between the parties will be the County of Coweta, 
Georgia. 
 

Notice: A party must immediately notify the other, by both telephone and written notice, should that party have a 
concern, complaint, issue, or problem with the other’s performance under this Agreement, in order to provide the 

other with an early opportunity to address and remedy any such matter. 
 
Any notices required or permitted to be given shall be given in writing and shall be delivered by certified mail, email, 
facsimile, or overnight mail, and such notices shall be addressed to Seller's or Auctioneer's address or fax number 
listed in this agreement. 
 

Representation: Seller has read the foregoing contract and thoroughly understands the contents thereof. Seller 
further represents that Seller hereof makes statements and that the same are true to the best of Seller's knowledge 
and that this contract contains and sets forth the entire agreement of the parties.  
 

Warranty: The undersigned Seller hereby warrants that it holds title by tax deed to the property so identified to be 
listed on Exhibit A and by other deed of conveyance to be listed on Exhibit A and/or has the authority to execute 
this agreement. 
 
Contract: It is mutually agreed that this contract is binding and obligatory upon the Seller, his/her heirs, 
administrators, executors, personal representatives, assigns, and successors in interest.  
 



 

Seller Initials __________  Auctioneer Initials __________ 
 
  Real Estate Auction Listing Agreement - Page 5 of 6 

 

  



 

 
  Real Estate Auction Listing Agreement - Page 6 of 6 

Seller Name: City of Newnan, Georgia 

 25 LaGrange St 

 Newnan, Georgia 30263 

  

  

 

Signature  ________________________________  
 for City of Newnan, Georgia 

 

Date ________________________________ 

 

 

 

Auctioneer: Terry Howe & Associates, Inc. 

 3186 Wade Hampton Blvd 

 Taylors, SC 29687 

 864.268.4399 

 

Signature  ________________________________  

 for Terry Howe & Associates, Inc. by its   

 ________________________________    



Property Location - Parcel Number

10 Second Street-N03-0002-009

105-Rear W. Washington Street-N22-0003-019

113 W. Washington Street-N22-0003-012

14 Hill Street-N32-0003-005

140 Spring Street-N09-0002-024

200 W. Washington Street-N43-004

203 W. Washington Street - N42-0002-010

23 Davis Street-N14-0004-011

24 Pratt Street - N25-0003-004

25 Smith Street-N54-024

3 Melson Street - N08-0001-008

34 Ray Street - N22-0012-003

37 Westgate Park Lane - N43A-063

64 Berry Avenue N34-0001-017

71 Belt Road - N42-0001-006

74 Belt Road - N42-0002-003

76  Belt Road - N42-0002-004

77 Berry Avenue - N56-008

85 Belk Road - N42-0001-011

9 Roberts Road - N34-0002-020

Bullsboro Drive - N57-466

Portico Place - SG7-320

Sunset Lane - N25-0002-003

Timberlane Subdivision - W08 525

12 Dewey Street - N13-0003-008-10

145 W. Washington Street - N24-0007-006 

41 Ray Street-N22-0005-005

94 Sunset Lane - N24-0003-008 

23 Dewey Street - N13-0004-013 



City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 
 
Date: June 28, 2019   
 
Agenda Item:  Consideration of Extension of Pool Operation Agreement 
between the City of Newnan and the Young Men’s Christian Association of 
Metropolitan Atlanta, Inc. 
 
Prepared and Presented by:   Hasco Craver, Assistant City Manager 

 
 
Purpose: Newnan City Council may consider a term extension to the current agreement with 
the Young Men’s Christian Association of Metropolitan Atlanta, Inc. (YMCA) for the purposes of 
operating the Lynch Park Pool.   
 
Background: In March 2017, the City of Newnan entered into an agreement with the YMCA for 
the purposes of operating the Lynch Park Pool.  Lynch Park Pool, which is located at 23 Richard 
Allen Drive includes a 4,200 square foot pool, a mushroom water feature, four lanes for 
recreational lap swimming, a water slide and dedicated catch pool, a splash fountain, tables, 
chairs and umbrellas as well as a 2,000 square foot concession, restroom and administrative 
facility.  
 
Annually, the City of Newnan reviews operations and maintenance agreements supporting 
certain facilities in order to protect the City’s capital investment as well as to provide our citizens 
and visitors alike with the highest quality, most engaging and efficient services.   
 
In anticipation of the summer season, City staff engaged the YMCA to review the previous 
years’ operations and promote any modifications to the existing agreement that would likely 
result in improved services.  Discussions included the current operating hours as well as 
supplemental programming (i.e. special events, promotions, etc.), asset maintenance (i.e. 
chemical testing, pump equipment, etc.) and pricing. 
 
Items of particular interest are: 

 Current agreement will terminate on October 1, 2019;  
 Proposed agreement term: three (3) year term; terminating October 1, 2022;  
 30 day written notice to terminate agreement   
 Proposed fee(s) remain consistent at $3/person/day 
 Proposed operation schedule: 

o Season: Memorial Day – Labor Day 
o Facility will be open 12:00pm – 7:00pm Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, 

Thursday 
o Facility will be open 12:00pm – 6:00pm Friday, Saturday, Sunday 
o On those days when Coweta County public schools are in regular session, the 

facility will be open 12:00pm – 6:00pm Saturday and Sunday  
 Enhanced marketing of pool activities and YMCA programs 
 YMCA member guest policy (no additional payment for YMCA members)  

 
Funding: General Fund 
 
Recommendation: In an effort to provide enhanced recreational pool services, City staff recommends 
that the Newnan City Council authorize the execution of the extension to the Pool Operation Agreement 
between the City of Newnan and the YMCA of Metropolitan Atlanta, Inc. as presented herein.   
 



Attachments: Pool Operation Agreement between the City of Newnan and the Young Men’s 
Christian Association of Metropolitan Atlanta, Inc. 
        
Previous Discussions with Council: Newnan City Council reviewed, considered and 
approved the original Pool Operation Agreement between the City of Newnan and the Young 
Men’s Christian Association of Metropolitan Atlanta, Inc. in March 2017.  
 



 

POOL OPERATION AGREEMENT 

THIS POOL OPERATION AGREEMENT (the "Agreement"), is made and entered into as of the 

______ day of _____, 2019, by and between The City Of Newnan ("Owner"), having an office at 

25 LaGrange St., Newnan, Georgia 30263, and Young Men's Christian Association of 

Metropolitan Atlanta, Inc., a Georgia non-profit corporation ("Operator"), having an office at 

100 Edgewood Avenue, N.E., Suite 1100, Atlanta, Georgia 30303. 

 

RECITALS: 

A. Owner owns a swimming pool facility located at Lynch Park 23 Richard Allen 

Dr. Newnan GA 30263 is (the "Pool Facility") which serves the residents of the Newnan and the 

Coweta County community; and 

B. Owner desires to retain Operator to operate the Pool Facility and provide certain  

services with respect to the Pool Facility, and Operator is willing to perform such services for 

Owner, on the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth. 

AGREEMENT: 

NOW, THEREFORE, Owner and Operator, in consideration of the mutual covenants 

contained herein and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 

are hereby acknowledged, mutually agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I 

 

APPOINTMENT AND TERM 

1.1 Appointment.  Owner hereby appoints Operator as the exclusive independent 

contractor to perform the Services (as such term is hereinafter defined), and Operator hereby 

accepts such appointment, on the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth. 

1.2 Term.  This Agreement shall commence as of the date hereof and shall continue 

in full force and effect for a period of three (3) years; terminating October 1, 2022.  Except as 

otherwise provided herein, either party may terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days prior 

written notice to the other party. 

ARTICLE II 

 

DUTIES OF OPERATOR 

2.1 Operation of Pool Facility.  Operator agrees to operate the Pool Facility during the 

term of this Agreement in accordance with the operation schedule set forth in Exhibit A attached 

hereto and by reference made a part hereof.  Operator further agrees to provide certain services 



in connection with the operation of the Pool Facility which services are more particularly set 

forth in Exhibit B attached hereto and by reference made a part hereof (the "Services"). 

2.2 Books and Records.  Operator shall maintain a system of books and records 

concerning use of the Pool Facility, maintenance of the Pool Facility and any financial 

transactions with respect to the Pool Facility.  The Pool Facility books and records shall be 

maintained at Operator's central office or at such other place as Operator shall reasonably 

determine, and Owner shall have access to such books and records during normal business hours 

upon twenty-four (24) hours prior written notice. 

2.3 Reports.  Operator shall arrange for the annual inspection of the Pool Facility and 

shall promptly communicate to Owner the results of such annual inspection.  Operator shall 

promptly notify Owner in writing of all significant occurrences and circumstances affecting the 

Pool Facility or its operation or affecting in any manner the interest of Owner in and to the Pool 

Facility.  In addition, Operator shall promptly investigate and make a full written report to 

Owner as to all accidents and claims for damage relating to the operation and maintenance of the 

Pool Facility, which reports shall include any damage or destruction to the Pool Facility. 

2.4 Employment of Personnel.  Operator shall have the duty to hire, pay, supervise 

and discharge the personnel necessary to be employed to properly maintain and operate the Pool 

Facility in accordance with the obligations of Operator under this Agreement.  Such personnel 

shall in every instance be employees of Operator and not of Owner.  Operator shall be 

responsible for the compensation and fringe benefits for such employees and for all payroll 

taxes, F.I.C.A. and similar items with respect to such employees.  Operator shall directly control 

the time and manner of the work and services to be performed by the employees of Operator and 

Operator shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinances and 

regulations applicable to such employees. 

ARTICLE III 

 

DUTIES OF OWNER 

3.1 Owner Responsibilities.  Owner agrees to be responsible for and to provide 

certain services in connection with the Pool Facility as more particularly set forth in Exhibit C 

attached hereto and by reference made a part hereof. 

3.2 Compliance with Laws.  Owner shall use reasonably diligent efforts to comply 

with and cause the Pool Facility to be kept and maintained in compliance with (a) all applicable 

laws, statutes and ordinances; (b) all applicable rules, regulations and orders of any 

governmental authority having jurisdiction, including, without limitation, building codes and fire 

regulations; (c) any occupancy certificate issued pursuant to any law, regulation or rule by any 

public officer; (d) the provisions of any fire and casualty insurance policy or policies insuring 

Owner's interest in the Pool Facility; and (e) the provisions of any lease, agreement, mortgage or 

other instrument affecting the Pool Facility.  In addition, Owner shall review the results of the 

annual inspection of the Pool Facility and respond in writing to the Operator setting forth the 

steps, if any, which will be taken to address the matters revealed by the annual inspection report 



which require action by Owner to comply with applicable laws, ordinances, rules or regulations 

or to ensure the safety or security of the Pool Facility. 

3.3 Permits.  Operator shall, at Owner's sole cost and expense, maintain all permits, 

licenses or other legal authorizations required by any state, county or municipal authority having 

jurisdiction over the Pool Facility.  

ARTICLE IV 

 

COMPENSATION 

In consideration of Operator's performance of the Services, Owner shall pay Operator a 

fee as more particularly set forth in Exhibit D attached hereto and by reference made a part 

hereof.  If Owner fails to pay Operator in accordance with the fee schedule set forth in Exhibit D, 

then Operator shall have the right to immediately terminate this Agreement upon written notice 

to Owner. 

ARTICLE V 

 

INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION 

5.1 Liability Insurance.  Owner shall carry comprehensive general liability insurance 

in an amount not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and such other insurance as Owner 

reasonably deems necessary for the protection of Owner's interests Operator shall also carry 

comprehensive general liability insurance in an amount not less than $1,000,000 per 

occurrence and such other insurance as Operator reasonably deems necessary for the 

protection of Operator's interests. Comprehensive general liability insurance policies shall 

contain a severability of interest clause and coverage for contractual liability and personal injury 

liability.  In the event of any loss or liability of any kind covered by the insurance provided for 

herein, the parties intend to look to the insurance for recovery, without any right of subrogation 

by the insurer against either party to this Agreement. Owner's liability insurance will not provide 

coverage for the Operator in the event of Operator's gross negligence or willful misconduct.  

Each party agrees to deliver to the other party certificates of insurance evidencing the 

insurance coverage required to be carried by each party hereunder. 

5.2 Indemnification. 

(a) Operator shall indemnify and hold harmless Owner against any claims, 

damages, losses and liabilities arising out of (i) any failure of Operator promptly to perform any 

of its obligations under this Agreement, provided such failure was not caused by Owner, (ii) any 

acts of the Operator beyond the scope of the Operator’s authority hereunder not authorized or 

ratified by Owner, and (iii) any gross negligence or willful misconduct of Operator, its agents or 

employees. 

(b) Except as set forth in paragraph 5.2(a) above, to the extent provided by 

law, Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless Operator from and against any and all claims (and 

reasonable attorney’s fees related thereto), damages, losses, and liabilities arising out of or in 

connection with any gross negligence or willful misconduct of Owner, its agents or employees. 



5.3 Operator's Insurance.  Operator shall carry worker's compensation insurance and 

provide evidence of such coverage to Owner. 

5.4 Waiver of Claims, Environmental Indemnity.  Operator shall not be liable or 

accountable, in damages or otherwise, to Owner for any act or failure to act performed by it in 

good faith and which does not constitute fraud, bad faith, willful misconduct, gross negligence or 

a material breach of this Agreement by Operator.  To the extent provided by law, Owner will 

also defend, indemnify and hold harmless Operator, its affiliates and each of their respective 

directors, officers, members, employees and agents from and against all claims arising from or in 

any way connected with the presence, release or discharge of any hazardous materials, hazardous 

substances, hazardous wastes or similar substances affecting all or any portion of the Pool 

Facility unless (a) such claims arise from the gross negligence or willful misconduct of Operator, 

its affiliates or any of their respective directors, members, officers, employees or agents and (b) 

there has been a final determination of such gross negligence or willful misconduct. 

5.5 No Liability.  Notwithstanding any provision contained herein to the contrary, 

Operator shall have no liability to Owner for (a) any use of the Pool Facility which occurs 

outside of the scheduled hours of operation as set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto, or (b) the 

loss of or damage to any personal property of any person using the Pool Facility, or (c) Owner's 

failure to take any required corrective action with respect to the Pool Facility. 

5.6 Survival.  The provisions of this Article 5 will survive the expiration or earlier 

termination of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE VI 

 

GENERAL 

6.1 Notices.   

Any notice required or permitted to be given hereunder shall be sufficient if in writing 

and delivered by hand or sent by United States Certified Mail, postage prepaid, or by nationally 

recognized overnight courier service to the party being given such notice at the following 

addresses: 

Owner: City of Newnan 

25 LaGrange St., Newnan, Georgia 30263 

Attention:  Cleatus Phillips, City Manager 

Phone: 770-253-2682 

Operator: Young Men's Christian Association of Metropolitan Atlanta, Inc. 

100 Edgewood Avenue, Suite 1100 Atlanta, Georgia 30303 

Attention: Shane Gann 

Phone:  770-254-9622 

Either party may change said address by giving the other party notice of such 

change of address in writing. 



For purposes of this Contract, the time of actual delivery, if made in person or by 

overnight courier, or three (3) days after the date of postmark, if by mail, shall be deemed the 

date of any notice, demand or delivery.  Any attempted delivery in accordance with the 

foregoing, acceptance of which is refused or rejected or which cannot be completed because of a 

changed address of which no notice was given, shall be deemed to be and constitute receipt of 

such notice.  Any notice to a party may be given by such party’s legal counsel. 

6.2 Covenant of Further Assurances.  The parties agree to execute such other 

documents and perform such other acts as may be necessary or desirable to carry out the 

purposes of this Agreement. 

6.3 No Joint Venture.  Operator is an independent contractor and this Agreement shall 

not be construed as a partnership or joint venture between Owner and Operator.  Operator shall 

not be deemed an agent or employee of Owner and Operator is not authorized to enter into any 

agreement or create any obligations on behalf of Owner. 

6.4 Successors and Assigns.  Neither party may assign its rights under this Agreement 

without the prior written approval of the other party.  Subject to the restrictions on transfers set 

forth herein, this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties and their 

respective successors and permitted assigns.  Whenever in this Agreement a reference to any 

entity or party is made, such reference shall be deemed to include a reference to the successors 

and permitted assigns of such entity or party. 

6.5 Waiver.  No consent or waiver, express or implied, by any party to or of any 

breach or default by the other party in the performance of the obligations under this Agreement 

shall be deemed or construed to be a consent or waiver of any other breach or default by such 

party under this Agreement.  Failure on the part of either party to complain of any act or failure 

to act of the other party or to declare the other party in default, irrespective of how long such 

failure continues, shall not constitute a waiver by such party of its rights under this Agreement. 

6.6 Additional Remedies.  The rights and remedies of the parties under this 

Agreement shall not be mutually exclusive; the exercise of one or more of the provisions hereof 

shall not preclude the exercise of any other provisions hereof. 

6.7 Attorneys' Fees.  In the event of any controversy, claim or action being filed 

between the parties respecting this Agreement or in connection with the Pool Facility, the 

prevailing party shall be entitled, in addition to all expenses, costs or damages, to reasonable 

attorneys' fees and disbursements, whether or not such controversy was litigated or prosecuted to 

judgment. 

6.8 Entire Agreement.  This document represents the entire agreement between the 

parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and to the extent inconsistent therewith, 

supersedes all other prior agreements, oral or written.  Nothing in this Agreement is intended to, 

nor shall it be deemed to, confer any benefits on any third party. 

6.9 Severability.  If any provisions of this Agreement or the application thereof to any 

entity or circumstances shall be invalid or unenforceable to any extent, the remainder of this 



Agreement and the application of such provisions to any other entity or circumstance shall not be 

affected thereby and shall be enforced to the greatest extent permitted by law. 

6.10 Terminology.  All personal pronouns used in this Agreement, whether used in the 

masculine, feminine or neuter gender, shall include all other genders; the singular shall include 

the plural; and the plural shall include the singular.  Titles of Articles and Sections in this 

Agreement are for convenience only, and neither limit nor amplify the provisions of this 

Agreement, and all references in this Agreement to Articles or Sections shall refer to the 

corresponding Article or Section of this Agreement, unless specific reference is made to the 

Articles or Sections of another document or instrument. 

6.11 Amendment.  Neither this Agreement nor any provision hereof may be changed, 

waived, discharged or terminated orally, but only by an instrument in writing signed by both 

parties. 

6.12 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, 

each of which shall be deemed to be an original and all of which together shall comprise but a 

single instrument. 

6.13 Interpretation.  No provision of this Agreement shall be construed against or 

interpreted to the disadvantage of any party by any court or other governmental or judicial 

authority by reason of such party having or being deemed to have structured or drawn such 

provision. 

6.14 Governing Law.  This Agreement and the obligations of Owner and Operator 

shall be interpreted, construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Georgia.  

Jurisdiction and venue on any claims arising out of the Agreement shall be in the Superior, State 

or Magistrate  Court of Coweta County, Georgia. 

[SIGNATURES COMMENCE ON NEXT PAGE] 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Owner and Operator have caused this Agreement to be 

executed as of the day and year first above written. 

OWNER: 

_______________________________________, a 

_________________ 

By:  

Name:  

Title:  

 

OPERATOR: 

YOUNG MEN'S CHRISTIAN ASSOCIATION 

OF METROPOLITAN ATLANTA, INC., a 

Georgia non-profit corporation 

By:  

Name: Billy Holley 

Title: Executive Vice President and CFO 



 

Owner Initial:___________________ 
Operator Initial:__________________ 

EXHIBIT A 

Pool Facility Operation Schedule 

The Pool Facility shall be open for use beginning on Memorial Day and shall remain 

open through Labor Day.  The hours of operation shall be 12:00 p.m. – 7:00 p.m. every Monday, 

Tuesday, Wednesday and Thursday and 12:00 p.m. – 6:00 p.m. every Friday, Saturday and 

Sunday.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, on those days when the Coweta County  public schools 

are in regular session, then the hours of operation shall be from 12:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m. every 

Saturday and Sunday.  

 



 

 

EXHIBIT B 

Operator Services and Administrative Duties 

Operator shall be responsible for providing the following services with respect to the 

Pool Facility: 

1. Screening, hiring, paying, scheduling and supervising of lifeguards and swim 

instructors.  Lifeguards shall not provide swimming instruction while on duty.  All lifeguards 

shall have advanced life saving certificates and training in CPR and first aid. 

2. Maintaining all necessary records to operate the Pool Facility, including 

monitoring membership and collection of guest fees, if any. 

3. Providing a certificate of insurance to Owner as set forth in the Agreement. 

4. Basic pool operation: 

(a) Picking up all litter and trash. 

(b) Cleaning restrooms 

 (c) Testing and recording the water quality daily and reporting any problems 

to the designated representative of Owner. 

(d) Vacuuming the pool. 

(e) Determining inclement weather schedules and, if necessary, closing the 

Pool Facility. 

(f) Adhering to Owner's guidelines for use of the Pool Facility. 

(g) Notifying the Owner of any needed maintenance or repairs to the Pool 

Facility. 

(h) Handling discipline problems as set forth in Exhibit E attached to the 

Agreement. 

5. Preparing the Pool Facility for use with pump room cleaned and stocked with 

supplies needed to clean and maintain pool, maintenance completed and water chemistry at the 

levels required by the board of health agency having jurisdiction over the Pool Facility.  This 

includes: 

(a) Water analysis prior to opening pool. 

(b) Cleaning of pump room and bathrooms. 

(c) Stocking of chemicals and other supplies needed for pool water. 



 

Owner Initial:___________________ 
Operator Initial:__________________ 

 

(d) Operation and maintaining water quality of pool. 

(e) Providing technical advice regarding pool. 

(f) Closing of pool and winterizing of pool. 

(g) Stocking of cleaning and paper supplies, trash can liners, etc. needed for 

operation of pool. 

6. Operator shall maintain the water quality of the pool within the following 

tolerances while the pool is open to swimmers: 

Free chlorine  1.0-3.0 ppm 

PH   7.2-7.8 ppm 

Total alkalinity 80-150 ppm 

Cyanuric acid  less than 100 ppm 

Calcium  greater than 200 ppm 

 7. Provide programs for pool activities – open swim, swim lessons, family events, 

water safety, etc.  

 

 8.  Market Y programs and Pool Activities.  

 

 9. Manage revenue generated by summer passes and daily pool passes  

 

 10.  Provide waivers/consent to use forms and facility usage agreements with all 

groups/rentals.  All groups must provide a certificate of insurance adding the Y and the City of 

Newnan as an additional insured on their policy.  

 

 11.  Manage revenue generated by summer passes and daily pool passes and provide 

annual performance report to City that outlines usage and pool financials. 

 

 12.  Assist the City with developing the annual pool operating schedule and associated 

fees. 

 

 13. Operator shall maintain the following fee schedule: 

 

  Daily Fee  $3.00 per person 

   

*additional fees, including but not limited to monthly and/or seasonal 

memberships shall be agreed upon by the Operator and Owner 

 



 

 

EXHIBIT C 

Owner Responsibilities and Obligations 

Owner shall be responsible for providing the following items or services in connection 

with the Pool Facility: 

1 Provide all utilities required to operate the Pool Facility safely. 

2. Provide at no charge to Operator the following equipment needed to operate the 

Pool Facility properly: 

(a) Standard community pool test kit. 

(b) A pole long enough to reach all portions of the pool bottom from the deck. 

(c) A vacuum head and a hose long enough to reach all parts of the pool 

interior. 

(d) A wall brush (stainless steel, where needed). 

(e) A garden hose (with pressure nozzle) long enough to reach all parts of the 

pool deck from the supplied hose bibs. 

(f) A hand held skimmer. 

(g) Skimmer baskets with handles. 

(h) Skimmer lids. 

(i) Skimmer weirs. 

(j) A telephone from which emergency calls to police, fire department and 

ambulance can be made. 

(k) All signage for the Pool Facility. 

Such equipment shall be in place prior to the opening of the pool season and shall be in 

good working order.  In addition to the above equipment, Owner shall also provide Operator 

with any other equipment required by any governmental authorities or agencies having 

jurisdiction over the Pool Facility. 

3. Provide a telephone (communication costs covered by Operator) for emergency 

use and the names and numbers of two persons who can be contacted during pool 

operation as follows: 



 

Owner Initial:___________________ 
Operator Initial:__________________ 

Name:       Telephone Number: 

Mark Johnston      404-535-1146 

Scott Odom      678-673-9756 

4. Provide all repairs and improvement to facilities in excess of $50.00 per 

occurrence, for items including but not limited to pool mechanical/chemical 

systems, building and grounds, pool/furniture accessories, etc.  

 

5. Support the Y’s marketing efforts to help maximize enrollment in Y aquatic 

programs  

 

6. Post pool rules and provide a copy to Operator.  Such rules shall include at a 

minimum the rules set forth in Exhibit F attached to the Agreement. 

7. Provide a certificate of insurance to Operator as set forth in the Agreement. 

8. Provide necessary support for all disciplinary problems that Operator's staff may 

encounter. 

9. Follow safety and pool rules as established by state and local governmental 

authorities and agencies having jurisdiction over the Pool Facility. 

10. Provide Operator with full access to the Pool Facility during the scheduled hours 

of operation. 

11. Provide subsidy to operating budget and provide financial assistance for 

community based programs/pool usage that have been identified by city and 

county initiatives and existing partnership. 

 

12. Make sure pool facilities are always ADA compliant (pool access with handicap 

pool lift, rescue oxygen, AED) and meets the Virginia Graeme Baker Pool Act. 

 

 

13. Mow and maintain the grounds surrounding pool facility. 

 

 



 

Owner Initial:___________________ 
Operator Initial:__________________ 

EXHIBIT D 

Payment Schedule 

Owner shall pay Operator an estimated fee of $40,000.00, which fee shall be paid as 

follows: 

1. Fifty (50%) of the estimated fee shall be paid within sixty (60) days of the execution of 

the Pool Operation Agreement and by the 15th day of April in following years.  

Amount shall be non-refundable. 

2. The Owner and Operator will agree to an adjusted balance in October of each year based 

upon actual net operating position as presented by the YMCA.   

3. The sum of the adjusted balance shall be made payable on or before the fifteenth (15th) 

day of October of each year. 

4. Thereafter, an annual request for funding will be submitted to the City Manager by the 

first Monday in October for approval by City Council. Upon any extension or renewal 

of this Agreement, the YMCA and City shall agree to an adjusted compensation 

amount, to be based on 1) the program of services that may be agreed to for the 

extension or renewal term concerned. 

 



 

Owner Initial:___________________ 
Operator Initial:__________________ 

EXHIBIT E 

Discipline Guidelines 

The following discipline guidelines shall be used by Operator in operating the Pool 

Facility: 

Class I Violations. 

Running, rough or dangerous play in or out of the water, general pool rules violations, 

yelling and boisterous conduct.  These violations will be dealt with on the following basis: 

First offense- reprimand 

Second offense- 5-30 minute ejection depending on severity of infraction 

Third offense- ejection for one full day (after contacting Owner's representative 

and parent of child) 

Fourth offense- ejection for one week 

Class II Violations. 

These include but are not limited to the following conduct: being present under the 

influence of drugs or alcohol, theft and destruction of property.  In the event immediate 

disciplinary action is needed, lifeguards may suspend the offenders for the duration of the day.  It 

is not necessary to contact the Owner's representative for a temporary suspension.  However, 

notification shall be made as soon as action is taken.  Non-compliance by any person with any 

discipline imposed will be construed to be the next offense.  All problems will be reported to the 

Owner's representative.  A record of such problems will be maintained by the lifeguards and a 

copy will be given to Owner's representative. 



 

 

EXHIBIT F 

Pool Rules 

1. Running, splashing, shoving or dunking is not permitted. 

2. Food and beverages are allowed only in designated areas. 

3. Possession or use of alcoholic beverages and/or tobacco products at the Pool 

Facility are not permitted. 

4. Profanity, improper behavior, intoxication, and vulgar remarks are prohibited. 

5. Bicycles and skateboards are not allowed in the pool area. 

6. Swimming when the facility is closed is prohibited. 

7. One person at a time on pool ladders. 

8. No sitting or hanging on lifelines. 

9. No climbing on lifeguard stands or sitting in a lifeguard's chair. 

10. Emergency equipment is to be used by lifeguards only. 

11. Water Slide: 

(a) Only one person allowed down the slide at a time; 

(b) Slide should be mounted by steps only; 

(c) Swimmer must wait for previous swimmer to move to pool side ladder; 

(d) Climbing up the slide reverse is not allowed: 

(e) Swimmers must slide feet first on their back ; 

 (g) Flotation devices of any sort are not allowed in slide area. 

12. Persons with open sores or rashes are not allowed in pool area. 

13. Spitting or spouting water is prohibited. 

14. Chewing gum in the water is prohibited. 

15. Pets are not allowed in the pool area. 

16. First aid equipment is to be used only by qualified personnel. 



 

Owner Initial:___________________ 
Operator Initial:__________________ 

17. Pump room is off limits to unauthorized persons. 

18. Glass or breakable objects are not permitted inside the fenced-in area of the pool. 

19. No child under eight (8) years of age may enter the pool area unless accompanied 

by an individual eighteen (18) years or older. 

20. Individuals may be asked by a lifeguard to complete a swim test.  The swim test 

will consist of swimming two laps (long length of the pool) and treading water for one minute in 

the deep end. 

21. Lifeguards are to have a minimum ten minute break during busy times.  During 

this break, lifeguards will not be on duty and neither the lifeguards nor the Operator shall be 

responsible for people using the pool during said break.  All children under nineteen (19) years 

of age must be completely out of the pool. 

22. Lifeguards are not baby-sitters.  Their primary responsibility is to insure the 

safety of swimmers.  When the attention of the lifeguard is diverted from pool to toddlers or 

younger children walking unsupervised around the perimeter of the pool, all swimmers are at 

increased risk.  Parents are responsible for the supervision and safety of their children at the pool.  

Upper arm floats are not to be considered lifesaving devices and children wearing these require 

strict parental supervision. 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

EXHIBIT G 

YMCA Member Access 

 Summit Family YMCA members will have access to use pool facilities during posted 

operating schedule without additional daily guest fees.  Y members must present their Y 

membership card and have an active membership in good standing.  YMCA member guest will 

be considered pool participants and will be charged the appropriate daily fees. 

 

 



City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council

Date: June 18, 2019

Agenda Item:  Annexation Request - Annex2019-02

Prepared and Presented by: Tracy S Dunnavant, Planning Director

Purpose: Charles Douglas, on behalf of Anne Marie Douglas, Betty Ingram Smith, and
Jefferson James Davis is requesting the annexation of tax parcel #s 062B 114, 062B 114A and
a .25-acre strip in between the two parcels into the city limits.  The parcels contain
approximately 5.14± acres and are located at 36 Franklin Road and off Helen Street. The tracts
are currently the site of a single-family home and vacant land.

Land Owner Tax ID Numbers Acreage Location

Ann Marie Douglas

Betty Ingram Smith

Jefferson J. Davis

062B 114

N/A

062B 114A

1.00 ± acres

.25

3.89± acres

36 Franklin Rd

Helen St

Helen St

Background: Charles Douglas is asking the Council to annex a total of 5.14± acres located
at 36 Franklin Road and along Helen Street into the city limits. The first parcel currently houses
a single-family home and the two others consist of vacant land.  The annexation would abut the
city limits on its eastern border. The petitioner is requesting zoning designations of CGN
(General Commercial District) for 2.96± acres on the front to build an urgent care facility or
commercial offices and RML (Residential Multi-Family Dwelling – Lower Density District) for the
balance of the land (2.18± acres) to the rear which will be combined with an additional 9.85
acres currently inside the city limits for the purpose of developing a 96-unit apartment complex.

If Council decides to pursue annexation and zoning of these tract, Staff will contact Coweta
County to begin the required mitigation procedures.

Options:

A. Act to Pursue Annexation/Rezoning

B. Deny the Annexation/Rezoning petition

Recommendation: Should Council decide that the annexation could be in the best
interest of the City of Newnan, this request should be forwarded to the Planning
Commission for a zoning recommendation.  Otherwise, the application should not be
considered.

Attachments: Letter of Intent
Location Map
Application for Annexation

Previous Discussions with Council: None.



BELT RD

FRANKLIN RD

DOUGLAS DR

BI
TT

ER
SW

EE
T L

N

HELEN ST

W HIGHWAY 34

WY
NN

 ST

MULBERRY ST

25

209

0

27

26

10

298

15

2

0

0 10

24

11

8

36

22
30

540

17

7

0

2

2

0

0
0

8

32

21

28

32

39

35

71
75

33

31

16

73

21

253

89

23

23

65

245

239

13

61

29

83

17

0

59
51 55

24

25

0

31

12

19

24

85

6

80

22

29

911

40

76

11 7
4

27

74

036

9

14

343 427

0

10

5
192315

4

72

275

35

231

13120114
CITY OF NEWNAN  | Project Location

1 inch = 300 feet

CITY OF NEWNAN
PLANNING DEPT. 

25 LAGRANGE STREET
NEWNAN, GEORGIA 30263

www.ci.newnan.ga.us

N LEGEND
CITY LIMITS

Project Rezoning 

PARCELS

Annexation 

UV34

Helen St

SITE

FRAKLIN RD @ HELEN ST
NEWNAN GA. 30263

ADDRESS





















D
AT

E
D

ES
C

R
IP

TI
O

N
N

O
.

ISSUE DATE

DRAWN BY:

PROJECT NUMBER

DESIGNED BY:

20190020

06/03/2019

CHECKED BY:

123456

SCALE:

7

SHEET

VERTICAL
HORIZONTAL

H
A

PREPARED FOR:

D. HOVEY

M. GRAY

D. HOVEY

C
H

AR
LE

S 
D

O
U

G
LA

S

36
 W

 H
W

Y 
34

, C
IT

Y 
O

F 
N

EW
N

AN
, C

O
W

ET
A 

C
O

U
N

TY
, G

A

A
N

N
EX

A
TI

O
N

 P
LA

T
FO

R

 C
O

U
N

TY
  L

.L
. 3

7 
& 

28
 ~

 5
TH

 D
IS

TR
IC

T

PREPARED FOR:

OWNER / DEVELOPER
24 HOUR CONTACT

HOVEY & ASSOCIATES INC.
ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS

130 HOWARD LANE SUITE B
FAYETTEVILLE, GA  30214

PHONE: 770-460-2200
EMAIL: dghovey@bellsouth.net

R
EV

IS
ED

 B
Y:

---------------------

CHARLES DOUGLAS

439 PIERCE CHAPEL RD
NEWNAN, GA 30263

CONTACT: CHARLES DOUGLAS
PHONE: 770-328-4002

EMAIL: CDDOUGLAS4@YAHOO.COM

C
U

R
R

EN
T 

ZO
N

IN
G

C1.1
SITE PLAN 

N/A
1" = 100'



D
AT

E
D

ES
C

R
IP

TI
O

N
N

O
.

ISSUE DATE

DRAWN BY:

PROJECT NUMBER

DESIGNED BY:

20190020

06/03/2019

CHECKED BY:

123456

SCALE:

7

SHEET

VERTICAL
HORIZONTAL

H
A

PREPARED FOR:

D. HOVEY

M. GRAY

D. HOVEY

C
H

AR
LE

S 
D

O
U

G
LA

S

36
 W

 H
W

Y 
34

, C
IT

Y 
O

F 
N

EW
N

AN
, C

O
W

ET
A 

C
O

U
N

TY
, G

A

A
N

N
EX

A
TI

O
N

 P
LA

T
FO

R

 C
O

U
N

TY
  L

.L
. 3

7 
& 

28
 ~

 5
TH

 D
IS

TR
IC

T

PREPARED FOR:

OWNER / DEVELOPER
24 HOUR CONTACT

HOVEY & ASSOCIATES INC.
ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS

130 HOWARD LANE SUITE B
FAYETTEVILLE, GA  30214

PHONE: 770-460-2200
EMAIL: dghovey@bellsouth.net

R
EV

IS
ED

 B
Y:

---------------------

CHARLES DOUGLAS

439 PIERCE CHAPEL RD
NEWNAN, GA 30263

CONTACT: CHARLES DOUGLAS
PHONE: 770-328-4002

EMAIL: CDDOUGLAS4@YAHOO.COM

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 C

O
N

D
IT

IO
N

S

C1.2
SITE PLAN 

N/A
1" = 100'



D
AT

E
D

ES
C

R
IP

TI
O

N
N

O
.

ISSUE DATE

DRAWN BY:

PROJECT NUMBER

DESIGNED BY:

20190020

06/03/2019

CHECKED BY:

123456

SCALE:

7

SHEET

VERTICAL
HORIZONTAL

H
A

PREPARED FOR:

D. HOVEY

M. GRAY

D. HOVEY

C
H

AR
LE

S 
D

O
U

G
LA

S

36
 W

 H
W

Y 
34

, C
IT

Y 
O

F 
N

EW
N

AN
, C

O
W

ET
A 

C
O

U
N

TY
, G

A

A
N

N
EX

A
TI

O
N

 P
LA

T
FO

R

 C
O

U
N

TY
  L

.L
. 3

7 
& 

28
 ~

 5
TH

 D
IS

TR
IC

T

PREPARED FOR:

OWNER / DEVELOPER
24 HOUR CONTACT

HOVEY & ASSOCIATES INC.
ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS

130 HOWARD LANE SUITE B
FAYETTEVILLE, GA  30214

PHONE: 770-460-2200
EMAIL: dghovey@bellsouth.net

R
EV

IS
ED

 B
Y:

---------------------

CHARLES DOUGLAS

439 PIERCE CHAPEL RD
NEWNAN, GA 30263

CONTACT: CHARLES DOUGLAS
PHONE: 770-328-4002

EMAIL: CDDOUGLAS4@YAHOO.COM

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 C

O
N

C
EP

T 
PL

AN

C1.3
SITE PLAN 

N/A
1" = 100'



City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 
 
Date:  June 18, 2019 
 
Agenda Item:  Rezoning Request RZ2019-06, Charles Douglas for 9.85 ± 

acres located on Helen Street and Belk Road (Tax Parcel 
#s N42 0001 001, N43 002; 062B 165, and 062B 114A) 

 
Prepared and Presented by:  Tracy S. Dunnavant, Planning Director 
 

 
Purpose:     To inform the City Council that RZ2019-06 is before the Planning Commission for 
consideration and a recommendation on the requested zoning classification. 
 
Background:     Charles Douglas has submitted an application for the rezoning of 9.85 ± acres 
located on Helen Street and Belk Road.  The request is to rezone the properties from ILT (Light 
Industrial District) and RS-15 (Suburban Residential Single-Family Dwelling District – Medium 
Density) to RML (Residential Multi-Family Dwelling – Lower Density District) for the purpose of 
constructing a 96-unit apartment complex.  Mr. Douglas is also seeking an annexation of 2.18 
acres which will be combined with this tract as part of the project. 
 

Current Zoning 
 

Tax Parcel # Acres Zoning Units 
N42 0001 001 

N43 002 
062B 165 

062B 114A 
 

0.54± 
6.60± 
0.56± 
2.15± 

RS-15 
RS-15 
RS-15 

ILT 

RS-15 will allow 
up to 2.5 units 
per acre; ILT 

does not allow 
residential 

 
Requested Zoning 

 

Tax Parcel # Acres Zoning Units 
N42 0001 001 

N43 002 
062B 165 

062B 114A 
 

0.54± 
6.60± 
0.56± 
2.15± 

 
RML 

 

 
96 proposed 
multi-family 

apartment units 

 
 

Attachments:  Application for Rezoning 
   Location Map 
    

Previous Discussions with Council:   None 



BELT RD

FRANKLIN RD

DOUGLAS DR

BI
TT

ER
SW

EE
T L

N

HELEN ST

W HIGHWAY 34

WY
NN

 ST

MULBERRY ST

25

209

0

27

26

10

298

15

2

0

0 10

24

11

8

36

22
30

540

17

7

0

2

2

0

0
0

8

32

21

28

32

39

35

71
75

33

31

16

73

21

253

89

23

23

65

245

239

13

61

29

83

17

0

59
51 55

24

25

0

31

12

19

24

85

6

80

22

29

911

40

76

11 7
4

27

74

036

9

14

343 427

0

10

5
192315

4

72

275

35

231

13120114
CITY OF NEWNAN  | Project Location

1 inch = 300 feet

CITY OF NEWNAN
PLANNING DEPT. 

25 LAGRANGE STREET
NEWNAN, GEORGIA 30263

www.ci.newnan.ga.us

N LEGEND
CITY LIMITS

Project Rezoning 

PARCELS

Annexation 

UV34

Helen St

SITE

FRAKLIN RD @ HELEN ST
NEWNAN GA. 30263

ADDRESS







































D
AT

E
D

ES
C

R
IP

TI
O

N
N

O
.

ISSUE DATE

DRAWN BY:

PROJECT NUMBER

DESIGNED BY:

20190020

06/03/2019

CHECKED BY:

123456

SCALE:

7

SHEET

VERTICAL
HORIZONTAL

H
A

PREPARED FOR:

D. HOVEY

M. GRAY

D. HOVEY

C
H

AR
LE

S 
D

O
U

G
LA

S

36
 W

 H
W

Y 
34

, C
IT

Y 
O

F 
N

EW
N

AN
, C

O
W

ET
A 

C
O

U
N

TY
, G

A

A
N

N
EX

A
TI

O
N

 P
LA

T
FO

R

 C
O

U
N

TY
  L

.L
. 3

7 
& 

28
 ~

 5
TH

 D
IS

TR
IC

T

PREPARED FOR:

OWNER / DEVELOPER
24 HOUR CONTACT

HOVEY & ASSOCIATES INC.
ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS

130 HOWARD LANE SUITE B
FAYETTEVILLE, GA  30214

PHONE: 770-460-2200
EMAIL: dghovey@bellsouth.net

R
EV

IS
ED

 B
Y:

---------------------

CHARLES DOUGLAS

439 PIERCE CHAPEL RD
NEWNAN, GA 30263

CONTACT: CHARLES DOUGLAS
PHONE: 770-328-4002

EMAIL: CDDOUGLAS4@YAHOO.COM

C
U

R
R

EN
T 

ZO
N

IN
G

C1.1
SITE PLAN 

N/A
1" = 100'



D
AT

E
D

ES
C

R
IP

TI
O

N
N

O
.

ISSUE DATE

DRAWN BY:

PROJECT NUMBER

DESIGNED BY:

20190020

06/03/2019

CHECKED BY:

123456

SCALE:

7

SHEET

VERTICAL
HORIZONTAL

H
A

PREPARED FOR:

D. HOVEY

M. GRAY

D. HOVEY

C
H

AR
LE

S 
D

O
U

G
LA

S

36
 W

 H
W

Y 
34

, C
IT

Y 
O

F 
N

EW
N

AN
, C

O
W

ET
A 

C
O

U
N

TY
, G

A

A
N

N
EX

A
TI

O
N

 P
LA

T
FO

R

 C
O

U
N

TY
  L

.L
. 3

7 
& 

28
 ~

 5
TH

 D
IS

TR
IC

T

PREPARED FOR:

OWNER / DEVELOPER
24 HOUR CONTACT

HOVEY & ASSOCIATES INC.
ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS

130 HOWARD LANE SUITE B
FAYETTEVILLE, GA  30214

PHONE: 770-460-2200
EMAIL: dghovey@bellsouth.net

R
EV

IS
ED

 B
Y:

---------------------

CHARLES DOUGLAS

439 PIERCE CHAPEL RD
NEWNAN, GA 30263

CONTACT: CHARLES DOUGLAS
PHONE: 770-328-4002

EMAIL: CDDOUGLAS4@YAHOO.COM

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 C

O
N

D
IT

IO
N

S

C1.2
SITE PLAN 

N/A
1" = 100'



D
AT

E
D

ES
C

R
IP

TI
O

N
N

O
.

ISSUE DATE

DRAWN BY:

PROJECT NUMBER

DESIGNED BY:

20190020

06/03/2019

CHECKED BY:

123456

SCALE:

7

SHEET

VERTICAL
HORIZONTAL

H
A

PREPARED FOR:

D. HOVEY

M. GRAY

D. HOVEY

C
H

AR
LE

S 
D

O
U

G
LA

S

36
 W

 H
W

Y 
34

, C
IT

Y 
O

F 
N

EW
N

AN
, C

O
W

ET
A 

C
O

U
N

TY
, G

A

A
N

N
EX

A
TI

O
N

 P
LA

T
FO

R

 C
O

U
N

TY
  L

.L
. 3

7 
& 

28
 ~

 5
TH

 D
IS

TR
IC

T

PREPARED FOR:

OWNER / DEVELOPER
24 HOUR CONTACT

HOVEY & ASSOCIATES INC.
ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS

130 HOWARD LANE SUITE B
FAYETTEVILLE, GA  30214

PHONE: 770-460-2200
EMAIL: dghovey@bellsouth.net

R
EV

IS
ED

 B
Y:

---------------------

CHARLES DOUGLAS

439 PIERCE CHAPEL RD
NEWNAN, GA 30263

CONTACT: CHARLES DOUGLAS
PHONE: 770-328-4002

EMAIL: CDDOUGLAS4@YAHOO.COM

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 C

O
N

C
EP

T 
PL

AN

C1.3
SITE PLAN 

N/A
1" = 100'



City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 
 
Date: June 18, 2019  
 
Agenda Item:  6 Glenn St 
 
Prepared and Presented by: 
Matt Murray, Code Enforcement Officer 
 
Submitted by: Bill Stephenson, Chief Building Official 

 
 
 
Purpose:      To schedule the public hearing concerning the dilapidated structure 

located at 6 Glenn St.  
 
 
Background:  Owner: Eyesight Capital LLC (foreclosure) 
                                   Permits: Demo, Elec, Plumb, Res. Add, Footing….9/18 (closed 11/18) 
 Date Sub-Standard housing file was opened: April 25, 2018 
 

Does the cost to bring this structure into compliance by means of repair 
exceed 50% of the structure’s assessed tax value? YES  
 
Previous inspections by Newnan Building Department have deemed the 
property to be unsafe. Information was presented to Council electronically 
concerning the condition of the above mentioned property on May 28, 
2019.  

 
 
 
Options:              

1. Set Public Hearing Date for July 16, 2019.  
2. Other direction from Council. 

 
 
Funding:       Not Applicable 
 
 
Recommendation:   Staff is requesting Council’s approval to proceed with Option 1. 
       
 
Previous Discussions with Council:            
 
May 28, 2019 - Council informed of conditions.    
 
 
    
 



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 



City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 
 
Date: June 18, 2019  
 
Agenda Item:  8 Glenn St 
 
Prepared and Presented by: 
Matt Murray, Code Enforcement Officer 
 
Submitted by: Bill Stephenson, Chief Building Official 

 
 
 
Purpose:      To schedule the public hearing concerning the dilapidated structure 

located at 8 Glenn St.  
 
 
Background:  Owner: Eyesight Capital LLC (foreclosure) 
                                   Permits: Demo, Elec, Plumb, Res. Add, Footing….2018 
 Date Sub-Standard housing file was opened: June 20, 2018 
 

Does the cost to bring this structure into compliance by means of repair 
exceed 50% of the structure’s assessed tax value? YES  
 
Previous inspections by Newnan Building Department have deemed the 
property to be unsafe. Information was presented to Council electronically 
concerning the condition of the above mentioned property on May 28, 
2019.  

 
 
 
Options:              

1. Set Public Hearing Date for July 16, 2019.  
2. Other direction from Council. 

 
 
Funding:       Not Applicable 
 
 
Recommendation:   Staff is requesting Council’s approval to proceed with Option 1. 
       
 
Previous Discussions with Council:            
 
May 28, 2019 - Council informed of conditions.    
 
 
    
 



 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 
 
Date: June 18, 2019  
 
Agenda Item:  100 Sprayberry Rd 
 
Prepared and Presented by: 
Matt Murray, Code Enforcement Officer 
 
Submitted by: Bill Stephenson, Chief Building Official 

 
 
 
Purpose:      To schedule the public hearing concerning the dilapidated structure 

located at 100 Sprayberry Rd.  
 
 
Background:  Owner: Edwin Jean-Pierre 
                                   Permits: Reno 11/18, plans review 11/18, plumb 9/17 
 Date Sub-Standard housing file was opened: September 26, 2016 
 

Does the cost to bring this structure into compliance by means of repair 
exceed 50% of the structure’s assessed tax value? YES  
 
Previous inspections by Newnan Building Department have deemed the 
property to be unsafe. Information was presented to Council electronically 
concerning the condition of the above mentioned property on May 28, 
2018.  

 
 
 
Options:              

1. Set Public Hearing Date for July 16, 2019.  
2. Other direction from Council. 

 
 
Funding:       Not Applicable 
 
 
Recommendation:   Staff is requesting Council’s approval to proceed with Option 1. 
       
 
Previous Discussions with Council:            
 
May 28, 2019 - Council informed of conditions.    
 
 
    
 



 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 
 
Date:    June 18, 2019  
 
Agenda Item:   18 Berry Ave., Newnan, Ga 30263 
 
Prepared and Presented by: 

Matt Murray, Code Enforcement Officer 
 
Submitted by:  Bill Stephenson, Chief Building Official 

 
 
 
Purpose:      To conduct a public hearing concerning the dilapidated structure located 

at 18 Berry Ave., Newnan, Ga 30263 
 
 
Background: Owner: Daniel & Derether Moten Estate 
 
 Date Sub-Standard housing file was opened: December 18, 2018.  

Does the cost to bring this structure into compliance by means of repair 
exceed 50% of the structure’s assessed tax value? YES  
 
On December 18, 2018 the Building Department conducted an inspection 
of the premises. The structure has been determined to be unsafe as set 
forth by City Ordinance Section 5-24. (a), Sub-sections (3, 4, 5, 6, 8, 9, 
10). 

Options: 
1. Adopt a resolution directing the property owner to either repair or 

demolish the structure within forty five (45) days. 
2. Other direction from Council. 

 
 
Funding:       Not Applicable 
 
 
Recommendation:   Staff is requesting Council’s approval to proceed with Option 1. 
       
 
Previous Discussions with Council:            
 
April 19, 2019 – Council informed of conditions.    
 
May 7, 2019 – Public Hearing was requested. 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 



 

 

 

 

 

After recording please return to: 

Della Hill, City of Newnan 

25 LaGrange Street 

Newnan, GA 30263 
 

RESOLUTION 
 

IN RE:  Estate of Daniel Moten  Lien Holders: 

 Derether Moten   Coweta County Tax Commissioner 

 18 Berry Avenue   City of Newnan 

 Newnan, Georgia 30263 

 Deed Book 912 Page 20  

      

WHEREAS, the property of the Estate of Daniel Moten and Derether Moten located 
at 18 Berry Avenue, Newnan, Georgia 30263, in the City of Newnan was alleged by the 
Building Official of the City to be an unsafe building, as defined by an Ordinance adopted by 
the Mayor and Council on October 10, 1977; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, a hearing was set for the Mayor and Council to determine in accordance 
with the provisions of such Ordinance whether such building was in fact an unsafe building, 
as defined in such Ordinance and/or that the same was unsafe to the extent that it should be 
demolished or repaired; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, notice of such hearing was given to the owner, lien holder and tenant, if 
any, as required by such Ordinance, and all other provisions of the Ordinance have been 
complied with; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, the Mayor and Council of the City of Newnan, after hearing 
evidence upon the question of whether such building is an unsafe building as defined by the 

Ordinance of the City of Newnan, do hereby determine that the building of Estate of Daniel 

Moten and Derether Moten located at 18 Berry Avenue, Newnan, Georgia 30263, should be 
repaired or demolished, and the owner thereof is given __________________________ 
(______) days within which to repair or demolish and remove the same; 
 
 RESOLVED FURTHER, that in the event the owner shall fail to repair or demolish 
and remove the same within the period of __________________________ (______) days herein 
fixed, the Building Official of the City of Newnan is hereby ordered to repair or demolish 
and remove the same, and to prepare an itemization of the cost of such repair or demolition 
and removal, and deliver such itemization to the Clerk of the City of Newnan, who is 
ordered to issue an execution against the owner for the total cost of such repair or demolition 
and removal, which execution shall constitute a lien against such real estate as of the date of 
this resolution - all in accordance with the Ordinances of the City of Newnan. 



 
 
 ADOPTED AND APPROVED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Newnan this 
___ day of _______________, 2019. 
 
 
ATTEST:     ___________________________________ 
      L. Keith Brady, Mayor 
_________________________________ 
Della Hill, City Clerk     
      ___________________________________ 
      Cynthia E. Jenkins, Mayor Pro-Tem 
REVIEWED AS TO FORM: 
 
_________________________________  ___________________________________ 
C. Bradford Sears, Jr., City Attorney  George M.  Alexander, Councilmember 
 
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Cleatus Phillips, City Manager  Raymond F. DuBose, Councilmember 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Rhodes H. Shell, Councilmember 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Dustin Koritko, Councilmember 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Paul Guillaume, Councilmember 



 

IN RE:  Estate of Daniel Moten  Lien Holders: 

 Derether Moten   Coweta County Tax Commissioner 

 18 Berry Avenue   City of Newnan 

 Newnan, Georgia 30263 

 Deed Book 912 Page 20  
  
GEORGIA, COWETA COUNTY: 
` 
 
 The requirements of the resolution of the Mayor and Council of the City of Newnan 

adopted on the _____ day of _________________, 2019 and recorded in Deed Book ______, 

Page _______ of the Deed Records of Coweta County, Georgia relating to property located at  

18 Berry Avenue in the City of Newnan, Georgia having been complied with, the Clerk of 

Superior Court is authorized to enter this satisfaction thereof of record. 

 This ______ day of _____________________, 2019. 

 
 
      CITY OF NEWNAN 
 
      By:________________________________ 
         Building Official 
 
      Attest:_____________________________ 
         Clerk 
 
 
 
 
[SEAL] 
 
 

 
 



City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 
 
Date:    June 18, 2019  
 
Agenda Item:   33 Hardaway St., Newnan, Ga 30263 
 
Prepared and Presented by: 

Matt Murray, Code Enforcement Officer 
 
Submitted by:  Bill Stephenson, Chief Building Official 

 
 
 
Purpose:      To conduct a public hearing concerning the dilapidated structure located 

at 33 Hardaway St., Newnan, Ga 30263 
 
 
Background: Owner: Annie Pearl Cook Estate 
 
 Date Sub-Standard housing file was opened: March 1, 2019.  

Does the cost to bring this structure into compliance by means of repair 
exceed 50% of the structure’s assessed tax value? YES  
 
On March 4, 2019 the Building Department conducted an inspection of 
the premises. The structure has been determined to be unsafe as set 
forth by City Ordinance Section 5-24. (a), Sub-sections (3, 4, 5, 6, 8, 9, 
10). 

Options: 
1. Adopt a resolution directing the property owner to either repair or 

demolish the structure within forty five (45) days. 
2. Other direction from Council. 

 
 
Funding:       Not Applicable 
 
 
Recommendation:   Staff is requesting Council’s approval to proceed with Option 1. 
       
 
Previous Discussions with Council:            
 
April 19, 2019 – Council informed of conditions.    
 
May 7, 2019 – Public Hearing was requested. 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

After recording please return to: 

Della Hill, City of Newnan 

25 LaGrange Street 

Newnan, GA 30263 
 

RESOLUTION 
 

IN RE:  Estate of Annie Pearl Cook  Lien Holders: 

 33 Hardaway Street   Coweta County Tax Commissioner 

 Newnan, Georgia 30263  City of Newnan 

 Deed Book 156 Page 113  

      

WHEREAS, the property of the Estate of Annie Pearl Cook located at 33 Hardaway 
Street, Newnan, Georgia 30263, in the City of Newnan was alleged by the Building Official of 
the City to be an unsafe building, as defined by an Ordinance adopted by the Mayor and 
Council on October 10, 1977; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, a hearing was set for the Mayor and Council to determine in accordance 
with the provisions of such Ordinance whether such building was in fact an unsafe building, 
as defined in such Ordinance and/or that the same was unsafe to the extent that it should be 
demolished or repaired; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, notice of such hearing was given to the owner, lien holder and tenant, if 
any, as required by such Ordinance, and all other provisions of the Ordinance have been 
complied with; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, the Mayor and Council of the City of Newnan, after hearing 
evidence upon the question of whether such building is an unsafe building as defined by the 

Ordinance of the City of Newnan, do hereby determine that the building of Estate of Annie 

Pearl Cook located at 33 Hardaway Street, Newnan, Georgia 30263, should be repaired or 
demolished, and the owner thereof is given __________________________ (______) days 
within which to repair or demolish and remove the same; 
 
 RESOLVED FURTHER, that in the event the owner shall fail to repair or demolish 
and remove the same within the period of __________________________ (______) days herein 
fixed, the Building Official of the City of Newnan is hereby ordered to repair or demolish 
and remove the same, and to prepare an itemization of the cost of such repair or demolition 
and removal, and deliver such itemization to the Clerk of the City of Newnan, who is 
ordered to issue an execution against the owner for the total cost of such repair or demolition 
and removal, which execution shall constitute a lien against such real estate as of the date of 
this resolution - all in accordance with the Ordinances of the City of Newnan. 



 
 
 ADOPTED AND APPROVED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Newnan this 
___ day of _______________, 2019. 
 
 
ATTEST:     ___________________________________ 
      L. Keith Brady, Mayor 
_________________________________ 
Della Hill, City Clerk     
      ___________________________________ 
      Cynthia E. Jenkins, Mayor Pro-Tem 
REVIEWED AS TO FORM: 
 
_________________________________  ___________________________________ 
C. Bradford Sears, Jr., City Attorney  George M.  Alexander, Councilmember 
 
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Cleatus Phillips, City Manager  Raymond F. DuBose, Councilmember 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Rhodes H. Shell, Councilmember 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Dustin Koritko, Councilmember 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Paul Guillaume, Councilmember 



IN RE:  Estate of Annie Pearl Cook  Lien Holders: 

 33 Hardaway Street   Coweta County Tax Commissioner 

 Newnan, Georgia 30263  City of Newnan 

 Deed Book 156 Page 113  

 
  
GEORGIA, COWETA COUNTY: 
` 
 
 The requirements of the resolution of the Mayor and Council of the City of Newnan 

adopted on the _____ day of _________________, 2019 and recorded in Deed Book ______, 

Page _______ of the Deed Records of Coweta County, Georgia relating to property located at  

33 Hardaway Street in the City of Newnan, Georgia having been complied with, the Clerk of 

Superior Court is authorized to enter this satisfaction thereof of record. 

 This ______ day of _____________________, 2019. 

 
 
      CITY OF NEWNAN 
 
      By:________________________________ 
         Building Official 
 
      Attest:_____________________________ 
         Clerk 
 
 
 
 
[SEAL] 
 
 

 
 



City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 
 
Date:    June 18, 2019  
 
Agenda Item:   11 Melson St., Newnan, Ga 30263 
 
Prepared and Presented by: 

Matt Murray, Code Enforcement Officer 
 
Submitted by:  Bill Stephenson, Chief Building Official 

 
 
 
Purpose:      Continued – Public Hearing held on April 23, 2019 concerning the 

dilapidated structure located at 11 Melson St., Newnan, Ga 30263 
 
 
Background: Owner: Cassandra D. Richardson 
 
 Date Sub-Standard housing file was opened: October 2, 2014.  

Does the cost to bring this structure into compliance by means of repair 
exceed 50% of the structure’s assessed tax value? YES  
 
On November 28, 2018 the Building Department conducted an inspection 
of the premises. The structure has been determined to be unsafe as set 
forth by City Ordinance Section 5-24. (a), Sub-sections (3, 4, 5, 6, 8, 9, 
10). 

Options: 
1. Adopt a resolution directing the property owner to either repair or 

demolish the structure within forty five (45) days. 
2. Other direction from Council. 

 
 
Funding:       Not Applicable 
 
 
Recommendation:   Staff is requesting Council’s approval to proceed with Option 1. 
       
 
Previous Discussions with Council:            
 
February 20, 2019 – Council informed of conditions.    
 
March 11, 2019 – Public Hearing was requested. 
 
April 23, 2019 – Public Hearing held – item continued 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 



 

 

 

 

 

After recording please return to: 

Della Hill, City of Newnan 

25 LaGrange Street 

Newnan, GA 30263 
 

RESOLUTION 
 

IN RE:  Cassandra D. Richardson  Lien Holders: 

 11 Melson Street   Coweta County Tax Commissioner 

 Newnan, GA 30263   City of Newnan 

 Deed Book 4478 page 838  

      

      
   

 WHEREAS, the property of Cassandra D. Richardson located at 11 Melson Street, 
Newnan, Georgia 30263, in the City of Newnan was alleged by the Building Official of the 
City to be an unsafe building, as defined by an Ordinance adopted by the Mayor and 
Council on October 10, 1977; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, a hearing was set for the Mayor and Council to determine in accordance 
with the provisions of such Ordinance whether such building was in fact an unsafe building, 
as defined in such Ordinance and/or that the same was unsafe to the extent that it should be 
demolished or repaired; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, notice of such hearing was given to the owner, lien holder and tenant, if 
any, as required by such Ordinance, and all other provisions of the Ordinance have been 
complied with; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, the Mayor and Council of the City of Newnan, after hearing 
evidence upon the question of whether such building is an unsafe building as defined by the 

Ordinance of the City of Newnan, do hereby determine that the building of Cassandra D. 

Richardson located at 11 Melson Street Newnan, Georgia 30263, should be repaired or 
demolished, and the owner thereof is given __________________________ (______) days 
within which to repair or demolish and remove the same; 
 
 RESOLVED FURTHER, that in the event the owner shall fail to repair or demolish 
and remove the same within the period of __________________________ (______) days herein 
fixed, the Building Official of the City of Newnan is hereby ordered to repair or demolish 
and remove the same, and to prepare an itemization of the cost of such repair or demolition 
and removal, and deliver such itemization to the Clerk of the City of Newnan, who is 
ordered to issue an execution against the owner for the total cost of such repair or demolition 
and removal, which execution shall constitute a lien against such real estate as of the date of 
this resolution - all in accordance with the Ordinances of the City of Newnan. 



 
 
 ADOPTED AND APPROVED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Newnan this 
___ day of _______________, 2019. 
 
 
ATTEST:     ___________________________________ 
      L. Keith Brady, Mayor 
_________________________________ 
Della Hill, City Clerk     
      ___________________________________ 
      Cynthia E. Jenkins, Mayor Pro-Tem 
REVIEWED AS TO FORM: 
 
_________________________________  ___________________________________ 
C. Bradford Sears, Jr., City Attorney  George M.  Alexander, Councilmember 
 
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Cleatus Phillips, City Manager  Raymond F. DuBose, Councilmember 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Rhodes H. Shell, Councilmember 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Dustin Koritko, Councilmember 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Paul Guillaume, Councilmember 



IN RE:  Cassandra D. Richardson  Lien Holders: 

 11 Melson Street   Coweta County Tax Commissioner 

 Newnan, GA 30263   City of Newnan 

 Deed Book 4478 Page 838 
 
GEORGIA, COWETA COUNTY: 
` 
 
 The requirements of the resolution of the Mayor and Council of the City of Newnan 

adopted on the _____ day of _________________, 2019 and recorded in Deed Book ______, 

Page _______ of the Deed Records of Coweta County, Georgia relating to property located at  

11 Melson Street in the City of Newnan, Georgia having been complied with, the Clerk of 

Superior Court is authorized to enter this satisfaction thereof of record. 

 This ______ day of _____________________, 2019. 

 
 
      CITY OF NEWNAN 
 
      By:________________________________ 
         Building Official 
 
      Attest:_____________________________ 
         Clerk 
 
 
 
 
[SEAL] 
 
 

 
 



City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 
 
Date:    June 18, 2019  
 
Agenda Item:   15 Elm Cir, Newnan, Ga 30263 
 
Prepared and Presented by: 

Matt Murray, Code Enforcement Officer 
 
Submitted by:  Bill Stephenson, Chief Building Official 

 
 
 
Purpose:      Continued – Public Hearing held on April 23, 2019 concerning the 

dilapidated structure located at 15 Elm Cir, Newnan, Ga 30263 
 
 
Background: Owner: Mary Jean Payne Estate c/o Jeffrey Donald Payne Executor 
 
 Date Sub-Standard housing file was opened: July 12, 2018.   

Does the cost to bring this structure into compliance by means of repair 
exceed 50% of the structure’s assessed tax value? YES  
 
On November 28, 2018 the Building Department conducted an inspection 
of the premises. The structure has been determined to be unsafe as set 
forth by City Ordinance Section 5-24. (a), Sub-sections (3, 4, 5, 6, 8, 9, 
10). 

Options: 
1. Adopt a resolution directing the property owner to either repair or 

demolish the structure within forty five (45) days. 
2. Other direction from Council. 

 
 
Funding:       Not Applicable 
 
 
Recommendation:   Staff is requesting Council’s approval to proceed with Option 1. 
       
 
Previous Discussions with Council:            
 
February 20, 2019 – Council informed of conditions.    
 
March 11, 2019 – Public Hearing was requested. 
 
April 23, 2019 – Public Hearing held – Item continued 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 



 



 

 

 

 

 

After recording please return to: 

Della Hill, City of Newnan 

25 LaGrange Street 

Newnan, GA 30263 
 

RESOLUTION 
 

IN RE: Mary Jean Avery Payne Estate  Lien Holders: 

c/o Jeffrey Donald Payne, Executor  Coweta County Tax Commissioner 

15 Elm Circle     City of Newnan 

Newnan, Georgia 30263 

Deed Book 322 page 290      
   

 WHEREAS, the property of Mary Jean Avery Payne Estate, c/o Jeffrey Donald 

Payne, Executor located at 15 Elm Circle, Newnan, Georgia 30263, in the City of Newnan 
was alleged by the Building Official of the City to be an unsafe building, as defined by an 
Ordinance adopted by the Mayor and Council on October 10, 1977; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, a hearing was set for the Mayor and Council to determine in accordance 
with the provisions of such Ordinance whether such building was in fact an unsafe building, 
as defined in such Ordinance and/or that the same was unsafe to the extent that it should be 
demolished or repaired; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, notice of such hearing was given to the owner, lien holder and tenant, if 
any, as required by such Ordinance, and all other provisions of the Ordinance have been 
complied with; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, the Mayor and Council of the City of Newnan, after hearing 
evidence upon the question of whether such building is an unsafe building as defined by the 

Ordinance of the City of Newnan, do hereby determine that the building of Mary Jean 

Avery Payne Estate, c/o Jeffrey Donald Payne, Executor located at 15 Elm Circle, Newnan, 
Georgia 30263, should be repaired or demolished, and the owner thereof is given 
__________________________ (______) days within which to repair or demolish and remove 
the same; 
 
 RESOLVED FURTHER, that in the event the owner shall fail to repair or demolish 
and remove the same within the period of __________________________ (______) days herein 
fixed, the Building Official of the City of Newnan is hereby ordered to repair or demolish 
and remove the same, and to prepare an itemization of the cost of such repair or demolition 
and removal, and deliver such itemization to the Clerk of the City of Newnan, who is 
ordered to issue an execution against the owner for the total cost of such repair or demolition 
and removal, which execution shall constitute a lien against such real estate as of the date of 
this resolution - all in accordance with the Ordinances of the City of Newnan. 



 
 
 ADOPTED AND APPROVED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Newnan this 
___ day of _______________, 2019. 
 
 
ATTEST:     ___________________________________ 
      L. Keith Brady, Mayor 
_________________________________ 
Della Hill, City Clerk     
      ___________________________________ 
      Cynthia E. Jenkins, Mayor Pro-Tem 
REVIEWED AS TO FORM: 
 
_________________________________  ___________________________________ 
C. Bradford Sears, Jr., City Attorney  George M.  Alexander, Councilmember 
 
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Cleatus Phillips, City Manager  Raymond F. DuBose, Councilmember 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Rhodes H. Shell, Councilmember 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Dustin Koritko, Councilmember 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Paul Guillaume, Councilmember 



IN RE: Mary Jean Avery Payne Estate  Lien Holders: 

c/o Jeffrey Donald Payne, Executor  Coweta County Tax Commissioner 

15 Elm Circle     City of Newnan 

Newnan, Georgia 30263 

Deed Book 322 page 290      
   

 
 
GEORGIA, COWETA COUNTY: 
` 
 
 The requirements of the resolution of the Mayor and Council of the City of Newnan 

adopted on the _____ day of _________________, 2019 and recorded in Deed Book ______, 

Page _______ of the Deed Records of Coweta County, Georgia relating to property located at  

15 Elm Circle in the City of Newnan, Georgia having been complied with, the Clerk of 

Superior Court is authorized to enter this satisfaction thereof of record. 

 This ______ day of _____________________, 2019. 

 
 
      CITY OF NEWNAN 
 
      By:________________________________ 
         Building Official 
 
      Attest:_____________________________ 
         Clerk 
 
 
 
 
[SEAL] 
 
 

 
 



     City of Newnan, Georgia – Mayor and Council 

  Date:      June 18, 2019 

 

 

Agenda Item:                             10 Burch Ave, 280 West Washington St., 121 Pinson St., 180 West Washington St., 17 

Ray St, 11 Melson St, 15 Elm Cir 

 

Prepared and Presented by: Matt Murray, Code Enforcement Officer 

 

 

Submitted by:    Bill Stephenson, Chief Building Official 

 

 

Purpose: To inform Council of the status of 10 Burch St, 280 West Washington St., 121 Pinson St., 180 West 

Washington St., 17 Ray St, 11 Melson St and 15 Elm Cir having been before Council in Public 

Hearings.   

 

 

Background: Date of Status Check:  June 11, 2019 

 

 

 

 
Property Address 

 

 

Owner 

 

 Original Hearing Original # 

Of Days 

Allowed 

Original Resolution 

Deadline 

 Extensions Updated 

Resolution 

Deadline 

Status 

 

10 Burch Ave 

 

 

Abdul Saeed Kader 

  

March 28,2017 
 

45 days 
 

May 12,2017 

  

180 Days 
 

June 9,2019 
 

No progress-property 

for sale 

 

280 West Washington St 

  

Irvin Jones Estate 

  

February 24, 2015 

 

180 Days 

 

August 23, 2015 

  

180 Days 

 

October 6, 

2019 

 

Interior progress 

 

 

 

121 Pinson St. 

  

 

Marcus Beasley 

  

 

August 26, 2014 

 

 

 

180 days 

 

 

February 22, 2015 

  

 

90 Days 

 

August 5, 

2019 

 

 

No progress 

  

 



 

 

180 West Washington St. 

  

 

Render Godfrey 

  

 

September 25, 2017 

 

 

45 days 

 

 

November 9, 2017 

  

 

180 Days 

 

 

September 7, 

2019 

 

 

No Progress 

 

 

 

17 Ray St 

 

 

  

Salome Realty LLC 

  

February 26,2019 

 

120 days 

 

June 26, 2019 

 

  

 

  

No Progress- In 

foreclosure 

 

 

11 Melson St 

 

  

 

Cassandra Richardson 

  

 

April 23,2019 

  

 

Cont’d to 6/18/19 

    

 

In Council-no progress 

 

 

15 Elm Cir 

 

  

 

Mary Jean Payne Est 

  

 

April 23, 2019 

  

 

Cont’d to 6/18/19 

    

 

In Council-no progress 

       

 

     

           

           

           

           

           

           

           

           

   

 

        

           

Options:  1. Accept status reports, no further action is required.   

2.  Other direction from Council. 

 

Funding:  Not Applicable 

 

Recommendation: Staff is requesting Council’s approval for Option 1. 

 

Previous Discussions 

With Council:  All have previous history with Council.     



Walter Drake 5, 8 and 9 Ellis and 65, 66, 69 and 70 Fair Street 

Rezoning Request 
2019  - 1 - 

City of Newnan, Georgia – Mayor and City Council 
 
Date:  June 18, 2019 
 
Agenda Item: Rezoning Request – RZ2019-04 
 1.23± acres located at 5, 8 and 9 Ellis Street and 65, 66, 

69 and 70 Fair Street (Tax Parcel #s N23 0001 005, N23 
0001 004, N23 0002 003, N23 0002 005, N23 0005 004, 
N23 0005 003) 

 
Prepared and Presented by:  Tracy Dunnavant, Planning Director 
 

 
Purpose:      
 
Walter Drake is seeking to change the zoning on 1.23 ± acres located at 5, 8 and 9 Ellis Street 
and 65, 66, 69 and 70 Fair Street (Tax Parcel #s N23 0001 005, N23 0001 004, N23 0002 003, 
N23 0002 005, N23 0005 004, N23 0005 003).  The properties are currently zoned CHV (Heavy 
Commercial District) and CUN (Urban Neighborhood Commercial District).  The applicant is 
seeking a RU-I (Urban Residential Dwelling District – Historical and Infill) zoning designation. 
 

      
 
 

      
 

      



Walter Drake 5, 8 and 9 Ellis and 65, 66, 69 and 70 Fair Street 

Rezoning Request 
2019  - 2 - 

       
 

                                     
 
Background:     
 
The subject properties currently contain existing rental houses and a former commercial building 
that once housed Melear’s Barbecue.  The houses enjoy a legal non-conforming use status, but 
if they are destroyed to an extent greater than 50% of their value, then the uses “shall not be 
reestablished in any way which does not conform to the requirements of the ordinance”.  This 
means that the owner would no longer be able to have a house on the lot as it is not a permitted 
use in either the CHV or CUN districts.  
 
In terms of the duplex, the applicant, thinking that the grandfather status applied to the entire 
property, recently converted the existing commercial building.  Because he did not pull permits, 
he performed the work and only after leasing one of the units discovered the grandfather status 
did not apply to the commercial building.  As a result, Drake is now seeking a rezoning to make 
the structure conforming.  If the rezoning is granted, Drake would still need a special exception 
from the Board of Zoning Appeals to have a duplex in the RU-I zoning designation. 
 

Present Zoning District CHV and CUN 
Proposed Zoning District RU-I 

Current Land Use 
SF Houses 

and Converted 
Duplex 

Parcel Size 1.23 ± acres 
 
Surrounding Zoning Classifications  
 

North CHV & CUN 
East CHV & CUN 

South 
CHV, CUN & IHV 
(railroad tracks) 

West  CHV 



Walter Drake 5, 8 and 9 Ellis and 65, 66, 69 and 70 Fair Street 

Rezoning Request 
2019  - 3 - 

                                       
 
Surrounding Land Use Pattern 
 

North 
Commercial Businesses; 
Existing Grandfathered 

Residential 

East 
Grandfathered 

Residential and Newnan 
FD Station 3 

South 
Grandfathered 

Residential and vacant 
land 

West 
Grandfathered 
Residential and 

commercial business 
 
Summary: 
 
Staff analyzed the following criteria prior to formulating a recommendation: 
 
Is the proposed use suitable in view of the zoning and development of adjacent and 
nearby property? 
 

In researching the subject properties’ zoning designations, Staff determined that the tracts 
have been zoned for commercial uses even before adoption of the 2000 Zoning Ordinance. 
In addition, they are almost entirely surrounded by commercial zoning designations although 
the majority of the abutting uses are grandfathered residential homes.  There are 
commercial uses along Temple Avenue and vacant heavy industrial land to the south across 
the railroad tracks.   
   
It is Staff’s understanding that Drake considered expanding his request to include other 
properties that he did not own in the immediate area, but neighboring property owners were 
not supportive of that idea as they felt commercial zoning designations make their properties 
more valuable.  As a result, Drake is just seeking rezoning for the houses and the duplex 
that he currently owns.   
 
Previously, Drake had submitted an application for just one lot, which Staff felt could have 
been viewed as a spot zoning.  In an effort to avoid this, Drake has added the remaining five 



Walter Drake 5, 8 and 9 Ellis and 65, 66, 69 and 70 Fair Street 

Rezoning Request 
2019  - 4 - 

tracts that he owns to the request.  Since the use of these properties will not change and the 
majority of uses surrounding the tracts are as grandfathered residences, Staff feels the 
continued use of the properties as residential homes would be suitable. 

 
Will the proposed use adversely affect the existing use or usability of adjacent or nearby 
property? 
 

The residences would be a less intense use for the surrounding residential units than an 
office or commercial building.  In addition, the traffic generated by the residences should be 
significantly less.  That being said, the properties surrounding the tracts could see additional 
restrictions (primarily buffers) if they are developed as future commercial or office uses.  In 
addition, any existing or future tenants would have to understand how abutting a commercial 
designation could impact their quality of life as a heavy commercial zoning is the least 
restrictive and therefore the most intrusive of all commercial districts.   

 
Are their substantial reasons why the property cannot or should not be used as currently 
zoned? 
 

The properties are currently zoned for office and commercial uses.  They could be used as 
currently zoned due to their grandfather status, but the duplex would have to revert to a non-
residential use.  It should be noted that if the structures were destroyed beyond 50% of their 
value or if they cease being a residential use for greater than 6 months, they would have to 
be converted to a use permitted within their commercial designation. 

   
Will the proposed use cause an excessive or burdensome use of public facilities or 
services, including but not limited to streets, schools, water or sewer utilities, and police 
or fire protection? 
 

Engineering:  Since these structures are existing, the Engineering Department did not have 
any comments regarding the rezoning. 
 
Police:  The structures are already existing within the city limits, so there will be no 
additional impact on service provision.   
 
Newnan Utilities:  The property is already served by both water and sewer.  Since one of 
the structures is currently commercial, there will actually be less of an impact.   
 
School:  Since there is only one additional duplex, there will be no noticeable 
impact to the school system. 
 
Fire:   The structures are already existing within the city limits, so there will be no 
additional impact on service provision. 

 
Is the proposed use compatible with the purpose and intent of the comprehensive plan? 
 

The Future Land Use Map shows the properties west of Ellis Street as future commercial 
and the two tracts east of Ellis Street as future mixed use commercial.  The residences on 
the east side would be consistent with the mixed use designation; however, the houses on 
the west side would not be consistent with future commercial.  
 
  



Walter Drake 5, 8 and 9 Ellis and 65, 66, 69 and 70 Fair Street 

Rezoning Request 
2019  - 5 - 

Will the use be consistent with the purpose and intent of the proposed zoning district? 
 

The proposed use would be consistent with the purpose and intent of the proposed zoning 
as single-family residential units and duplexes are permitted in the RU-I zoning designation.  
It should be noted that the duplex would still have to receive a special exception from the 
Board of Zoning Appeals if the rezoning is approved. 
 

Is the proposed use supported by new or changing conditions not anticipated by the 
comprehensive plan? 
 

As specified above, the Future Land Use map shows this property as being commercial.  
Since this designation was just assigned in October of 2016, there are no new or changing 
conditions that would impact the designation shown in the Comprehensive Plan with the 
exception of the commercial building being renovated to a duplex.   

 
Does the proposed use reflect a reasonable balance between the promotion of the public 
health, safety, morality, or general welfare and the right to unrestricted use of property? 
 

Staff feels the proposed use for the property will not have a negative impact on the public 
health, safety, morality or general welfare.  In addition, Drake has cleaned up the properties 
and made exterior modifications that have been a positive change for the area.   

     
Proffered Conditions: 
 
None. 

 
Options: 
 
A. Approve the rezoning request as submitted  
B. Approve the rezoning request with conditions 
C. Deny the rezoning request  
 
Planning Commission Recommendation:  
 
At their May 14, 2019 meeting, the Planning Commission held a public hearing on the 
aforementioned requests and voted unanimously to recommend Option “A”, approve the 
rezoning request as submitted.  
 
Attachments:  Application for Rezoning 
   Location Map 

        
Previous Discussions with Council:  April 23, 2019  































1 
 

        Walter Drake 
        Numerous pieces of land 
        5th Land District 
        Fair Street and Ellis Street 
        City of Newnan, GA 
        Tax Parcel #s N23 0001 005, 
        N23 0001 004,  
        N23 0002 003 
        N23 0002 005 
        N23 0005 004 
        N23 0005 003 
 

ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING MAP FOR VARIOUS  
PIECES OF LAND LOCATED IN THE 5th LAND DISTRICT 

IDENTIFIED AS 5, 8 and 9 ELLIS STREET AND 65, 66, 69 and 70 FAIR 
STREET, IN THE CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the owner of the property described herein has filed an 
application to rezone the property shown on Exhibit “A” identified as 5, 8 and 9 
Ellis Street and 65, 66, 69 and 70 Fair Street, from the City of Newnan Zoning 
Classification CHV (Heavy Commercial District) and CUN (Urban neighborhood 
Commercial District) to the City of Newnan Zoning Classification RU-l (Urban 
Residential Dwelling District – Historical and Infill District); and 
 
 WHEREAS, in accordance with the requirements of the City Zoning 
Ordinance, the Planning Commission of the City of Newnan has forwarded it 
recommendation to the City Council;  and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to said requirements of the City Zoning Ordinance, 
the City Council has conducted a properly advertised public hearing on the 
rezoning application not less than 15 nor more than 45 days from the date of 
publication of notice, which public hearing was held on the 18th day of  June, 
2019;  and 
 
 WHEREAS, after the above-referenced public hearing, the City Council 
has determined the re-zoning of the property would be in the best interest of the 
residents, property owners and citizens of the City of Newnan, Georgia; and 
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of 
Newnan, Georgia, that the Zoning Map of the City of Newnan be revised as 
follows: 
 
 Section I. That the property described on Exhibit “A” containing 
numerous pieces of land attached hereto and by reference made a part hereof 
be rezoned City of Newnan Zoning Classification RU-l (Urban Residential 
Dwelling District – Historical and Infill District); 
 
 Section II. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict or 
inconsistent with this Ordinance hereby are repealed. 
 
 Section III. This ordinance shall be effective upon adoption. 



2 
 

 
 DONE, RATIFIED, and PASSED, by the City Council of the City of 
Newnan, Georgia, this the _____ day of __________________________, 2019 in 
regular session assembled. 
 
 
ATTEST:     ___________________________________ 
      L. Keith Brady, Mayor 
_________________________________ 
Della Hill, City Clerk     
      ___________________________________ 
      Cynthia E. Jenkins, Mayor Pro-Tem 
REVIEWED AS TO FORM: 
 
_________________________________  ___________________________________ 

C. Bradford Sears, Jr., City Attorney George M. Alexander, Councilmember 
 
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Cleatus Phillips, City Manager  Raymond F. DuBose, Councilmember 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Rhodes H. Shell, Councilmember 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Dustin Koritko, Councilmember 
 
 
      _________________________________ 

Paul Guillaume, Councilmember 
 
 

 













City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 
 
Date: June 18, 2019   
 
Agenda Item:  Consideration of Contract Change Order for McIntosh 
Parkway/Greison Trail Culvert to Accommodate LINC Section C 
 
Prepared by:   Hasco Craver, Assistant City Manager 

 
 
 
Purpose: Newnan City Council may consider a contract change order for McIntosh 
Parkway/Greison Trail culvert project to accommodate for LINC Section C. 
 
Background: Newnan City Council, at the March 26, 2019 Retreat, discussed the potential funding of 
LINC Section C, which includes facilities located between a certain terminus point at the intersection of 
Ashley Park Boulevard and McInstosh Parkway and another terminus point west of Greison Trail along 
McIntosh Parkway.   
 
Prior to the March 26, 2019 City Council retreat, LINC Section C was removed from the LINC program 
due to a lack of an identifiable funding source. 
 
LINC Sections A, B and D were included in the SPLOST 2019 program.  It was envisioned that LINC 
Section C would remain unbuilt until a time in the future when funding was identified.  In the meantime, 
City Staff, in consultation with Newnan City Council, agreed to utilize new sidewalks along McIntosh 
Parkway as temporary bicycle and pedestrian facilities connecting all LINC Sections between 
Summergrove and historic downtown Newnan. 
 
As a result of conversations at the March 26, 2019 Retreat, City Staff engaged Columbia Engineering 
(McIntosh Parkway project design and construction management firm) and Southeastern Site 
Development (McIntosh Parkway project construction company) to discuss the addition of a triple box 
culvert along Greison Trail to accommodate for the future LINC section C.  In addition, City staff 
engaged Newnan Utilities to discuss any needed utility improvements and/or relocations.  City staff 
requested that the current project team consider the design and construction of the aforementioned 
culvert, thereby providing pricing. 
 
The project team responded to the City staff’s request, providing a potential contract change order to 
construct the culvert as part of the current McIntosh Parkway project.  The total cost for the contract 
change order is $376, 254.55. 
 
More specifically, the project team concluded, after great deliberation, that constructing the needed 
culvert within the current McIntosh Parkway project provided the timeliest and most cost effective 
project delivery method.   
 
The following table reflects the current cost of McIntosh Parkway project (YTD). 
 

Design  $302,959.86 

Construction  Management  $299,656.03 

Construction  $4,466,743.91 

Acquisition  $977,404.00 

Miscellaneous $349,679.15 

Total  $6,396,442.95 

Over/Under Budget $2,447,059.73 
 



 
 

 
Funding: SPLOST 2013 and Impact Fees 
 
Recommendation: It is the recommendation of City staff that the proposed contract change order be 
approved as submitted.    
 
Attachments:  
 

1. McIntosh Parkway/Greison Trail Contract Change Order   
2. Conceptual Alignment for LINC Section C displaying culvert location  

      
Previous Discussions with Council: Newnan City Council, at the March 26, 2019 Retreat, 
discussed the funding of LINC Section C. 



ITEM CODE DESCRIPTION QTY. UNIT UNIT PRICE SE TOTAL COST

150-1000 TRAFFIC CONTROL LS 1  $                 11,750.00  $                 11,750.00 

163-0232 TEMPORARY GRASSING AC 0.1  $                      435.00  $                         43.50 

163-0240 MULCH TN 0.2  $                      300.00  $                         60.00 

163-0300 CONSTRUCTION EXIT EA 1  $                   1,756.50  $                   1,756.50 

165-0030 MAINTENANCE OF TEMP. SILT FENCE LF 150  $                           0.85  $                      127.50 

165-0101 MAINTENANCE OF CONSTUCTION EXIT EA 1  $                      341.00  $                      341.00 

171-0030 TEMPORARY SILT FENCE, TYPE C LF 150  $                           3.00  $                      450.00 

207-0203 TYPE II FOUNDATION BACKFILL MATERIAL CY 250  $                         42.50  $                 10,625.00 

210-0200 GRADING COMPLETE LS 1  $               132,500.00  $               132,500.00 

301-1101 GRADED AGGREGATE BASE TN 40  $                         28.10  $                   1,124.00 

318-3000 AGGREGATE SURFACE COURSE TN 15  $                         23.85  $                      357.75 

402-3113 ASPH TOPPING COURSE - 12.5 MM TN 8  $                         85.00  $                      680.00 

402-3121 ASPH BASE COURSE - 25 MM TN 15  $                         67.00  $                   1,005.00 

402-3190 ASPH BINDER COURSE - 19 MM TN 8  $                         81.50  $                      652.00 

413-1000 BITUM TACK COAT GL 30  $                           0.10  $                           3.00 

457-1010 GEOGRID REINFORCEMENT, TP B SY 90  $                           3.80  $                      342.00 

500-3101 CLASS A CONCRETE CY 360  $                      352.50  $               126,900.00 

511-1000 BAR REINF STEEL LB 43000  $                           1.22  $                 52,460.00 

636-1020 HIGHWAY SIGNS, TYPE 1, MATL, REFL SHEETING, TYPE 3 SF 430  $                         18.00  $                   7,740.00 

636-2070 GALVINIZED STEEL POSTS, TYPE 7 LF 810  $                           8.75  $                   7,087.50 

653-1501 THERMOPLASTIC SOLID TRAFFIC STRIPE, 5 IN, WHITE LF 70  $                           0.70  $                         49.00 

653-1502 THERMOPLASTIC SOLID TRAFFIC STRIPE, 5 IN, YELLOW LF 70  $                           0.70  $                         49.00 

654-1001 RAISED PAVEMENT MARKERS TP 1 EA 1  $                           5.00  $                           5.00 

700-6910 PERMANENT GRASS AC 0.1  $                   1,061.00  $                      106.10 

700-7000 AGRICULTURAL LIME TN 19  $                      210.00  $                   3,990.00 

700-8000 FERTILIZER MIXED GRADE TN 0.1  $                      557.00  $                         55.70 

700-8100 FERTILIZER NITROGEN CONTENT LB 6  $                           2.00  $                         12.00 

700-9300 SOD SY 50  $                           6.00  $                      300.00 

670-2390 REMOVE WATER MAIN, 20 IN LF 125  $                         22.00  $                   2,750.00 

670-1220 WATER MAIN, 20 IN LF 150  $                      465.00  $                 69,750.00 

670-1490 CUT AND CAP EXISTING WATER MAIN EA 2  $                   1,910.00  $                   3,820.00 

670-2002 VALVE MARKER EA 2  $                         26.50  $                         53.00 

670-4490 CONCRETE THRUST COLLAR EA 4  $                   5,200.00  $                 20,800.00 

 $               457,744.55 

441-0600 CONC HEADWALLS CY (50.00)  $                   1,230.00  $               (61,500.00)

550-1720 STORM DRAIN PIPE, 72" RCP LF (20.00)  $                      522.25  $               (10,445.00)

641-1200 GUARDRAIL, TYPE W LF (71.00)  $                         53.00  $                 (3,763.00)

641-5001 GUARDRAIL ANCHORAGE, TYPE 1 EA (1.00)  $                   1,830.00  $                 (1,830.00)

641-5012 GUARDRAIL ANCHORAGE, TYPE 12 EA (1.00)  $                   3,952.00  $                 (3,952.00)

 $               (81,490.00)

 $               376,254.55 

REMOVED FROM SCOPE - NOT INSTALLED (SAVINGS)

DEDUCTED COST

NET CONTRACT CHANGE

MCINTOSH PARKWAY

GREISON TRAIL CULVERT

WATER DISTRIBUTION AND SANITARY SEWER

ADDITIONAL COST



DESCRIPTION

KAIZEN PROJECT #

PROJECT MANAGER GGD

CONCEPT PLAN

SCALE: 1"=100'

SHEET NAME: CP-01

DATE:

REVISION DATE

2018 - 150

APRIL 12, 2019

1 inch =            feet
( IN FEET )

GRAPHIC SCALE

100

NEWNAN LINC PHASE C
NEWNAN, GA



SANDERS, HAUGEN & SEARS, P.C. 

ATTORNEYS AT LAW 
11 PERRY STREET 

P. O. BOX 1177 
NEWNAN, GEORGIA 30264-1177 

(770) 253-3880 
FAX (770) 254-0093 

www.sandershaugen.com 
 

C. BRADFORD SEARS, JR.      WALTER D. SANDERS 

E-MAIL:  bsears@sandershaugen.com           (1909 – 1989) 

           WILLIS G. HAUGEN 

                (1924 – 2014) 

 
TO:  Mayor & City Council 

  Cleatus Phillips, City Manager 
  City of Newnan 
 
FROM: C. Bradford Sears, Jr., Esq. 
  Sanders, Haugen & Sears, P.C. 
 
DATE:  May 21, 2019 
 
RE:  Special Election – Alcohol-“Sunday Brunch” 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 Attached is the “Sunday Brunch” ordinance extending Sunday time to sell 
alcoholic beverages by the drink to 11:00 a.m. to 12:30 p.m.  The current ordinance 
permits such sales only beginning at 12:30 p.m. 
 
 The ordinance must be adopted first, subject to later approval by the voters at a 
special election referendum at the November 5, 2019 General Election. 
 
 Upon adoption of the ordinance the attached resolution call for the Special 
Election Referendum must be adopted no later than July 18, 2019. 
 
 With the summer council schedules and members summer schedules, I would 
suggest placing the ordinance for adoption on the May 28, 2019 council agenda. 
 
 

http://www.sandershaugen.com/
mailto:bsears@sandershaugen.com


 

1 

 

 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE 
 
 
 AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF NEWNAN, 
GEORGIA, AT CHAPTER 6, ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES, SECTION 3-11, TIMES 
FOR SALES, BY REPEALING THE PRESENT SECTION IN ITS ENTIRETY, 
ADOPTING IN LIEU THEREOF NEW REGULATIONS FOR DAYS AND HOURS 
FOR SALE OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES IN CERTAIN ESTABLISHMENTS 
LICENSED FOR ON-PREMISES CONSUMPTION, CONDITIONED UPON 
APPROVAL OF THIS ORDINANCE IN A REFERENDUM CALLED FOR THAT 
PURPOSE; PROVIDING FOR NOTICE TO THE COWETA COUNTY BOARD OF 
ELECTIONS AND REGISTRATION FOR THE CALL OF THE REFERENDUM; 

REPEALING CONFLICTING ORDINANCES AND PARTS THEREOF; RESTATING 
THE CODE, AS MODIFIED BY THIS ORDINANCE; AND FOR OTHER 
PURPOSES. 
 
 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
NEWNAN, GEORGIA, AND IT IS ESTABLISHED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1. The Code of Ordinances of Newnan, Georgia is hereby 
amended at Chapter 3, ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES, at Section 3-11, TIMES FOR 
SALES, by repealing the present section in its entirety and adopting in lieu 
thereof the following: 
 
 Sect.3-11 – TIMES FOR SALES. 
 
  (a) It shall be unlawful for any beer, malt beverage or wine 
package dealer in the city to sell, dispense or deliver any beer, malt beverages 
or wine except between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 2:00 a.m. Monday through 
Saturday morning, and except between the hours of 7:00 a.m., Saturday 
morning through 12:00 midnight Saturday night and except between the hours 
of 12:30 p.m. Sunday afternoon and 11:30 p.m. Sunday night provided, no 
beer, malt beverages or wine shall be sold, dispensed, or delivered by a beer, 
malt beverage or wine package dealer from 12:00 midnight Saturday night 
through 12:30 pm. Sunday afternoon and from 11:30 p.m. Sunday night 
through 7:00 a.m., Monday morning. 
 
  (b) It shall be unlawful for any business establishments serving 
food licensed to sell malt beverages, wine or distilled spirits by the drink for 
consumption on the premises only pursuant to this chapter to sell, dispense or 
deliver alcoholic beverages for consumption on the premises except between the 
hours of 7:00 a.m. and 2:00 a.m., Monday through Saturday, and except 
between the hours of 7:00 a.m. Saturday morning through 2:00 a.m. Sunday 
morning, and except between the hours of 11:00 a.m. Sunday morning and 
2:00 a.m. Monday morning. 
 
 



 

2 

 

 
  (c) Notwithstanding the prohibition set forth in paragraph (b) 
hereinabove, business establishments serving food, licensed to sell malt 
beverages wine or distilled spirits by the drink for consumption only on the 
premises may permit alcoholic beverages purchased prior to 2:00 a.m. an 
additional 30 minutes to be consumed on the premises. 
 
  (d) The sale of alcoholic beverages on election days is permitted 
within the city; provided, however, it shall be unlawful for any person to sell 
alcoholic beverages within 250 feet of any polling place or if the outer edge of 
any building within which such polling place is established during the hours 
the polls are open. 
 
 Section 2. The provisions of Section 1 of this Ordinance shall only 
become effective if approved by a majority of the qualified electors of the City of 

Newnan voting in a referendum conducted as hereinafter provided. Within ten 
(10) days of the enactment of this Ordinance on second and final reading, the 
City Clerk shall give written notice of such enactment, and a certified copy 
thereof, to the Chairman of the Coweta County Board of Elections and 
Registration. It shall be the duty of such Board, not more than 30 days after 
receipt of notice of the enactment, to call an election to be held in conjunction 
with the city’s general election on Tuesday, November 5, 2019 for the purpose of 
submitting the question of Sunday sales in certain establishments licensed for 
on-premises consumption and hotels during the hours of 11:00 a.m. until 
12:30 p.m., pursuant to O.C.G.A. Sec. 3-3-7, to the qualified electors of the City 
for approval or rejection. The Board shall cause the date and purpose of the 
election to be published in the official organ of the county once a week for two 
weeks immediately preceding the date thereof. The ballot shall have printed 
thereon the words: 
 

“[YES] Shall the governing authority of the City of Newnan be 
authorized to permit and regulate Sunday sales of distilled 
spirits or alcoholic beverages for beverage  

 
 [NO] purposes by the drink from 11:00 a.m. to 12:30 p.m.?” 
 

All persons desiring to vote for approval of Sunday sales shall vote “YES” and 
those persons desiring to vote for rejection of Sunday sales shall vote “NO”. 
 

Section 3. All ordinances or parts thereof in conflict with the foregoing 
are expressly repealed 
 
 Section 4. Except as modified herein, The Code of Ordinances of Newnan, 
Georgia, is hereby reaffirmed and restated. The codifier is hereby granted 
editorial license to include this amendment in future supplements of said Code 
by appropriate section, division, article or chapter. 
 
 Section 5. This ordinance shall become effective November 17, 2019 if a 
majority of the qualified electors voting in the referendum called for that 



 

3 

 

purpose vote for approval; otherwise, this Ordinance shall be of no legal force 
and effect. 
 
 ADOPTED in open session, regularly assembled this _____ day of 
___________________________, 2019. 
 
ATTEST:     ________________________________________ 
      L. Keith Brady, Mayor 
______________________________ 
Della Hill, City Clerk     
      ________________________________________ 
      Cynthia E. Jenkins, Mayor Pro-Tem 
REVIEWED AS TO FORM: 
 
______________________________________ ________________________________________ 

C. Bradford Sears, Jr., City Attorney George M. Alexander, Councilmember 
 
 
______________________________________ ________________________________________ 
Cleatus Phillips, City Manager  Raymond F. DuBose, Councilmember 
 
 
      ________________________________________ 
      Rhodes H. Shell, Councilmember 
 
 
      ________________________________________ 
      Dustin Koritko, Councilmember 
 
  
      _______________________________________ 

Paul Guillaume, Councilmember 
 
 
 
 



1 
 

 
 
 

A RESOLUTION 
 
 
 A RESOLUTION BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NEWNAN, 
GEORGIA, CALLING FOR A REFERENDUM TO BE HELD IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE 
CITY’S GENERAL ELECTION TO BE HELD NOVEMBER 5, 2019 FOR THE PURPOSE 
OF APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO THE CODE OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA CHANGING 
THE TIMES CERTAIN ESTABLISHMENTS LICENSED TO SELL ALCOHOLIC 
BEVERAGES FOR CONSUMPTION ON THE PREMISES MAY SELL ON SUNDAYS, AND 
FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 
 
 

 Pursuant to that certain Ordinance No. 19-_________, enacted  ____________ _____, 
2019 to amend the provisions of the Code of Newnan, Georgia, pertaining to the sale of 
alcoholic beverages on Sundays by certain retail consumption licensees, it is hereby 
RESOLVED as follows: 
 
 

“The provisions of Section 1 of this Ordinance [adopted _______________ ____ 2019] 
shall only become effective if approved by a majority of the qualified electors of the City 
of Newnan voting in a referendum conducted as hereinafter provided. Within ten (10) 
days of the enactment of this Ordinance on second and final reading, the City Clerk 
shall give written notice of such enactment, and a certified copy thereof, to the Chairman 
of the Coweta County Board of Elections and Registration. It shall be the duty of such 
Board, not more than 30 days after receipt of notice of the enactment, to call an election 
to be held in conjunction with the City’s general election on Tuesday, November 5, 2019 
for the purpose of submitting the question of Sunday sales in certain establishments 
licensed for on-premises consumption and hotels during the hours of 11:00 a.m. until 
12:30 p.m., pursuant to O.C.G.A. Sec. 3-3-7, to the qualified electors of the City for 
approval or rejection. The Board shall cause the date and purpose of the election to be 
published in the official organ of the county once a week for two weeks immediately 
preceding the date thereof. The ballot shall have printed thereon the words: 
 

“[YES] Shall the governing authority of the City of Newnan be authorized 
to permit and regulate Sunday sales of distilled spirits or alcoholic 
beverages for beverage  

 [NO] purposes by the drink from 11:00 a.m. to 12:30 p.m.?” 
  



2 
 

 
All persons desiring to vote for approval of Sunday sales shall vote “YES” and 

those persons desiring to vote for rejection of Sunday sales shall vote “NO”.” 
 
 SO RESOLVED, this ______ day of ____________________, 2019. 
 
 
ATTEST:      _______________________________________ 
       Keith Brady, Mayor 
_________________________________ 
Della Hill, City Clerk      
       ________________________________________ 
       Cynthia Jenkins, Mayor Pro-Tem 
REVIEWED AS TO FORM: 
 

_________________________________   ________________________________________ 
C. Bradford Sears, Jr., City Attorney  George Alexander, Councilmember 
 
 
________________________________   ________________________________________ 
Cleatus Phillips, City Manager   Ray DuBose, Councilmember 
 
 
       ________________________________________ 
       Rhodes Shell, Councilmember 
 
 
       _______________________________________ 

Dustin Koritko, Councilmember 
 
 
       _______________________________________ 
       Paul Guillaume, Councilmember 



 1 

 

 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 

OF THE CITY OF NEWNAN BY ADOPTING A 
FAT, OILS AND GREASE MANAGEMENT ORDINANCE 

FOR THE CITY; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES 
 
 

 Whereas, the City has determined by recommendation of the Newnan 
Water, Sewerage and Light Commission, hereby known as Newnan Utilities, 
that it is necessary and proper to adopt an ordinance establishing uniform 
maintenance and monitoring requirements for controlling the discharge of 
grease from food service facilities discharging into the City’s wastewater 
collection system and commercial grease haulers in order to provide a healthy 
environment for the City’s future to benefit the quality of the cleanliness within 

the City, and to protect the City’s wastewater collection and treatment facilities. 
 
 Now therefore, be it ordained by the City Council of the City of Newnan 
and it is hereby ordained by the authority of same that the following be adopted 
as Section 116.00, Fat, Oils, and Grease Management, of Chapter 21, Utilities, 
Article IV, Water and Sewerage, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 
Newnan. 
 
SECTION I: Section 116.00.    FAT, OILS, AND GREASE MANAGEMENT. 

 
Section 116.01. Definitions. 
 
Food Service Facility or Facility means any food service facility which prepares 
and/or packages food or beverages for sale or consumption, on or off site, 
except for private residences.  Food service facilities shall include, but are not 
limited to food courts, food manufacturers, food packagers, restaurants, grocery 
stores, bakeries, lounges, hospitals, hotels, nursing homes, churches, schools 
and all other food service facilities not listed above. 
 
Garbage Disposal means a device which shreds or grinds up waste materials 
into smaller portions for discharge into the City’s wastewater collection system. 
 
GMP Official means a member of the staff of the Newnan Utilities Grease 
Management Program.  
 
Gray Water means all the liquid contained in a grease interceptor that lies 
below the floating grease layer and above the food solids layer.  

 
Grease means a material either liquid or solid, composed primarily of fat, oil 
and grease from animal or vegetable sources.  The terms “fats oils and grease 
(FOG), “oil and grease “or “oil and grease substances” shall all be included 
within this definition. 
 
Grease Hauler means a person who collects the contents of a grease interceptor 
or trap and transports it to an approved recycling or disposal facility.  A grease 



 2 

hauler may also provide other services to a food service facility related to grease 
interceptor maintenance. 
 
Grease Interceptor means a device located underground and outside of a food 
service facility designed to collect, contain or remove food wastes and grease 
from the waste stream while allowing the balance of the liquid waste to 
discharge to the wastewater collection system by gravity.  Interceptors shall 
have at least two inspection hatches on the top surface to facilitate inspection, 
cleaning and maintenance by a grease hauler.  Grease Interceptors will be a 
minimum of 1500 gallons.  Newnan Utilities reserves the right to deviate from 
minimum size as deemed necessary. 
 
Grease Trap means a device located in a food service facility or under a sink 
designed to collect, contain or remove food wastes and grease from the waste 
stream while allowing the balance of the liquid waste to discharge to the 
wastewater collection system by gravity.  Traps shall have a removable lid on 
the top surface to facilitate inspection, cleaning and maintenance. 
 
Section 116.02. Purpose and Applicability. 
   
(a) Purpose.  This ordinance establishes uniform maintenance and 

monitoring requirements for controlling the discharge of grease from food 
service facilities discharging into the City’s wastewater collection system 
and commercial grease haulers.  The objectives of this ordinance are: 

 
(1) to prevent the introduction of excessive amounts of grease into 

Newnan’s wastewater collection system. 
 

(2) to prevent clogging or blocking of the City’s sewer lines due to 
grease build-up causing backup and flooding of streets, residences 
and commercial buildings, resulting in potential liability to the 
City. 

 
(3) to implement a procedure to recover the costs incurred in cleaning 

and maintaining sewer lines and disposing of grease blockages.  
 

(4) to implement a procedure to recover costs for any liability incurred 
by the City for damage caused by grease blockages resulting in the 
flooding of streets, residences or commercial buildings. 

 
(5) to establish fees for the recovery of costs resulting from the 

program established herein.  

 
(b) Applicability.  This shall apply to all food service facilities that are 

connected to Newnan Utilities collection system. 
 
Section 116.03. Grease Traps and Interceptors. 
 
(a) Requirements.  All food service facilities are required to have a grease 

trap or grease interceptor.  The requirements in this Chapter are in 



 3 

addition to any applicable requirements of current local and national 
Plumbing Codes. 

 
(1) New Facilities.  On or after the effective date of this Chapter, food 

service facilities which are newly proposed or constructed, or 
existing facilities which will be expanded or renovated to include a 
food service facility, where such facility did not previously exist, 
shall be required to install, operate and maintain a grease 
interceptor or grease trap according to the requirements contained 
in this Chapter.  Grease interceptors or grease traps shall be 
installed prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy.  

 
(2) Existing Facilities.  For the purposes of sizing and installation of 

grease interceptors, all food service facilities existing within the 
City prior to the effective date of this Chapter shall be permitted to 
operate and maintain existing grease interceptors or grease traps 
provided their grease interceptors or grease traps are in efficient 
operating condition. 

On or after the effective date of this Chapter, Newnan Utilities will 
require an existing food service facility to install, operate and 
maintain a new grease interceptor or trap that complies with the 
requirements of this Chapter or to modify or repair any 
noncompliant plumbing or existing interceptor or trap within 90 
days of written notification by Newnan Utilities when any one or 
more of the following conditions exist. 

a. The facility is found to be contributing oils and grease in 
quantities enough to cause line stoppages or necessitate 
increased maintenance on the wastewater collection 
system. 

b. The facility does not have a grease interceptor or trap. 

c. The facility has an undersized, irreparable or defective 
grease interceptor or trap. 

d. Remodeling of the food preparation or kitchen waste 
plumbing system is performed which requires a plumbing 
permit to be issued by the City of Newnan. 

e. The existing facility is sold or undergoes a change of 
ownership. 

f. The existing facility does not have plumbing connections to 
a grease interceptor or trap in compliance with the 
requirements of this Chapter 

(b) Plumbing Connections.  Grease interceptors or traps shall be in the food 
service facility’s lateral sewer line between all fixtures which may 



 4 

introduce grease into the sewer system and the connection to the City’s 
wastewater collection system.  Such fixtures shall include, but not be 
limited to, sinks, dishwashers, garbage disposals, automatic hood wash 
units, floor drains in food preparation and storage areas, and any other 
fixture which is determined to be a potential source of grease.  
Wastewater from sanitary facilities and other similar fixtures shall not be 
introduced into the grease interceptor or trap under any circumstances. 

(c) Grease Traps. Grease traps shall be prohibited for new food service 
facilities, except for those facilities where inadequate space is available 
for the installation of a grease interceptor. Approval of the installation of 
a grease trap instead of a grease interceptor at a new food service facility 
shall meet the following criteria: 

(1) Trap design and location.  Grease traps shall conform to the 

standards of current local and national plumbing codes.  Grease 
traps shall be installed in strict accordance with the 
manufacturer’s instructions. Grease traps shall be equipped with 
a cover that can be opened for inspection and sampling and a 
mechanism for a secure closing. 

(2) Trap Capacity.  The capacity of the grease trap shall be related to 
any current local and national plumbing codes applicable. 

(3) Flow-Through Rate.  Flow-through rates shall be calculated in 
accordance with current local and national plumbing codes 
applicable. 

(4) Flow Control Device.  Grease traps shall be equipped with a device 
to control the rate of flow through the unit.  The rate of flow shall 
not exceed the manufacturers rated capacity recommended in 
gallons per minute for the unit. 

(5) Venting.  The flow-control device and the grease trap shall be 
vented in accordance with current local and national plumbing 
codes. 

(6) Inspection, Cleaning and Maintenance. Newnan Utilities and/or 
contractor will be responsible for inspections and cleaning of 
grease traps.  This will be performed at a frequency deemed 
appropriate by representatives of Newnan Utilities.  All repairs and 
maintenance of grease traps are the responsibility of the owner.  A 
written notice to repair will be issued by Newnan Utilities.  Once 
this notice has been issued the owner has 30 days to complete 
repairs. 

(7) Inspection.  Grease traps shall be inspected by Newnan Utilities as 
necessary to assure proper efficiency of the grease trap is being 
achieved. 



 5 

(8) Repairs.  The food service facility shall be responsible for the cost 
and scheduling of all repairs to their grease trap(s).  Repairs 
required by a GMP Official shall be completed within 30 calendar 
days after the date of written notice of required repairs is received 
by the facility, unless Newnan Utilities approves in writing of a 
different schedule. 

(9) Disposal.  Grease and solid materials removed from a grease trap 
shall be disposed of in the solid waste disposal system by a 
method approved by Newnan Utilities. 

(10) Location.     Grease traps must be located at the furthest possible 
point from the sink for the trap to work at a high degree of 
efficiency. 

(d) Grease Interceptors.  Grease interceptors shall be installed at all new food 
service facilities except where physical space is limited.  All new and 
existing grease interceptors shall meet the following criteria: 

(1) Interceptor design and location.  Grease interceptors shall have a 
minimum of two compartments and shall be capable of separation 
and retention of grease and storage of settled solids.  Interceptor 
design shall conform with the requirements of current local and 
national plumbing codes.  A control manhole over each 
compartment for monitoring purposes shall be required and 
installed at the owner/operator’s sole expense. Covers shall have a 
gas tight fit.  The grease interceptor shall be designed, constructed 
and installed for adequate load-bearing capacity.  Flow control 
devices shall be required where the water flow through the 
interceptor may exceed its rated flow.  Interceptors shall be 
installed in a location outside of the building which always 
provides easy access for inspections, cleaning and proper 
maintenance, including pumping. 

(2) Interceptor capacity.  The Owner/Operator of the facility shall 
furnish definite and complete information on the facility as set 
forth herein.  The Owner/Operator shall be responsible for the 
accuracy thereof.  If the size of the initially installed grease 
interceptor fails, in Newnan Utilities opinion, to adequately 
perform, the Owner/Operator shall install a grease interceptor 
which in Newnan Utilities opinion will adequately perform.  Grease 
interceptor capacity calculations shall then be performed by 
Newnan Utilities based on size and type of operation according to 
current local and national plumbing codes.  Minimum capacity of 
any one unit shall be 1500 gallons. Newnan Utilities reserves the 
right to deviate from minimum size as deemed necessary. Where 
enough capacity cannot be achieved with a single unit, installation 
of grease interceptors in series is required. The capacity of the 
grease interceptor required for food manufacturing or processing 
facilities which are not covered by the current local and national 



 6 

plumbing codes shall be approved by the GMP Official according 
to the mass and type of food prepared, the wastewater volume 
produced from food preparation or manufacture, total hours of 
operation per day and a load factor depending on the installed 
equipment.  The Grease Trap Formula guidelines required by 
Newnan Utilities are stated below: 

Grease Trap Formula: 

Design – The following dosing equations are taken from the 
Manual for On-Site Sewage Management Systems published by 
the Georgia Department of Human Resources Division of Public 
Health. 

Restaurants: 

(S) x (GS) x (HR) x (LF) ÷12=Grease Interceptor capacity in gallons, 
where: 

S= Number of seats in dining area 
GS= Gallons of wastewater per seat (use 25) 
HR= Number of hours open for business 
LF= Load Factor (use 1) 
12= Number of months in a year 
 
Newnan Utilities allows only 1500-gallon grease interceptors.  For 
projects requiring more than 1500-gallon capacity, interceptors 
will be installed in multiples of 1500-gallon tanks in a series. 
 
Example: For a restaurant with a 75-seat dining area, a 12-hour 
day operation, a typical discharge of 25 gallons per seat, and 
located on a main highway, the size of the grease interceptor is 
calculated as follows: 
(75) x (25) x (12) x (1.0) ÷12 months per year = 1875-gallon 
capacity; use two (2) 1500-gallon grease interceptors installed in 
series. 
 
Hospitals, Nursing Homes, other type commercial kitchens with 
varied seating capacity: 
 
(M) x (GM) x (LF) x (SC) = Grease Interceptor capacity in gallons, 
where: 
 

M= Meals 
GM= Gallons of wastewater per meal (use 5 gallons per meal) 
LF= Loading factor -1.0 with dishwashing, 0.5 without 
dishwashing 
SC= Storage capacity factor -1.0 for public sewer, 2.5 for on-site 
disposal 
 



 7 

Example: A nursing home with 100 beds, a dishwasher, serving 3 
meals per day, discharging to the public sewer is calculated as 
follows: 
 
(300) x (5) x (1) x (1) = 1500-gallon capacity 
 
Any establishment that has food preparation of any type is 
required to have at least one 1500-gallon exterior grease 
interceptor.  These establishments include, but are not limited to: 
Restaurants, Ice Cream Shops, Coffee Shops, Cafeterias, Deli’s, 
Butcher Shops, Bakeries, Convenience Stores, Motels, Hotels, 
Churches, Schools, Day Cares, Etc. 
 
For Water/Sewer Plan Review please provide the following: 
 

 Site plan showing the connection to the sewer 
system, including test manhole 

 Interior layout plan showing square footage and all 
equipment, tables, plumbing fixtures, number of 
seats, etc. 

 A manifest from the cleaning company, if there is an 
existing grease trap. 

 
(3) Inspection, Pumping and Maintenance.  Newnan Utilities and/or 

contractor shall be responsible for pumping, cleaning, and 
inspection of all grease interceptors. The food service facility will 
be responsible for installation and repairs of grease interceptors. 
Pumping services shall include the initial complete removal of all 
contents, including floating materials, wastewater and bottom 
sludges and solids from the interceptor.  

a. Waste haulers must have written permission from Newnan 
Utilities in order to return any gray water back into the 
grease interceptor.  This permission will be granted on a 
case by case basis and will depend upon the methods by 
which the solids and grease are separated in order to 
assure that clear water is the only material returned to the 
grease interceptor. 

 (4) Pumping Frequency.  Each facilities’ grease interceptor will be 
pumped a minimum of once every 12 weeks.  Grease trap 
pumping is once per month. Newnan Utilities also has the right to 
decrease or increase the pumping frequency if Newnan Utilities 
determines it to be necessary or prudent. 

(5) Variance Procedure.  If a food service facility determines that 
pumping once every 12 weeks is excessive then the facility may 
request a review of the above described pumping schedule. 

a. The food service facility shall submit written 



 8 

correspondence explaining their request and reasoning, and 
providing all details pertaining to said request.   

b. The food service facility will also be required to pay a 
variance fee of $300 plus any sampling done by Newnan 
Utilities. 

c. At the time which the grease interceptor is due to be 
pumped a representative of Newnan Utilities will collect a 
sample from the discharge point of the grease Interceptor.  
After the sample is collected it will be analyzed for fats, oils, 
and grease content by a laboratory chosen by Newnan 
Utilities.   

d. For the variance to be considered, the sample must show a 
fats, oils, and grease content of less than 100 mg/l.  If the 
sample does show a level below this then a sample will be 
taken once a week until the sample exceeds the 100 mg/l 
mark established.  Thus, the time elapsed between the last 
pumping and the time at which the sample exceeds the 
above-mentioned mark will then be the frequency at which 
that particular trap is pumped. 

e. If at any time the food service facility changes ownership or 
does any type of renovation the schedule will revert to the 
original schedule established by Newnan Utilities. 

f. If the initial sample taken from a grease interceptor is not 
below the 100mg/l mark, then the variance will not be 
considered. 

(6) Inspection.  Grease interceptors shall be inspected by a GMP 
Official as necessary. 

(7) Repairs.  Each food service facility shall be responsible for the cost 
and scheduling of all repairs to its grease interceptor(s).  Repairs 
required by a GMP Official shall be corrected within 30 calendar 
days after the date a written notice requiring the repairs are 
received by the facility or unless notice from Newnan Utilities 
establishes a different compliance date. 

(8) Disposal.  Wastes removed from each grease interceptor shall be 
disposed of at a facility permitted by the State of Environmental 
Protection Chapter of the Georgia Department of Natural 
Resources to receive such wastes or at a location designated by 
Newnan Utilities for such purposes.  Neither grease or solid 
materials removed from interceptors shall be returned to any 
grease interceptor, private sewer line or to any portion of Newnan 
Utilities wastewater collection system or Water Reclamation 
Facilities without prior written permission GMP Official. 



 9 

(9) Interceptor Additives.  Any chemicals, enzymes, emulsifiers, live 
bacteria or other grease cutters or additives are not permitted by 
Newnan Utilities unless authorized by a GMP Official.  MSDS 
sheets and any other applicable information concerning the 
composition, frequency of use and mode of action of the proposed 
additive shall be sent to Newnan Utilities together with a written 
statement outlining the proposed use of the additive(s).  Based 
upon the information received and any other information solicited 
from the potential user or supplier, Newnan Utilities shall permit 
or deny the use of the additive in writing.  Permission to use any 
specific additive may be withdrawn by Newnan Utilities at any 
time. 

(10)   Alternative grease removal devices or technologies.  Alternative 
devices and technologies such as automatic grease removal 

systems shall be subject to written approval by a GMP Official 
prior to installation.  Approval of the device shall be based on 
demonstrated (proven) removal efficiencies and reliability of 
operation.  Newnan Utilities may approve these types of devices 
depending on manufacturer’s specifications on a case by case 
basis.   

 

Section 116.04.  Food Service Facility Inspection Procedure. 

(a)  Entry.  Each food service facility shall allow the GMP official and 
other duly authorized employees or agents of Newnan Utilities 
bearing proper credentials and identifications access at all 
reasonable times to all parts of the premises for the purpose of 
inspection, observation, records examination, measurement, 
sampling and testing in accordance with the provisions of this 
Chapter. The refusal of any food service facility to allow the GMP 
official entry to or upon the facility’s premises for purposes of 
inspection, sampling effluents or inspecting and copying records 
or performing such other duties as shall be required by this 
Chapter shall constitute a violation of this Chapter. The GMP 
Official may seek a warrant or use such other legal procedures as 
may be advisable and reasonably necessary to discharge his 
duties pursuant to this Chapter. 

(b) Inspection.  All food service facilities shall be inspected as follows:  

(1) Inspections.  The GMP Official shall inspect food service 
facilities on both a scheduled and unscheduled basis.  If 
any deficiencies are recorded by the GMP Official during an 
inspection, the GMP Official shall provide the food service 
facility a written notice to correct the deficiency within 30 
calendar days, and a tentative date for a first re-inspection. 



 10 

  (2) Re-inspections.   The GMP Official shall re-inspect food 
service facilities which received deficiency notices after the 
original inspection.  The GMP Official shall inspect any 
repairs or other deficiencies and shall provide written notice 
of compliance or non-compliance.  In the event the food 
service facility has returned to compliance with all the 
deficiencies, there shall be no charge for the re-inspection.   

   
a. In the event of continuing non-compliance, 

successive re-inspections will be scheduled, and 
appropriate fees shall be charged to the food service 
facility concerned for the first and all successive re-
inspections.  A first re-inspection shall be performed 
after a minimum of 30 calendar days have elapsed to 
allow for corrective action by the food service facility 
to be completed. 

 
 (c) Monitoring. Newnan Utilities shall have the right to sample and 

analyze the wastewater from any food service facility at any time to 
determine levels of grease contained within a facilities discharge. 

 
Section 116.05.  Grease Haulers. 
 
 (a) Spill Reporting.  Any accident, spill, or other discharge of grease or 

gray water which occurs within the City shall be reported to 
Newnan Utilities by the grease hauler as soon as possible but not 
longer than 24 hours after the incident.  The grease hauler shall 
comply with all procedures contained in Federal, State and local 
regulations.   The grease hauler shall be responsible for all clean-
up procedures and costs.  

 
 (b) Record Keeping.  Grease haulers shall retain and make available 

for inspection and copying, all records related to grease interceptor 
pumping and grease disposal from businesses connected to 
Newnan Utilities wastewater collection service system.  These 
records shall remain available for a period of at least three (3) 
years.  Newnan Utilities may require additional record keeping and 
reporting, as necessary, to ensure compliance with the terms of 
this Chapter. Any food service facility requesting a manifest may 
do so in writing. 

 
 (c) Vehicle Inspection.  Grease haulers shall permit Newnan Utilities to 

inspect grease hauler’s registered vehicles. 
 
Section 116.06.  Fees. 
 
 (a) Fees and Billing.  The fees provided for in this Chapter are 

separate and distinct from all other fees chargeable by the City. All 
fees shall become immediately due and owing to Newnan Utilities 
upon receipt of invoice(s) for rendition of services. Fess are 



 11 

included on Newnan Utilities monthly statements and are subject 
to delinquent fees if not paid by the due date. 

 

  
 (1) Variance Fee.  A food service facility applying for a variance 

shall provide variance fee of $300. 
 

 (2) Failure to Repair Fee. Any Food Service Facility failing to 
adhere to repair request within the allotted 30 days will be 
charged $50 per day over and beyond 30 days. 

 
 (3) Pumping Fees.  Facilities shall be charged fees  determined  
  by Newnan Utilities to be included on their monthly   
  statements. 
 

(4) All fees provided for herein may be adjusted by Newnan 
 Utilities as it  deems to be appropriate. 
 

 
Section 116.07.  Legal Proceedings. 
 
 (a) Search Warrant. Newnan Utilities, through the City Attorney, may 

seek to obtain a search warrant from the appropriate authority to 
gain access to a food service facility for the purposes of inspection 
and monitoring if such lawful entry has previously been denied by 
the food service facility  

 
 (b) Injunctive and Other Relief. The City, through the City Attorney, 

may file a petition in the name of the City in the Municipal Court, 
the Superior Court of the County or such other courts as may 
have jurisdiction seeking the issuance of an injunction, damages, 
or other appropriate relief to enforce the provisions of this Chapter 
or other applicable law or regulation. Suit may be brought to 
recover any and all damages suffered by the City as a result of any 
action or inaction of any person who causes or suffers damage to 
occur to the City’s wastewater collection system, or for any other 
expense, loss or damage of any kind or nature suffered by the 
City. 

 
 (c) Criminal Mischief. No person shall maliciously, willfully or 

deliberately break, damage, destroy, uncover, deface or tamper 
with any structure, appurtenance or equipment which is a part 

Newnan Utilities sewer system or Utilities Department. Any person 
violating this provision shall be subject to immediate arrest under 
charge of destruction of public property. 

 
(d) Citations.  Violators of the provisions of this Chapter shall be 
 subject to be issued a citation to appear in the City of Newnan 
 Municipal Court to answer to the charge. 

 



 12 

 (e) Remedies Nonexclusive. The remedies provided for in the 
ordinance are not mutually exclusive. The GMP Official may take 
any, all, or any combination of these actions against a 
noncompliant person. 

 
Section 116.08.  Penalties. 
 

(a)         Falsifying Information. Any person who knowingly makes any 
false statements, representation or certification in any application, 
record, report, plan or other document filed or required to be maintained 
pursuant to this Chapter, or who falsifies, tampers with or knowingly 
renders inaccurate any monitoring device or method required under this 
Chapter or shall violate any other provision of this Chapter, shall be 
subject to be issued a citation to appear in the City of Newnan Municipal 
Court and shall, upon conviction, be subject to a penalty in an amount 
not to exceed $500.00 or by imprisonment for not more than six months, 
or by both.  Each day on which a violation shall occur or continue shall 
be deemed a separate and distinct offense. 

 

 
Section 116.09.  Administrative enforcement and abatement. 

  

(a)        Service Revocation. Any services provided by Newnan Utilities 
may be suspended for the following reasons: 

(1) Falsification of any information submitted as part of the 
registration. 

(2) Failure to comply with any requirements or regulations 
concerning discharges to the Newnan Utilities wastewater 
collection system. 

(3) Failure to comply with any requirements or regulations 
concerning grease interceptors  

(4) Failure to pay required fees, or any assessed surcharges in 
a timely manner. 

 SECTION II: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict or 
inconsistent with this ordinance hereby are repealed. 
 
 SECTION III.  This ordinance shall be effective upon adoption. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 13 

 
 Adopted in regular session assembled, this _____ day of 
__________________, 2019. 
 
 
ATTEST:     ___________________________________ 
      L. Keith Brady, Mayor 
_________________________________ 
Della Hill, City Clerk     
      ___________________________________ 
      Cynthia E. Jenkins, Mayor Pro-Tem 
REVIEWED AS TO FORM: 
 
_________________________________  ___________________________________ 
C. Bradford Sears, Jr., City Attorney George M. Alexander, Councilmember 

 
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Cleatus Phillips, City Manager  Raymond F. DuBose, Councilmember 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Rhodes H. Shell, Councilmember 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Dustin Koritko, Councilmember 
 
 
      _________________________________ 

Paul Guillaume, Councilmember 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

































































Foundation Christian Church 

30-A East Washington St. 

Newnan. GA 30263 
Tel 1770) 396-2220 
Jason@FoundationNewnan.com 

www.FoundationNewnan.com 

JUNE 4, 2019 

Libby Winn 

c/o: Newna n City Council 

25 LaGrange Street 

Newnan, GA 30263 

Dear Libby, 

FOUNDATION 
CHRISTIAN 
CHURCH 

Foundation Christian Church has a request for two upcoming Sunday afternoon events that we are planning to host 

In keeping with City protocol, we are requesting the Council allow us to close Armory Rd (from LaGrange Street to the 

end of Newnan High 's bus loading zone) from 11am to 3pm for an after church event on both June 30th and July 28th. 

We do not desire to block the entire road and will work with the National Guard if that is a weekend they are training. 

Included with this letter is the required City paperwork. 

Warm regards, 

COMMUNITY OUTREACH PASTOR 



¼r 
:)/4duuz 

\Jh)RCIA • ,,r 111, 
GUIDELINES FOR USING DOWNTOWN NEWNAN SQUARE OR ANY CITY STREETS 

cTIYOFIToMTI 

NAME OF AGENCY 

NAME OF PERSON IN CHARGE OF EVENT j /6oJ-.J \.J A-VT o 

ADDRESS OF PERSON IN CHARGE 

CELL PHONE NUMBER OF PERSON IN CHARGE 

TYPE OF EVENT 

PURPOSE OF EVENT 

DATE OF EVENT ~ v l ~ t 7 ii l 

TIME OF EVENT 

CONDITIONS OF PERMIT 

If permit is for any type utilizing streets of the city other than just the square area, a map shall be 

submitted to indicate routes of the event. If road race, walk or similar event, a fee will be charged based 

on number of police officers required to provide safety for the event; and all events of this type should 

be scheduled to end by 10:00 AM. If officers are required for other events, a fee will be charged based 

on number of officers requested by agency sponsoring event. 

Applicants for permits for the square area only which require the setting of booths or selling goods 

should be aware that homegrown or handmade goods are preferred and that other goods sold should 

not be in conflict with goods that merchants on the square have for sale, excluding restaurant style 

prepared food items. Personal information from those attending the event should not be solicited. 

Subscription based businesses, home improvement companies, insurance companies, etc., that 

approach those attending the event for solicitation for future services are not allowed. It is 

recommended that a lOxl0 booth space be assigned to each participant with the participants name 

written in chalk at each sidewalk location. Permanent marking on the square is not allowed. You must 

provide your own tent, chairs and tables. If your event requires electricity, it must be requested in 

advance. If it is used from the light poles, then the cover must be put back on after the event. If a cover 

is lost the event coordinator and vendor are liable for the cost of replacing the lost cover. All cords must 

be duct taped down to the sidewalks to prevent accidents. 

GUIDELINES FOR USING THE DOWNTOWN NEWNAN SQUARE OR ANY CITY STREETS - PAGE 2 

Form Updated Februarj,, 8, 2019 / October 12, 2018 



EVENT STAFFING 

The coordinator of the event on the square must remain on site throughout the set up and clean up of 

the event. The event coordinator must make sure that the square is returned to normal after the event 

is over. 

GARBAGE 

Additional rolling trash cans by the City of Newnan Sanitation Department need to be around the court 

square. Contact Sanitation Services at 770-253-0327 to coordinate and determine the number of cans 

needed for your event. We recommend that you cover the permanent cans surrounding the square and 

use the rolling cans. If the decorative cans are overflowing at the end of the event, they should be 

emptied into the rolling cans. Cost of Sanitation cans are $10.00 per can during normal business hours 

and $25.00 per can after hours. (Costs are subject to change) 

PUBLIC NOTICE SIGNAGE 

The coordinator of the event is responsible for obtaining and displaying Special Event Notice signs as 

provided by City staff. Public notice along/near the event location shall be provided at least 72 hours in 

advance of the event. 

BATHROOMS 

A portable restroom, or more depending on the size of the event, must be provided for the public to 

use. Downtown shops only allow restroom facilities to be used by paying customers. Main Street can 

assist with contact information on a Main Street member that provides port-a-potties for a fee. We 

recommend these be placed on the side of Nulink on West Washington Street. 

PARKING 

Vendors can park on the square to unload, but once unloaded they will need to move their vehicles to a 

city lot. Parking on the square or in front of stores is prohibited. This includes on side streets. Parking is 

for customers and event attendees. 

AGREEMENT 

I. J<Wilo, ~ , agree to these guidelines lo r use of the Newnan Square and/or city streets. 

EVENT - 100.00.34.2901 - Event Activity Fees 

Form Updated February 8, 2019 / October 12, 2018 

DATE-""-'-+L(/_~, __ ll_~ __ 
r1 



6/19/2019:  REQUEST FOR PARKING SPACES AT GREENVILLE STREET PARK 
 
 
From: Jennifer Yaeger  
Sent: Tuesday, June 11, 2019 2:15 PM 
To: Libby Winn  
Subject: Request for parking spaces  
 
My name is Jennifer Yaeger and I am helping to put on the Frayed Edges Festival in Greenville Street 
Park on August 17th. I am writing to you to get approval to utilize the parking spaces adjacent to the 
park for the use of food trucks.  
 
The purpose of the festival is to allow people of our community to come out and meet our healthcare 
and wellness providers in person and learn about all of the services that we have here. Those providers 
will either be sponsors or vendors. We also want to provide a fun element for adults and kids, which is 
why we are also going to have food and live music.  
 
The proceeds from this event will benefit Coweta Community Foundation and Coweta FORCE, as well as 
any other local charity that the committee might approve.  
 
I hope I provided enough information, but if not, please contact me either through this email or at 601-
331-0451.  
Thank you,  
Jennifer  

 

x-apple-data-detectors://0/
tel:601-331-0451
tel:601-331-0451














City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 
 
Date: June 18, 2019 
 
Agenda Item:  Consideration of Use of Public Right of Ways for Kiki Tree 
Pictures, Inc. filming of “The Conjuring 3” for Friday, June 28 between the 
hours of 3pm – 3am and Monday July 8, between the hours of 1pm – 9pm 
 
Prepared by:   Ashley Copeland, Communications Manager 
 
Presented by: Hasco Craver, Assistant City Manager 

 
Purpose: Newnan City Council may consider the use of public rights of way for the filming of 
“The Conjuring 3"  
 
Background: The City of Newnan, on June 10, 2019, received an application for filming from 
Kiki Tree Pictures, Inc., which includes the following requests: 
 
 
Tuesday, June 25, 2019 

 Street Closures: None 
 Parking: south side of West Washington Street between Jackson Street and Brown 

Street 
 
Wednesday, June 26, 2019 

 Street Closures: None 
 Parking: south side of West Washington between Jackson Street and Brown Street  

 
Thursday, June 27, 2019 

 Street Closures: ITC between 12:00 noon and 8:00 pm 
 Parking:  

o South side of West Washington Street between Jackson Street and Brown Street 
o North side of South Court Square from Jackson Street to Jefferson Street 
o East side of West Court Square from Broad Street to West Washington Street 

 
Friday, June 28, 2019 

 Street Closures: See attached document provided by Kiki Tree Pictures 
 Parking: See attached document provided by Kiki Tree Pictures 

 
Saturday, June 29, 2019 

 Street Closures: None 
 Parking:  

o South side of West Washington Street from Jackson Street to Brown Street 
o North side of South Court Square from Lagrange Street to Jefferson Street 
o East side of West Court Square from West Washington Street to West Broad 

Street 
 

Monday, July 1, 2019 
 Street Closures: None 
 Parking: South side of West Washington Street from Jackson Street to Brown Street  



 
 
Monday, July 8, 2019 
 

 Location: 17 Spring Street 
 Street Closures: ITC between 3:00 pm – 4:00 pm 
 Parking:  

o North side of Spring Street from Lagrange Street to Greenville Street 
between 2:00 pm – 4:00 pm 

 
 Location: 37, 41, & 43 West Washington 

 Street Closures: ITC between 5:00 pm – 6:00 pm 
 Parking: 

o West Washington Street from College Street to Saint Clair Street 
 

 Location: Salbide Avenue between Thompson Street and Greenville Street 
 Street Closures: Street closure and ITC needed between 6:00 pm – 7:00 pm 
 Parking: backside of Salbide Avenue from Thompson Street to Greenville Street 

 
The applicant has completed a Film, Television, Music and Video Production Permit Application, 
as required. In addition, the applicant has satisfactorily completed all items listed on the 
Guidelines and Checklist for filming. 
 
The approximate total fee amount for the filming request, as described herein and as per the 
recently adopted City of Newnan Filming Policy, is $7,800.00 
 
Funding: N/A 
 
Recommendation: City staff has reviewed the application and all required materials needed for 
filming in the city. City staff has held various meetings with Kiki Tree Pictures staff to ensure 
agreeable plans for intermittent traffic control, street closures and use of parking spaces.  
 
However, City staff recognizes the impact that may be caused as a result of the potential 
approval of “The Conjuring 3” project on the heels of another highly impactful filming project in 
the same area within a close timeframe. 
 
If approved and according to the recent film policy, City staff will post approved filming project 
on the city’s website to ensure adequate public notification. 
 
Attachments:  

 

1. Kiki Tree Pictures –“The Conjuring 3” – City of Newnan Proposal (PPT), 2. Film 
Proposal; 3. City of Newnan Guidelines and Checklist for Filming  

        
Previous Discussions with Council: N/A 
 
 























































Motion to Enter into Executive Session 
 
I move that we now enter into closed session as allowed by O.C.G.A. §50-14-4 and 
pursuant to advice by the City Attorney, for the purpose of discussing  
 
 
And that we, in open session, adopt a resolution authorizing and directing the Mayor or 
presiding officer to execute an affidavit in compliance with O.C.G.A. §50-14-4, and that 
this body ratify the actions of the Council taken in closed session and confirm that the 
subject matters of the closed session were within exceptions permitted by the open 
meetings law. 
 
 

Motion to Adopt Resolution after Adjourning Back into Regular Session 
 
I move that we adopt the resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute the affidavit stating 
that the subject matter of the closed portion of the council meeting was within the 
exceptions provided by O.C.G.A. §50-14-4(b). 
 


	NEWNAN CITY COUNCIL MEETING JUNE 18, 2019
	READING OF THE MINUTES
	A-Minutes-May 28, 2019 Regular Meeting
	B-Minutes-June 12, 2019 TSPLOST with Coweta

	BOARDS & COMMISSIONS
	C-Parks Comm Recommendation-CJ Smith Park

	NEW BUSINESS
	D-PH-Alcohol App-Gabbard Family LLC
	E-PH-Alcohol App-Newnan Food
	F-PH-Alcohol App-Little Giant Foods
	G-Resolution-General Election 2019-Qualifying
	H-Resolution-General Election 2019 Superintendent
	I-CC IGA-TSPLOST
	J-Ratify Purchase 11 Farmer Comm Park Drive
	K-Renew Lease-ChildrenConnect/Male Academy
	L-RE Aution Listing Agreement - City/Terry Howe
	M-Extension of Pool Operation Agtreement-YMCA
	N-Annex to PC-5.14 acres-36 Franklin/Helen St.
	O-InfoOnly-Rezone 9.85 acres HelenSt/Belk Rd
	P-6 Glenn Street-Schedule Public Hearing
	Q-8 Glenn Street-Schedule Public Hearing
	R-100 Sprayberry Rd.-Schedule Public Hearing

	UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	S-PH-18 Berry Ave-Resolution repair/demolish
	T-PH-33 Hardaway St-Resolution repair/demolish
	U-11 Melson St-Continued Resolution
	V-15 Elm Circle-Continued Resolution
	W-Status Reports-Various Properties
	X-PH-1.23+acres Ellis/Fair form CHV & CUN to RU-I
	Y-Contract CO-McIntoshPkwy/Greison-LINC
	Z-2nd/Final-Sunday Brunch Ordinance
	AA-2nd/Final NU-Grease Ordinance
	BB-2nd/Final Amend Zoning Map 17.97+acres

	VISITORS PETITIONS COMMUNICATIONS COMPLAINTS
	CC-NJSL-5K10K 3/14/2019 Same Route
	DD-Block Party Cul-de-Sac Woodlane Drive
	EE-Foundation Ch-Close portion Armory Rd
	FF-Use Gville Street Park Parking for Event
	GG-Keris Kares 5K 5/16/2019 Same Route
	HH-Request to film-Close Street/Parking June/July

	MOTION TO ENTER INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION
	ADJOURNMENT


{"type":"Document","isBackSide":false,"languages":["en-us"]}



{"type":"Document","isBackSide":false,"languages":["en-us"]}



{"type":"Document","isBackSide":false,"languages":["en-us"]}




